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Part

Forward-Looking Statements

Our disclosure and analysis in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or Form 10-K and the documents that are

incorporated by reference herein contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securities Act and Section 2lE of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended the Exchange Act Forward-looking statements provide our current expectations or forecasts of future

events and are not statements of historical fact These forward-looking statements include information about possible

or assumed future events including among other things discussion and analysis of our future financial condition

results of operations and funds from operations FF0 and adjusted funds from operations AFFO our strategic

plans and objectives cost management occupancy and leasing rates and trends liquidity and ability to refinance our

indebtedness as it matures anticipated capital expenditures and access to capital required to complete projects

amounts of anticipated cash distributions to our stockholders in the future and other matters Words such as

anticipates expects intends plans believes seeks estimates and variations of these words and similar

expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements These statements are not guarantees of future

performance and are subject to risks uncertainties and other factors some of which are beyond our control are difficult

to predict and could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking

statements Statements regarding the following subjects among others are forward-looking by their nature

our business and financing strategy

our ability to acquire investments on attractive terms

our projected operating results

market trends

estimates relating to our future dividends

completion of any pending transactions

projected capital expenditures and

the impact of technology on our operations and business

Forward-looking statements involve inherent uncertainty and may ultimately prove to be incorrect or false You are

cautioned to not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements Except as otherwise may be required by law we

undertake no obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect changed assumptions the occurrence

of unanticipated events or actual operating results Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in

these forward-looking statements as result of various factors including but not limited to

the factors referenced in this Form 10-K including those set forth under the section captioned Risk Factors

general volatility of the securities markets in which we invest and the market price of our common stock

changes in our business or investment strategy

changes in healthcare laws and regulations

availability terms and deployment of capital

availability of qualified personnel

changes in our industry interest rates the debt securities markets the general economy or the commercial

finance and real estate markets specifically

the degree and nature of our competition

the performance and financial condition of borrowers operators and corporate customers
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increased rates of default and/or decreased recovery rates on our investments

increased prepayments or extensions of the mortgages and other loans underlying our mortgage portfolio

changes in governmental regulations tax rates and similar matters

legislative and regulatory changes including changes to laws governing the taxation of real estate investment

trusts REITs or the exemptions from registration as an investment company

the adequacy of our cash reserves and working capital and

the timing of cash flows if any from our investments

This list of risks and uncertainties however is only summary of some of the most important factors to us and is

not intended to be exhaustive You should carefully review the risks set forth herein under the caption ITEM IA Risk

Factors New factors may also emerge from time to time that could materially and adversely affect us

ITEM Business

Overview

Care Investment Trust Inc all references to Care the Company we us and our means Care Investment

Trust Inc acid its subsidiaries is healthcare equity REIT formed to invest in healthcare-related real estate and

mortgage debt The Company was incorporated in Maryland in March 2007 and completed its initial public offering on

June 22 2007 As REIT we are generally not subject to income taxes To maintain our REIT status we are required to

distribute annually as dividends at least 90% of our REIT taxable income as defined by the Internal Revenue Code of

1986 as amended the Code to our stockholders among other requirements If we fail to qualify as REIT in any

taxable year we would be subject to U.S federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate tax rates

We were originally formed to operate as an externally-managed REIT for the primary purpose of making mortgage

investments in healtheare-related properties utilizing the origination platform of our then external manager CIT

Flealthcare LLC CIT Healthcare wholly-owned subsidiary of CIT Group Inc CIT We acquired our initial

portfolio of mortgage loan assets from CIT Healthcare at our initial public offering in exchange for cash proceeds from

our initial public offering and common stock In response to dislocations in the overall credit market and in particular

the securitized financing markets in late 2007 we redirected our investment focus to equity investments in heallhcare

related real estate primarily medical office buildings and senior housing facilities In 2008 we placed our mortgage loan

portfolio for sale and fully shifted our strategy from investing in mortgage loans to acquiring healthcare-related real

estate

On March 16 2010 we entered into definitive purchase and sale agreement with Tiptree Financial Partners L.P

Tiptree under which we agreed to sell newly issued common stock to Tiptree at $9.00 per share and to launch cash

tender offer for up to all of our outstanding common stock at $9.00 per share These transactions were completed on

August 13 2010 resulting in change of control of the Company total of approximately 19.74 million shares of our

common stock representing approximately 97.4% of our outstanding common stock were tendered by our stockholders

and approximately 6.19 million of newly issued shares of our common stock representing approximately 92.2% of our

outstanding common stock after taking into consideration the effect of the tender offer were issued to Tiptree in

exchange for cash proceeds of approximately $55.7 million

On November 42010 in conjunction with the change of control we entered into termination cooperation and

confidentiality agreement with CIT lealthcare which terminated CIT IHlealthcare as our external manager as of

November 16 2010 hybrid management structure was put into place with senior management becoming employees of

the Company and the Company entering into services agreement with TREIT Management LLC TREIT which is an

affiliate of Tiptree Capital Management LLC Tiptree Capital by which Tiptree is externally managed for the

provision of certain administrative services In this structure day to day strategic operational and management

decisions are made internally by our management team with assistance from TREIT and under the oversight of our

Board of Directors
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As of December 31 2010 we maintained diversified investment portfolio consisting of approximately $39.2 million

25% in unconsolidated joint ventures that own real estate approximately $112.2 million 70% invested in wholly

owned real estate and approximately $8.6 million 5% in mortgage loans Due to the change of control of the Company

and our election to utilize push-down accounting our entire portfolio was revalued as of August 13 2010 based on the

estimated fair market value of each investment on such date Our current investments in healthcare-related real estate

include medical office buildings assisted living facilities independent living facilities and Alzheimer facilities Our

remaining mortgage investment is primarily secured by portfolio of skilled nursing assisted living and senior

apartment facilities

Real Estate Equity Investments

Owned Real Estate

Bickford Senior Living Portfolio

In two separate sale-leaseback transactions occurring respectively in June and September of 2008 we acquired

total of fourteen 14 assisted living independent living and Alzheimer facilities The seller was Eby Realty Group LLC

Eby an affiliate of Bickford Senior Living Group LLC Bickford privately owned operator of senior housing

facilities Simultaneously with the initial acquisition we entered into long tenn master lease agreements with Eby with an

initial ternt of 15 years The lease was subsequently amended to include the two properties acquired from Eby in

September 2008 The master lease provides for four extension options of ten 10 years each The portfolio

developed and managed by Bickford contains 643 units with six properties located in Iowa five in Illinois two

in Nebraska and one in Indiana The portfolio is 100% private pay and as of December 31 2010 weighted average

occupancy for the 14 facilities was 87.6%

Under the terms of the two transactions the initial combined minimum annual rent due on the 14 Bickford

properties was approximately $9.2 million corresponding to an initial base lease rate of 8.21% This rate increases 3.0%

per annum Further we also have been accruing additional base rent of 0.26% per year increasing at the rate of 3.0% per

annum Such incremental rent will continue to accrue through June of 2011 and thereafter will be payable over two

year period commencing in July of 2011 The master lease is triple net lease and as such Eby the master lessee is

responsible for all taxes insurance utilities maintenance and capital costs relating to the facilities In addition the

obligations of Eby under the master lease are also secured by all assets of the master lessee and the subtenant facility

operators and pending achievement of certain lease coverage ratios by second mortgage on another Eby project and

pledge of minority interests in five unrelated Eby projects

The total purchase price for these two acquisitions was approximately $111.0 million Eby had the opportunity

under an earn out agreement to receive an additional $7.2 million based on the performance of the properties and certain

other conditions being satisfied Eby did not meet the performance hurdles or the other conditions related to the

achievement of the earnout as of June 30 2010 and as result did not receive any additional proceeds related to the

earnout and is no longer eligible to receive such amounts

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

Cambridge Medical Office Building Portfolio

As of December 31 2010 we owned an 85% equity interest in eight limited liability entities that own nine

Class medical office buildings developed and managed by Cambridge Holdings Inc Cambridge Total rentable

square footage is approximately 767000 square feet and eight of the properties are located in Texas and one

property is located in Louisiana The properties are situated on medical center campuses or adjacent to acute care

hospitals or ambulatory surgery centers and are affiliated with and or occupied by hospital systems and doctor

groups As of December 31 2010 Cambridge owned the remaining 15% interest in each of the limited liability entities

and operates the underlying properties pursuant to long-term management contracts Pursuant to the terms of our

management agreements Cambridge acts as the manager and leasing agent of each medical office building subject to

certain removal rights held by us The properties were approximately 92.7% leased at December 2010
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The table below provides information with respect to the Cambridge portfolio

Weighted average rbht pet square foot $25.60

Average square foot per tenant 5648

Weighted average remaining lease term 6.3 years

Largest tenant as percentage of total rental square feet 8.8%

Lease Maturity Schedule

of

Number of Rental

Year tenants Square Ft Annual Rent Sq Ft

2011 30 83852 1751057 11.8%

2012 16 63846 1465708 9.0%

2013 23 95039 2081434 114%
2014 30944 605519 4.3%

015 21 117324 2397526 16.5%

2016 11 58659 1290001 8.2%

2017 33195 16901l4 4.7%

Thereafter 13 228770 6935578 32.1%

100.0%

In December of 2007 we acquired our interest in the Cambridge portfolio in exchange for total investment of

approximately $72.4 million consisting of approximately $61.9 million of cash and the commitment to issue 700000

operating partnership units with stated value of$lO.5 million to Cambridge subject to the properties achieving certain

performance hurdles The operating partnership units are held in escrow and will be released to Cambridge upon the

achievement of certain performance measures Initially we received preferred minimum return of 8.0% on our total

investment with 2.0% per annum escalations until the earlier of December 31 2014 and iiwhen the properties

exclusive of any benefit provided by the credit support described below generate sufficient cash flow to provide the

preferred return for four of six consecutive calendar quarters and sufficient to cover the cumulative

preferred return for the entire six consecutive quarters month period Thereafter our preferred return converts to

pan passu interest with cash flow from the properties being distributed 85% to us and 15% to Cambridge

Credit support for our preferred return consists of the cash flow otherwise attributable to Cambridges 15%

stake in the entities ii the distributions otherwise payable to Cambridge with respect to the operating partnership

units currently held in escrow and iii reduction in the total number of operating partnership units currently held in

escrow otherwise payable to Cambridge when the cash flow attributable to our 85% stake in the entities is not

sufficient to meet the preferred return The sources of credit support for our preferred return described in the preceding

sentence are utilized in the order presented Accordingly if our interest in the cash flow generated by the properties is

not sufficient to fully fund our preferred return we will first look to the cash flow otherwise allocable to Cambridge

subsequent to which we will capture the distributions otherwise payable on the operating partnership units should

shortfall still exist and finally we will reduce the number of operating partnership units otherwise payable to Cambridge

to the extent required to fully fund our preferred return

The obligation to release from escrow the operating partnership units is accounted for as derivative obligation on

our balance sheet The value of these operating partnership units is derived from our stock price as each operating

partnership unit is redeemable for one share of our common stock or at the cash equivalent thereof at our option and

the overall performance of the Cambridge portfolio as the number of operating partnership units eventually payable to

Cambridge will be reduced to the extent such operating partnerships units are utilized as credit support for our preferred

payment as described above We are required to mark this obligation to fair value each period
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Pursuant to the terms of our investment in the event we entered into change of control transaction Cambridge

had onetime contractual right to put its 15% interest in the properties to us at fair market value In May of 2009 in

accordance with this provision we provided notice to Cambridge that we had entered into term sheet with third

party for transaction that would result in change of control of Care thereby triggering Cambridges onetime

contractual put right Cambridge did not exercise its right to put its interest to us in connection with this proposed

transaction Since this was onetime contractual right which Cambridge elected not to exercise in the spring of 2009 we

believe that its contractual
put right has expired We currently are in litigation with Camhridge with

respect to our

relative rights in connection with the change of control transaction as more fully described in ITEM Legal

Proceedings

Senior Management Concepts Senior Living Porfolio

We own interests in four independent and assisted living facilities located in Utah and operated by Senior

Management Concepts LLC SMC privately held operator of senior housing facilities The four private pay

facilities contain 408 units of which 243 are independent living units and 165 are assisted living units Four affiliates

of SMC have each entered into 15-year leases on the respective facilities that expire in 2022 As of December 31 2010

weighted average occupancy for the four facilities was 91.2%

In December of 2007 we paid $6.8 million in exchange for 100% of the preferred equity interests and 10% of the

common equity interests in the four properties Our agreement with SMC provides for payment to us of preferred

return of 15.0% on our investment In addition we are to receive common equity return payable for up to ten years

equal to 10.0% of free cash flow after payment of debt service and the preferred return as well as 10% of the net

proceeds from sale of one or more of the properties Subject to certain conditions being met our preferred equity

interest in the properties is subject to redemption at par beginning on January 2010 If our preferred equity interest is

redeemed we have the right to put our common equity interests to SMC within 30 days after notice at fair market value

as determined by third-party appraiser In addition we have an option to put our preferred equity interest to SMC at

par any time beginning on January 2016 along with our common equity interests at fair market value as determined by

third-party appraiser

SMC with our approval has entered into contract to sell three of the four properties in the joint venture

The transaction is currently scheduled to close on April 29 2011 Currently SMC is delinquent with respect to two

months of preferred payments totaling approximately $0.2 million We expect that proceeds from the sale of the three

properties will be sufficient to enable us to recover such delinquent amounts as well as our allocable preferred

equity investment in the three properties and proceeds representing our 10% common interest in the SMC portfolio

In addition we presently maintain deposit reserve in excess of $0.5 million which is available to us to recover any

monthly payment shortfalls The transaction is subject to normal closing conditions and we can offer no assurance that

the transaction will ultimately close

Investment in Loans

Investments in loans amounted to approximately $8.6 million at December 31 2010 We account for our investment

in loans in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ASC 948 which codified the FASBs Accounting

for Certain Mortgage Banking Activities ASC 948 Under ASC 948 loans expected to be held for the foreseeable

future or to maturity should be held at amortized cost and all other loans should be held at the lower of cost or market

LOCOM measured on an individual basis

At December 31 2008 in connection with our decision to reposition ourselves from mortgage REIT to

traditional direct property ownership REIT referred to as an equity REIT and as result of existing market conditions

we transferred our portfolio of mortgage loans to LOCOM because we were no longer certain that we would hold the

portfolio of loans either until maturity or for the foreseeable future

Until December 31 2008 our intent was to hold our loans to maturity and therefore the loans had been carried at

amortized cost net of unamortized loan fees acquisition and origination costs unless the loans were impaired In

connection with the transfer we recorded an initial valuation allowance of approximately $29.3 million representing the

difference between our carrying amount of the loans and their estimated fair value at
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December 31 2008 At December 31 2009 the valuation allowance was reduced to $8.4 million representing the

difference between the carrying amounts and estimated fair value of our three remaining loans

In conjunction with the change of control associated mortgage loan with the Tiptree transaction and our election

to utilize push-down accounting we valued our remaining investment at approximately $9.5 million as of August 13

2010

Our intent is to hold our remaining loan investment to maturity and it is therefore carried by the Successor on the

December 31 2010 balance sheet at its amortized cost basis net of an allowance for unrealized losses of approximately

$0.4 million The principal amortization portion of payments received is applied to the carrying value and the interest

portion of payments is recorded as interest income The loan is secured by total of 13 skilled nursing facilities

assisted living facilities and senior apartments located in Texas and Louisiana and has stated interest rate of Libor

plus 4.30% based on its stated principal balance of approximately $12.9 million as of December 31 2010 The loan had an

original maturity date of February 2011 which was initially extended to April 21 2011 and subsequently to June 20
2011 As part of the second extension the borrower will continue to pay scheduled principal and interest payments and

default interest shall accrue Further in connection with the first extension the lender consortium also agreed to

liquidate an existing capital expense reserve Our share of this reserve was approximately $1.0 million which we received

on February 17 2011 and treated as partial principal paydown

Our Management Structure

In conjunction with the Tiptree transaction and the associated change of control on November 2010 we entered

termination cooperation and confidentiality agreement with CIT Healthcare which resulted in the termination of CIT

Healthcare as our external manager effective as of November 16 2010 In connection with the termination we paid CIT

Healthcare termination fee of $7.4 million

Effective November 16 2010 we adopted hybrid management structure with senior management becoming

employees of the Company and the Company entering into Services Agreement the Services Agreement with

TREIT Management LLC TREIT an affiliate of Tiptree Capital Pursuant to the Services Agreement TRELT receives

base fee of 0.50% per annum of our net equity payable monthly as defined in the Services Agreement and quarterly

incentive fee of 15% of adjusted funds from operations in excess of the required minimum investment return each as

defined in the Services Agreement The initial term of the Services Agreement expires on December 31 2013 and will

renew automatically each year thereafter for an additional one-year period unless the Company or TREIT elects not to

renew In this structure day-to-day strategic operational and management decisions are made internally by our

management team with assistance from TREIT and under the oversight of our Board of Directors

The Healthcare Industry

Healthcare reform dominated the political landscape in 2010 In March of 2010 President Barack Obama signed into

the law the Patient Projection and Affordable Care Act as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation

Act of 2010 collectively the Affordable Care Act The premise behind this comprehensive healthcare reform act was

to expand the availability of medical insurance coverage and to mandate certain level of coverage for all United States

citizens by 2014 In response to the passage of the Affordable Care Act in September of 2010 the Centers for Medicare

and Medicaid Services CMS updated its February 2010 projections for national health expenditures for the years

2009 to 2019 Based on this revised report national health expenditures for 2010 were expected to increase by 5.1% to

$2.6 trillion representing 17.5% of U.S GDP National health expenditures over the period from 2009 through 2019 are

projected to increase at an annual compound rate of 6.3% with national health spending expected to reach $4.6 trillion

and comprise 19.6% of U.S GDPby 2019

Senior citizens continue to be the largest consumers of hcalthcare services in the United States According to

CMS on per capita basis the 75-year and older segment of the population spends 76% more on hcalthcare than the 65

to 74-year-old segment and over 200% more than the population average According to the U.S Administration of

Aging the 65 and older segment of the population is projected to increase from 39.6 million or 12% of the

U.S population to 72.1 million or 19% of the U.S population by 2030 The number and percentage of the U.S population

which is 65 or older continue to increase as the baby boomer generation begins to reach 65 and duto advances in

medicine and technology that have increased the average life expectancy of the population
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The delivery of healthcare services in the U.S requires variety of physical plants including among others

hospitals surgical centers skilled nursing facilities independent and assisted living facilities medical office buildings

laboratories and research facilities Healthcare providers require real estate investors and financiers to maintain as well

as grow their businesses Given the demographic trends for healthcare spending and an aging population with an

increased life expectancy we believe that the healthcare-related real estate market will continue to provide attractive

investment opportunities

Our Facilities

The market for healthcare real estate is extensive and includes real estate owned by variety of healthcare

operators The following describes the nature of the operations of our existing and prospective tenants and borrowers

Senior Housing Facilities

Senior housing properties include independent living facilities assisted living facilities and continuing care

retirement communities which cater to different segments of the elderly population based upon their needs Services

provided by our tenants in these facilities are primarily paid for by the residents directly or through private insurance

and are less reliant on government reimbursement programs such as Medicaid and Medicare

Independent Living Facilities ILFs These facilities are designed to meet the needs of seniors who choose to

live in an independent environment surrounded by their contemporaries while receiving services such as

housekeeping meals and activities ILF residents generally do not need assistance with activities of daily living

including bathing eating and dressing However residents have the option to contract for these services

Assisted Living Facilities ALFs These facilities are licensed care facilities that provide personal care services

support and housing for those who need help with activities of daily living yet require only limited medical care

Programs and services provided by ALFs may include among others transportation social activities exercise

and fitness programs beauty or barber shop access hobby and craft activities community excursions and

meals in dining room setting Such facilities are often in apartment style buildings with private residences

ranging from single rooms to large apartments Certain ALFs may offer higher levels of personal assistance for

residents with Alzheimers disease or other forms of dementia Levels of personal assistance are based in part on

local regulations

Continuing Care Retirement Communities CCRCs These facilities provide housing and health-related services

under long-term contracts This alternative is appealing to residents as it eliminates the need for relocating as

health and medical needs increase over time thus allowing residents to age in place Some CCRCs require

substantial entry fee or buy-in fee and most also charge monthly maintenance fees in exchange for living unit

mealsand some health services CCRCs typically require the individual to be in relatively good health and

independent upon entry

Medical Office Buildings

Medical office buildings or MOBs typically contain physicians offices and examination rooms and may also

include pharmacies hospital ancillary service space and outpatient service facilities such as diagnostic centers

rehabilitation clinics and day-surgery operating rooms While MOBs are similar to commercial office buildings they

generally require incremental plumbing electrical and mechanical systems to accommodate multiple exam rooms that

may require sinks in every room brighter lights and other special equipment such as for dispensing medical gases and

taking x-rays Such properties may be master-leased to single operator/manager or directly leased to individual

tenants

Skilled Nursing Facilities

Skilled Nursing Facilities or SNFs offer restorative rehabilitative and custodial nursing care for people not

requiring the more extensive and sophisticated treatment available at hospitals Ancillary reveijues-ffad revenue
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from sub-acute care services are derived from providing services to residents beyond room and board and include

occupational physical speech respiratory and intravenous therapy wound care oncology treatment brain injury

care and orthopedic therapy as well as sales of pharmaceutical and pharmaceutical related products Certain skilled

nursing facilities may provide some of the foregoing services on an outpatient basis Skilled nursing services provided

by our tenants in these facilities are primarily paid for by private sources or through the Medicare and Medicaid

programs

Other Healthcare Facilities

Other healthcare facilities which we may invest in include physician group practice clinic facilities health and

wellness centers facilities used for other healthcare purposes such as behavioral health manufacturing facilities for

medical devices outpatient centers and hospitals including acute care hospitals long-term acute care and specialty

hospitals and rehabilitation hospitals

Healthcare and Other Regulation

Overview

The tenants and operators of healthcare properties are typically subject to extensive federal state and local laws

and regulations including but not limited to laws and regulations related to licensure conduct of operations

ownership of facilities addition of facilities services prices for services billing for services and the confidentiality and

security of health-related information Federal healthcare reform legislation passed in 2010 along with the expansion of

other applicable federal state or local laws and regulations new interpretations of existing laws and regulations or

changes in enforcement priorities could have material adverse effect on certain of our tenants and operators liquidity

financial condition and results of operations which in turn could adversely impact their ability to satisfy their

contractual obligations These regulations are wide-ranging and complex and may vary or overlap from jurisdiction to

jurisdiction Compliance with such regulatory requirements as interpreted and amended from time to time can increase

operating costs and thereby adversely affect the financial viability of our tenants and operators business These laws

authorize periodic inspections audits and investigations and identification of deficiencies that if not corrected could

result in sanctions that include suspension or loss of licensure to operate and loss of rights to participate in the

Medicare and Medicaid programs Regulatory agencies have substantial powers to affect the actions of tenants and

operators of our properties if the agencies believe that there is an imminent threat to patient welfare and in some states

these powers can include assumption of interim control over facilities through receiverships

Medicare is federal program that provides certain hospital nursing home and medical insurance benefits to

persons over the age of 65 certain persons with disabilities and persons with end-stage renal disease and Lou Gehrigs

Disease Medicare however only pays for 100 days of nursing home care per illness upon release from hospital

Medicaid is medical assistance program jointly funded by federal and state governments and administered by each

state pursuant to which benefits are available to certain indigent patients The majority of governmental funding for

nursing home care comes from the Medicaid program to the extent that patient has spent their assets down to

predetermined level Medicaid reimbursement rates however typically are less than the amounts charged by the

tenants of our properties The states have been afforded latitude in setting payment rates for nursing home providers

Furthermore federal legislation limits skilled nursing facility operatofs ability to withdraw from the Medicaid program

by restricting the eviction or transfer of Medicaid residents For the last several years many states have announced

actual or potential budget shortfalls situation which will likely continue due to the current economic crisis As result

of such actual or anticipated budget shortfalls many states have implemented are implementing or considering

implementing freezesbr cuts in Medicaid reimbursement rates paid to providers including skilled nursing providers

Changes to Medicaid eligibility criteria are also possible thereby reducing the number of beneficiaries eligible to have

their medical care reimbursed by government sources The Affordable Care Act requires states to at least maintain

Medicaid eligibility standards established prior to the enactment of the law for adults until January 2014 and for

children until October 2019 However states with budget deficits may seek waiver from this requirement to address

eligibility standards that apply to adults making more than 133% of the federal poverty level Any decrease in

reimbursement rates or loss of coverage by beneficiaries could have significant effect on tenants or operators

financial condition and as result could adversely impact us

10



Table of Contents

The Medicare and Medicaid statutory framework is subject to administrative rulings interpretations and discretion

that affect the amount and timing of reimbursement made under Medicare and Medicaid The amounts of program

payments received by our operators and tenants can be changed from time to time and at any time by legislative or

regulatory actions and by determinations by agents for the programs due to an economic downturn or otherwise Such

changes may be applied retroactively under certain circumstances In addition private payors including managed care

payors continually demand discounted fee structures and the assumption by healthcare providers of all or portion of

the financial risk In addition to the various cost containment provisions contained in the Affordable Care Act efforts to

impose greater discounts and more stringent cost controls upon operators by private payors are expected to intensify

and continue Furthur private payors and managed care payors that provide insurance coverage for nursing home care

assisted living or independent living are limited in number The primary private source of coverage for nursing home

care and assisted living facilities is long-term care insurance which is costly and not widely held by patients We
cannot assure you that adequate third-party reimbursement levels will continue to be available for services to be

provided by the tenants and operators of our properties which currently are being reimbursed by Medicare Medicaid

and private payors Significant limits on the scope of services reimbursed and on reimbursement rates and fees could

have material adverse effect on these tenants and operators liquidity financial condition and results of operations

which could adversely affect their ability to make rental payments under and otherwise comply with the terms of their

leases with us

Changes in government regulations and reimbursement due to the economic downturn or otherwise increased

regulatory enforcement activity and regulatory non-compliance by our tenants and operators can all have significant

effect on their operations and financial condition and as result can adversely impact us Please see ITEM 1A Risk

Factors for more information

Different properties within our portfolio may be more or less likely subject to certain types of regulation which in

some cases is specific to the type of facility e.g the regulation of continuing care retirement communities by state

Departments of Insurance Notwithstanding the foregoing all healthcare facilities are potentially subject to the full

range of regulation and enforcement as more fully described below We expect that the healthcare industry will continue

to face increased regulation and pressure in the areas of fraud waste and abuse cost control healthcare management

and provision of services Further as provided for in the Affordable Care Act we expect continuing cost control

initiatives and reform efforts Each of these factors can lead to reduced or slower growth in reimbursement for certain

services provided by our tenants and operators as well as reduced demand for certain of the services that they provide

In addition we believe healthcare services are increasingly being provided on an outpatient basis or in the home

Accordingly hospitals and other healthcare providers are increasingly providing an increased percentage of their

services to uninsured patients Many of the material provisions of the Affordable Care Act including those mandating

insurance coverage will not be fully implemented until 2014 In addition more than 20 challenges to the Affordable Care

Act have been filed in federal courts Some federal district courts have upheld the constitutionality of the Affordable

Care Act Others have held unconstitutional the requirement that individuals maintain health insurance or pay penalty

and have either found the Affordable Care Act void in its entirety or left the remainder of the Affordable Care Act intact

These lawsuits are subject to appeal and it is unclear how these lawsuits will be resolved Further the U.S Congress is

considering bills that would repeal or revise the Affordable Care Act Therefore at this time it is not possible to project

the impact which such legislation will eventually have on reducing the number of uninsured patients or what if any

impact it will have on the period prior to 2014

Fraud and Abuse

There are extensiie federal and state laws and regulations prohibiting fraud and abuse in the healthcare industry

the violation of which could result in significant criminal and civil penalties that can materially affect the tenants and

operators of healthcare properties The Federal laws include

The anti-kickback provisions of the Medicare and Medicaid programs which prohibit among other things

knowingly and willfully soliciting receiving offering or paying any remuneration including any kickback bribe

or rebate directly or indirectly in return for or to induce the referral of an individual to person for the furnishing

or arranging for the furnishing of any item or service for which payment may be made in whole or in part under

Medicare or Medicaid
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The Stark Law which prohibits with limited exceptions referrals by physicians of Medicare or Medicaid

patients to providers of broad range of designated healthcare services with which physicians or their

immediate family members have ownership interests or certain other financial compensation arrangements

The False Claims Act which prohibits any person from knowingly presenting false or fraudulent claims for

payment to the Federal government including the Medicare and Medicaid programs

The Civil Monetary Penalties Law which authorizes the Department of Health and Human Services to impose

civil penalties administratively for fraudulent acts and

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 commonly referred to as HIPAA the Health

Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009 and implementing regulations which

among other things protects the privacy and security of individually identifiable health information by limiting

its use and disclosure and require providers to report breaches of such information to affected individuals the

Department of Health and Human Services and in some cases the media

Sanctions for violating these Federal laws include criminal and civil penalties that range from punitive sanctions

damage assessments monetary penalties imprisonment denial of Medicare and Medicaid payments and/or exclusion

from the Medicare and Medicaid programs These laws also impose an affirmative duty on operators to ensure that they

do not employ or contract with persons excluded from the Medicare and other government programs

Many states have adopted laws or are considering legislative proposals similar to the Federal anti-kickback

provisions Stark Law or False Claims Act some of which apply to broader list of services than those covered by

Federal restrictions and/or apply regardless of whether the service was reimbursed by Medicare or Medicaid Many

states have also adopted or are considering legislative proposals to increase patient protections such as requiring

criminal background checks of all employees and contractors and limiting the use and disclosure of patient specific

health information These state laws often impose criminal and civil penalties similar to the federal laws

In addition various states have established minimum staffing requirements or may establish minimum staffing

requirements in the future for hospitals nursing homes and other healthcare facilities The implementation of these

staffing requirements in some states is not contingent upon any additional appropriation of state funds in any budget

act or other statute Our tenants and operators ability to satisfy such staffing requirements will depend upon their

ability to attract and retain qualified healthcare professionals Failure to comply with such minimum staffing

requirements may result in the imposition of fines or other sanctions If states do not appropriate sufficient additional

funds through Medicaid
program appropriations or otherwise to pay for any additional operating costs resulting from

such minimum staffing requirements our tenants and operators profitability may be materially adversely affected

The majority of states have enacted laws implementing specific requirements in the event that the personal

information of patient or resident is compromised Although these requirements vary from state to state notification

of security breaches to the state attorney general and affected patients or residents is often required Notification may

be costly and time consuming and failure to comply with these requirements may result in civil or criminal penalties

To the extent to which our tenants and/or operators own or maintain personal information they may be required to

comply with the state security breach laws which could increase operating costs and decrease profitability

In the ordinary course of their business the tenants and operators of our properties have been and are subject

regularly to inquiries inspections investigations and audits by Federal and state agenciesThafoversee these laws and

regulations Generally skilled nursing facilities are licensed on an annual or bi-annual basis aiTtI certified annually for

participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs through various regulatory agencies which determine compliance

with federal state and local laws The recent increased funding aimed to combat fraud waste and abuse has led to

dramatic increase in the number of investigations audits and enforcement actions Private enforcement of healthcare

fraud also has increased due in large part to amendments to the civil False Claims Act in 1986 that were designed to

encourage private individuals to sue on behalf of the government These whistleblower
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suits by private individuals known as qui tam suits may be filed by almost anyone including present and former

patients or nurses and other employees HIPAA also created series of new healthcare-related crimes

As Federal and state budget pressures continue Federal and state administrative agencies may also continue to

escalate investigation and enforcement efforts to eliminate waste and to control fraud and abuse in governmental

healthcare programs violation of any of these Federal or state fraud and abuse laws and regulations could have

material adverse effect on our tenants and operators liquidity financial condition and results of operations which

could adversely affect their ability to make rental payments under or otherwise comply with the terms of their leases

with us

Healthcare Reform Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act

Healthcare is the largest industry in the U.S based on GDP and continues to attract great deal of legislative

interest and public attention

In March 2010 President Barack Obama signed into law the Affordable Care Act which represents the most

expansive social legislation enacted in decades The stated objective of the Affordable Care Act was to ensure that all

Americans have access to quality affordable healthcare and create the transformation within the U.S healthcare system

necessary to contain costs

The Affordable Care Act consists of nine titles which as enacted will be implemented gradually beginning in

2010 Certain provisions such as those pertaining to pre-existing conditions for children and extending coverage for

dependent children until age 26 became effective in 2010 Other provisions such as mandatory insurance coverage for

all individuals are scheduled by the Affordable Care Act to become effective in 2014 The-Congressional Budget Office

initially estimated that the total cost of the bill to be $940 billion over ten 10 years but projected that passage of the

bill would reduce the Federal deficit by approximately $143 billion over the same ten 10 year period If fully

implemented as enacted the new law is projected to expand insurance coverage to 32 millionAmericans who are

currently uninsured Such insurance would be made available through combination state-based exchanges with

subsidies available to low income individuals and families In addition separate healthcare exchanges would be created

to enable small businesses to purchase coverage for their employees Employers with more than 200 employees must

automatically enroll new full-time employees in coverage Employers with more than 50 employees who fail to acquire

health insurance for their employees would be subject to an annual fine with respect to any worker who receives Federal

subsidies to purchase health insurance Further in 2014 individuals with limited exceptions will be required to purchase

health insurance or pay an annual fine The cost of providing the subsidized and incremental health insurance provided

for in the Affordable Care Act will be paid for by combination of tax increases and new taxes including an excise tax

on high cost health plans

The controversy surrounding the healthcare reform bill did not end with its passage More than 20 challenges to

the Affordable Care Act have been filed in federal courts Some federal district courts have upheld the constitutionality

of the Affordable Care Act Others have held unconstitutional the requirement that individuals maintain health

insurance or pay penalty and have either found the Affordable Care Act void in its entirety or left the remainder of the

Affordable Care Act intact These lawsuits are subject to appeal and it is unclear how these lawsuits will be resolved

Further the U.S Congress is considering bills that would repeal or revise the Affordable Care Act

At this time it is difficult to determine the long term implications of the passage of theSffordable Care Act As

described above many of the provisions are scheduled to be implemented over time and portions of the act are being

legally challenged In its current form the law will greatly expand the number of insured Americans thereby increasing

their ability to pay for certain healthcare services The combination of an aging population base and increasing the

percentage of total Americans who are insured should increase overall demand for healthcare services thereby

enhancing the profitability of our tenants and operators basic premise of the law is that expanding insurance

coverage will result in greater efficiencies thereby reducing healthcare expenditures as percentage of U.S GDP The

emphasis on such efficiencies may reduce operating margins for both our tenants and operators and create overall

pressure on their profitability
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Prior 1-Iealthcare Legislation and Regulations

The passage of the Affordable Care Act was the culmination of years of effort by the U.S Federal government to

provide basic level of health care insurance for all Americans and to better control the total amount and rate of growth

of Federal expenditures on health care In 1997 the Federal government enacted the Balanced Budget Act BBA
which contained extensive changes to the Medicare and Medicaid programs including substantial Medicare

reimbursement reductions for healthcare operations For certain healthcare providers including hospitals and skilled

nursing facilities implementation of the BBA resulted in more drastic reimbursement reductions than had been

anticipated In addition to its impact on Medicare the BBA also afforded states more flexibility in administering their

Medicaid plans including the ability to shift most Medicaid enrollees into managed care plans without first obtaining

federal waiver

The following key legislative and regulatory changes have been made to the BBA to provide some relief from the

drastic reductions in Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement resulting from implementation of the BBA

The Balanced Budget Refinement Act of 1999 BBRA
The Medicare Medicaid and State Child Health Insurance Program Benefits Improvement and Protection Act of

2000 BIPA
The one-time administrative fix to increase skilled nursing facility payment rates by 3.26% instituted by CMS

begiflning on October 2003

The Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 Medicare Modernization Act
sometimes referred to as the Drug Bill

The Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 Pub No 109-171 DRA
The Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006 Pub No 109-432 and

The Medicare Medicaid and SCHIP Extension Act of 2007 Pub No 110-173

The Balanced Budget Refinement Act of 1999 BBRA was enacted by the U.S Federal government in response

to widespread healthcare industry concern about the reductions in payments under the BBA The BBRA increased the

per diem reimbursement rates for certain high acuity patients by 20% from April 2000 until case mix refinements were

implemented by CMS as explained in more detail below The BBRA also imposed two-year moratorium on the annual

cap mandated by the BBA on physical occupational and speech therapy services provided to patient by outpatient

rehabilitation therapy providers including Part covered therapy services in nursing facilities Relief from the BBA

therapy caps has been subsequently extended multiple times by Congress with the most recent extension set to expire

on December 31 2011

Pursuant to its final rule updating SNF Prospective Payment System PPS for the 2006 Federal fiscal year CMS
refined the resource utilization groups RUGs used to determine the daily payment for beneficiaries in skilled nursing

facilities by adding nine new payment categories The result of this refinement which became effective on January

2006 was to eliminate the temporary add-on payments that Congress enacted as part of the BBRA

Under its final rule updating payments for the 2007 Federal fiscal year UMS reduced reimbursement of

uncollectible Medicare coinsurance amounts for all beneficiaries other than beneficiaries of bcsth Medicare and

Medicaid from 100% to 70% for SNF cost reporting periods beginning on or after October -Q005 The rule also

included various options for classifying and weighting patients transferred to SNF after hospital stay less than the

mean length of stay associated with that particular diagnosis-related group

On July 31 2009 CMS issued its final rule updating SNF PPS for the 2010 Federal fiscal year October 2009

through September 30 2010 Under the final rule the update to the SNF FF5 standard federal payment rate for SNFs

included 2.2% increase in the market basket index for the 2010 fiscal year
The final rule also provided recalibration in

the case-mix indexes for the resource utilization groups used to determine the daily payment for beneficiaries in SNFs

that was expected to reduce payments to skilled nursing facilities by 3.3% in fiscal year 2010 CMS estimated that net

payments to SNFs as result of the market basket increase and the recalibration in the case
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mix indexes for RUGs under the final rule would decrease by approximately $360 million or 1.1% in fiscal year 2010 The

final rule also included other changes that potentially would affect net payments to SNFs including by way of example

implementation of the RUG-IV classification model for fiscal year 2011 and possible new requirements for the quarterly

reporting of nursing home staffing data

Healthcare Legislation and Regulations Subsequent to the Affordable Care Act

On July 22 2010 CMS published notice updating SNF PPS rates for the 2011 Federal fiscal year The notice

contains number of provisions in compliance with the Affordable Care Act such as final rates under RUG-IV and the

hybrid payment system mandated by the Affordable Care Act The payment rates for RUG-IV went into effect as of

October 2010 on an interim basis until CMS develops the hybrid RUG system known as HR III CMS estimates that

overall estimated payments for SNFs in fiscal year 2011 will increase by $542 million or 1.7% as compared to fiscal year

2010

The ongoing debate lawsuits and continued controversy surrounding the Affordable Care Act substantiates our

belief that healthcare legislation at both the Federal and state levels is and will continue to be an ongoing and

dynamic process Accordingly we cannot project with certainty what impact future changes in healthcare legislation

will have on our business and profitability For example pricing adjustments to items such as the SNF PPS therapy

services or Medicare reimbursement for SNFs may have material adverse impact on our tenants or operators which in

turn could have materially adverse affect on us The Affordable Care Act placed significant emphasis on the

continued viability of the Medicare and Medicaid systems and their ability to provide cost efficient medical care It also

provided methodologies for improving the general healthcare delivery system in this country It is not possible to

determine with certainty the impact which continued government scrutiny will have on the economics of delivering

healthcare services in the United States We cannot therefore assure you that future healthcare legislation or changes

in the administration or implementation of governmental healthcare reimbursement programs will not have material

adverse effect on our tenants and operators liquidity financial condition or results of operations which could

adversely affect their ability to make payments to us and which in turn could have material adverse effect on us

Certificates of Need and State Licensing

Certificate of need CON regulations control the development and expansion of healthcare services and facilities

in certain states Some states also require regulatory approval prior to changes in ownership of certain healthcare

facilities In the last several years in response to mounting Medicaid budget deficits many states have begun to

tighten CON controls including the imposition of moratoriums on new facilities and the imposition of stricter controls

over licensing and change of ownership rules States that do not have CON programs may have other laws or

regulations that limit or restrict the development or expansion of healthcare facilities To the extent that CONs or other

similar approvals are required for expansion or the operations of our facilities either through facility acquisitions

expansion or provision of new services or other changes such expansion could be affected adversely by the failure or

inability of our tenants and operators to obtain the necessary approvals changes in the standards applicable to such

approvals or possible delays and expenses associated with obtaining such approvals

Americans with Disabilities Act the ADA

Our current properties and those we might acquire must comply with the ADA to the extent that such properties

are public accommodations as defined in that statute The ADA may require removal of structural barriers to access

by persons with disabilities in certain public areas of our properties where such removal is readily achievable To date

we have not receivedany notices of substantial noncompliance with the ADA requirements Accordingly we have not

incurred substantial capital expenditures to address ADA concerns In some instances our tenants and operators may
be responsible for any additional amounts that may be required to make facilities ADA-compliant Noncompliance with

the ADA could result in imposition of fines or an award of damages to private litigants The obligation to make readily

achievable accommodations is an ongoing one and we continue to assess our properties and make alterations as

appropriate in this respect
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Environmental Matters

wide variety of federal state and local environmental and occupational health and safety laws and regulations

affect healthcare facility operations These complex federal and state statutes and their enforcement involve myriad

of regulations many of which involve strict liability on the part of the potential offender Some of these federal and state

statutes may directly impact us Under various federal state and local environmental laws ordinances and regulations

an owner or operator of real property or secured lender may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of

hazardous or toxic substances at under or disposed of in connection with such property as well as other potential

costs relating to hazardous or toxic substances including government fines and damages for injuries to persons

adjacent property and/or natural resources This may be true even if we did not cause or contribute to the presence of

such substances The cost of any required remediation removal fines or personal or property damages and the owners

or secured lenders liability therefore could exceed or impair the value of the property and/or the assets of the owner or

secured lender In addition the presence of such substances or the failure to properly dispose of or-remediate such

substances may adversely affect the owners ability to sell or rent such property or to borrow using sucli property as

collateral which in turn could reduce our revenues For description of the risks associated with environmental

matters see ITEM IA Risk Factors

Competition

We compete for real estate property investments with healthcare providers other healthcare-related REITs

healthcare lenders real estate partnerships banks insurance companies and other investors Some of our competitors

are significantly larger and have greater financial resources and lower costs of capital than we do

The operators and
managers of the properties in which we invest compete on local andsegional basis with other

landlords and healthcare providers who own and operate healthcare-related real estate The occupancy and rental

income at our properties depend upon several factors including the number of physicians using the healthcare facilities

or referring patients to the facilities the number of patients or residents of the healthcare-related facilities competing

properties and healthcare providers and the size and demographics of the population in the surrounding area Private

federal and state payment programs and the effect of laws and regulations may also have significant influence on the

profitability of the properties and their tenants

Employees

In conjunction with last years change of control and Tiptree becoming our majority stockholder we entered into

termination cooperation and confidentiality agreement with CIT Healthcare which terminated CIT Healthcare as our

external manager as of November 16 2010 hybrid management structure was put into place with senior management

becoming employees of the Company and the Company entering into services agreement with TREIT Accordingly

we currently have five employees who are based in our corporate headquarters located at 780 Third Avenue in New

York City Prior to the termination of CIT Healthcare as our external manager we did not have any employees our

officers were employees of our external manager and we did not have separate facilities

Certain U.S Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following discussion of Certain U.S Federal Income Tax Considerations is not inclusive of all possible tax

considerations and is not tax advice This summary does not deal with all tax aspects that might be relevant to

particular stockholder in light of such stockholders circumstances nor does it deal with particular types of

stockholders that are subject to special treatment under the Internal Revenue Code the Code Provisions of the

Code governing the federal income tax treatment of REITs and their stockholders are highly technical and complex and

this summary is qualified in its entirety by the applicable Code provisions rules and Treasury Regulations promulgated

thereunder and administrative and judicial interpretations thereof The following discussion is based on current law

which could be changed at any time and possibly applied retroactively

We elected on our 2007 U.S income tax return to be taxed as REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code

for our taxable year ended December 31 2007 To qualify as REIT we must meet certain organizational and operational

requirements including requirement to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income to
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stocltholders As REIT we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on taxable income that we distribute to

our stocldiolders If we fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year we will then be subject to federal income tax on our

taxable income at regular corporate rates and we will not be permitted to qualify for treatment as REIT for federal

income tax purposes for four
years following the year during which qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue

Service grants us relief under certain statutory provisions Such an event could materially adversely affect our net

income and net cash available for distributions to stockholders However we believe that we will operate in such

manner as to qualify for treatment as REIT and we intend to operate in the foreseeable future in such manner so that

we will qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes We may however be subject to certain state and local taxes

The Code defines REIT as corporation trust or association which is managed by one or more trustees or

directors ii the beneficial ownership of which is evidenced by transferable shares or by transferable certificates of

beneficial interest iii which would be taxable but for Sections 856 through 860 of the Code as a4omestic corporation

iv which is neither financial institution nor an insurance company subject to certain provisions of the Code the

beneficial ownership of which is held by 100 or more persons vi during the last half of each taxable year not more than

50% in value of the outstanding stock of which is owned actually or constructively by five or fewer individuals

and vii which meets certain other tests described below regarding the amount of its distributions and the nature of its

income and assets The Code provides that conditions to iv inclusive must be met during the entire taxable year

and that condition must be met during at least 335 days of taxable year of 12 months or during proportionate part

of taxable year of less than 12 months

There are presently two gross income requirements for Care to qualify as REIT First for each taxable year at

least 75% of Cares gross income excluding gross income from prohibited transactions as defined below and certain

hedging transactions entered into after July 30 2008 must be derived directly or indirectly from investments relating to

real property or mortgages on real property or from certain types of temporary investment income Second at least 95%
of Cares gross income excluding gross income from prohibited transactions and qualifying hedges for each taxable

year must be derived from income that qualifies under the 75% test and other dividends interest and gain from the sale

or other disposition of stock or securities prohibited transaction is sale or other disposition of property other

than foreclosure property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of our trade or business

At the close of each quarter of Cares taxable year it must also satisfy tests relating to the nature of its assets

First at least 75% of the value of Cares total assets must be represented by real estate assets including shares of stock

of other REITs cash cash items or government securities For purposes of this test the term real estate assets

generally means real
property including interests in real property and mortgages and certain mezzanine loans and

shares in other REITs as well as any stock or debt instrument attributable to the investment of the proceeds of stock

offering or public debt offering with term of at least five years but only for the one-year period beginning on the

date the proceeds are received Second not more than 25% of Cares total assets may be represented by securities other

than those in the 75% asset class Third of the investments included in the 25% asset class and except for certain

investments in other REITs qualified REfl subsidiaries QRSs and taxable RE1T subsidiaries TRSs the value

of any one issuers securities owned by Care may not exceed 5% of the value of Cares total assets and Care may not

own more than 10% of the vote or value of the securities of any one issuer Solely for purposes of the 10% value test

however certain securities including but not limited to securities having specified characteristics straight debt
loans to an individual or an estate obligations to pay rents from real

property and securities issued by REIT are

disregarded as securities Fourth not more than 20% 25% for taxable years beginning onor alter January 2009 of the

value of Cares total assets may be represented by securities of one or more TRSs

Care directly and indirectly owns interests in various partnerships and limited liability companies that are either

disregarded or treated as partnerships for federal income tax purposes In the case of REIT that is partner in

partnership or member of limited liability company that is treated as partnership under the Code for purposes of

the REIT asset and income tests the REIT will be deemed to own its proportionate share of the assets of the partnership

or limited liability company and will be deemed to be entitled to its proportionate share of gross income of the

partnership or limited liability company in each case determined in accordance with the REITs capital interest in the

entity subject to special rules related to the 10% asset test
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The ownership of an interest in partnership or limited liability company by REIT may involve special tax risks

including the challenge by the Internal Revenue Service of the allocations of income and expense items of the

partnership or limited liability company which would affect the computation of taxable income of the REIT and the

status of the partnership or limited liability company as partnership as opposed to an association taxable as

corporation for federal income tax purposes

Care also owns interests in subsidiaries which are intended to be treated as QRS The Code provides that such

suhsidiaries will he ignored for federal income tax purposes and all assets liabilities and items of income deduction and

credit of such subsidiaries will be treated as the assets liabilities and such items of Care If any partnership limited

liability company or subsidiary in which Care owns an interest were treated as regular corporation and not as

partnership subsidiary REIT QRS or TRS as the case may be for federal income tax purposes
Care would likely fail to

satisfy the REIT asset tests described above and would therefore fail to qualify as REIT unless certain relief

provisions apply Care believes that each of the partnerships limited liability companies and subsidiaries other than

TRS in which it owns an interest will be treated for tax purposes as partnership disregarded entity in the case of

100% owned limited liability company REIT or QRS as applicable although no assurance can be given that the

Internal Revenue Service will not successfully challenge the status of any such organization

REIT may own any percentage of the voting stock and value of the securities of corporation which jointly

elects with the REIT to be TRS provided certain requirements are met TRS generally may engage in any business

including the provision of customary or non-customary services to tenants of its parent REIT and of others provided

that TRS subject to certain exceptions may not manage or operate hotel or healthcare facility TRS is treated as

regular corporation and is subject to federal income tax and applicable state income and franchise taxes at regular

corporate rates In addition 100% tax may be imposed on REIT if its rental service or other agreements with its TRS
or the TRSs agreements with the REITs tenants are not on arms-length terms As of December 31 2010 Care did not

own any interests in subsidiaries which have elected to be taxable REIT subsidiaries each TRS
In order to qualify as REIT Care is required to distribute dividends other than capital gain dividends to its

stockholders in an amount at least equal to the sum of 90% of its real estate investment trust taxable

income computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction and its net capital gain and ii 90% of the net

income if any after tax from foreclosure property minus the sum of certain items of non-cash income Such

distributions must be paid or treated as paid in the taxable year to which they relate At Cares election distribution

will be treated as paid in taxable year if it is declared before Care timely files its tax return for such year and is paid on

or before the first regular dividend payment after such declaration provided such payment is made during the twelve

12 month period following the close of such year To the extent that Care does not distribute all of its net long-term

capital gain or distributes at least 90% but less than 100% of its real estate investment trust taxable income as

adjusted Care will be required to pay tax on the undistributed amount at regular federal and state corporate tax rates

Furthermore if Care fails to distribute during each calendar year at least the sum of 85% of its ordinary income for

such year ii 95% of its capital gain net income for such year and iii any undistributed taxable income from prior

periods Care Would be required to pay in addition to regular federal and state corporate tax non-deductible 4% excise

tax on the excess of such required distributions over the amounts actually distributed While historically Care has

satisfied the distribution requirements discussed above by making cash distributions to its shareholders REIT is

permitted to satisfy these requirements by making distributions of cash or other property including in limited

circumstances its own stock For distributions with respect to taxable years ending on or before December 31 201
recent Internal Revenue Service guidance allows us to satisfy up to 90% of the distributiofl requirements discussed

above through the distribution of shares of Care common stock provided that certain conditions are met

Care files periodic and current reports proxy statements and other information with the SEC All filings made by

Care with the SEC may be copied and read at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street NE Washington DC
20549 Information regarding the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at

l-800-SEC-0330 The SEC also maintains an Internet site that contains reports proxy and information statements and

other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC as Care does The website address of the SEC is

http//www.sec.gov Additionally copy of our Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form l0-Q

Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to the aforementioned filings
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are available on our website http//www.carereit.com free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after Care

electronically files such reports or amendments with or furnishes them to the SEC The filings can be found in the

Investor Relations Documents SEC Filings section of Cares website Cares website also contains its Corporate

Governance Guidelines Code of Business Conduct and the charters of the audit and compensation nominating and

corporate governance committees of the Board of Directors These items can be found in the Investor Relations

Corporate Overview section of our website Reference to our website does not constitute incorporation by reference of

the information contained on the website and should not be considered part of this Form 10-K All of the

aforementioned materials may also be obtained free of charge by sending correspondence to Care Investment

Trust Inc 780 Third Avenue 21st Boor New York NY 10017 or by calling us at 212 446-1410
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ITEM 1A Risk Factors

Risks Related to Our Business

Adverse economic and geopolitical conditions and disruptions in the credit markets could have material adverse

effect on our results of operationsfinancial condition and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders

Our business has been and may continue to be affected by market and economic challenges experienced by the

global economy or real estate industry as whole or by the local economic conditions in the markets where our

properties may be located including the current dislocations in the credit markets and general global economic

recession These current conditions or similar conditions existing in the future may adversely affect our results of

operations financial condition and ability to pay distributions as result of the following among other potential

consequences

the financial condition of our borrowers tenants and operators may be adversely affected which may result in

defaults under loans or leases due to bankruptcy lack of liquidity operational failures or for other reasons

foreclosures and losses on our healthcare-related real estate investments and mortgage loan investment could

be higher than those generally experienced in the mortgage lending industry because portion of the

investments we make may be subordinate to other creditors

our loan-to-value ratio of loans that we have previously extended would increase and our collateral coverage

would weaken and increase the possibility of loss in the event of borrower default if there is material decline

in real estate values

our ability to borrow on terms and conditions that we find acceptable or at all may be limited which could

reduce our ability to refinance existing debt reduce our returns from our acquisition activities and increase our

future interest expense and

reduced values of our properties may limit our ability to dispose of assets at attractive prices or to obtain debt

financing secured by our properties and may reduce the availability of unsecured loans

We are dependent upon our senior management and TREJT for our success and may not find suitable replacements

if such key personnel are no longer available to us and/or the services agreement with TREIT is terminated

We currently have five employees and share office space with TRE1T located at 780 Third Avenue in New York

City We are reliant on our executive officers employees and TREIT to conduct our day-to-day operations and depend

on their diligence skill and network of business contacts Our executive officers and employees monitor our

investments While we have entered into employment agreements with our executive officers and three years

services agreement with automatic one-year renewals with TREIT the departure of significant number of our

professionals significant number of professionals of TREIT and/or termination of the services agreement with

TREIT could have material adverse effect on our performance

We may be unable to generate sufficient revenue from operations to pay our operating expenses and to make

distributions to our stockholders

As REIT we generally are required to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income each year to our

stockholders and we intend to pay quarterly dividends to our stockholders such that we distribute all or substantially

all of our taxable income each year subject to certain adjustments and sufficient available cash However our ability to

pay dividends may be adversely affected by the risk factors described in this document In the event of downturn in

our operating results and financial performance or unanticipated declines in the value of our asset portfolio we may be

unable to pay quarterly dividends to our stockholders The timing and amount of our dividends are in the sole

discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon among other factors our earnings financial condition

maintenance of our REIT qualification and other tax considerations and capital expenditure requirements in each case

as our board of directors may deem relevant from time to time
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Among the factors that could adversely affect our results of operations and impair our ability to pay dividends to

our stockholders are

the profitability of our investments

defaults in our asset portfolio or decreases in the value of our portfolio and

the fact that anticipated operating expense levels may not prove accurate as actual results may vary from

estimates

change in any one of these factors could affect our ability to pay dividends We cannot assure our stockholders

that we will be able to pay dividends in the future or that the level of any dividends we pay will increase over time

In addition dividends paid to stockholders are generally taxable to our stockholders as ordinary income but

portion of our dividends may be designated by us as long-term capital gains to the extent they are attributable to capital

gain income recognized by us or may constitute return of capital to the extent they exceed our earnings and profits as

determined for tax purposes Distributions in excess of our earnings and profits generally may be tax-free to the extent of

each stockholders basis in our common stock and generally maybe treated as capital gain if they are in excess of basis

We may be unable to relist our shares on the New York Stock Exchange or another major stock exchange

Due to the high percentage of our common stock which was tendered in conjunction with acquisition by Tiptree of

its approximately 92.2% ownership interest in Care the number of our common shares which remained publicly held fell

below 600000 As result the New York Stock Exchange NYSE suspended trading in our stock as of the close of

business on August 26 2010 In order to address this issue the Company took the following steps

We declared three for two stock split in order to increase the number of publicly held shares above the

NYSE threshold of 600000 shares

We applied for and were approved for listing on the OTCQX the highest tier of the OTC market and

We filed an appeal with the NYSE

On October 21 of last year the NYSE denied our appeal and affirmed its decision to delist our common stock Our

common stock continues to trade on the OTCQX under the ticker CVTR At this time it is not possible to determine if or

when we will apply for relisting with the NYSE or another major stock exchange or whether such application would be

accepted As result our stockholders may find it more difficult to dispose of or obtain accurate quotations as to the

market value of our common stock and the ability of our stockholders to sell our securities in the secondary market may
be materially limited

Other Risks

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to take action against our directors and officers are limited which

could limit our stockholders recourse in the event of actions not in our stockholders best interests

Our charter limits the liability of our directors and officers to us and our stockholders- for money damages except

for liability resulting from

actual receipt of an improper benefit or profit in money property or services or

final judgment based upon finding of active and deliberate dishonesty by the director or officer that was

material to the cause of action adjudicated

In addition our charter permits us to agree to indemnify our present and former directors and officers for actions

taken by them in those capacities to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law Our bylaws require us to indemnify

each present or former director or officer to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law in the
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defense of any proceeding to which he or she is made or threatened to be made party by reason of his or her service

to us In addition we may be obligated to fund the defense costs incurred by our directors and officers

Compliance with our In vestment Company Act exemption imposes limits on our operations

We conduct our operations so as not to become regulated as an investment company under the Investment

Company Act of 1940 as amended the Investment Company Act We rely on an exemption from registration under

Section 3c5C of the Investment Company Act which generally means that at least 55% of our portfolio must be

comprised of qualifying real estate assets and at least another 25% of our portfolio must be comprised of additional

qualifying real estate assets and real estate-related assets

Rapid changes in the market value or income from our real estate-related investments or non-qualifying assets may
make it more difficult for us to maintain our status as REIT or exemption from the In vestment Company Act

If the market value or income potential of real estate-related investments declines as result of change in interest

rates prepayment rates or other factors we may need to increase our real estate investments and income and/or

liquidate our non-qualifying assets in order to maintain our REIT status or exemption from the Investment Company

Act If the decline in real estate asset values and/or the decline in qualifying REIT income occur quickly it may be

especially difficult to maintain REIT status These risks may be exacerbated by the illiquid nature of both real estate and

non-real estate assets that we may own We may have to make investment decisions that we would not make absent the

REIT and Investment Company Act considerations

Liability relating to environmental matters may decrease the value of the underlying properties

Under various federal state and local laws an owner or operator of real property may become liable for the costs of

cleanup of certain hazardous substances released on or under its property Such laws often impose liability without

regard to whether the owner or operator knew of or was responsible for the release of such hazardous substances The

presence of hazardous substances may adversely affect an owners ability to sell real estate or borrow using real estate

as collateral To the extent that any of our owned real estate encounter such environmental issues it may adversely

affect the value of such real estate Further in regard to any mortgage investment if owner of the underlying property

becomes liable for cleanup costs the ability of the owner to make debt payments may be reduced which in turn may

adversely affect the value of the relevant mortgage asset held by us In addition in certain instances we may be liable

for the cost of any required remediation or clean-up

We are highly dependent on information systems and systems failures could significantly disrupt our business which

may in turn negatively affect the market price of our common stock and our ability to pay dividends

We are highly dependent on information systems and systems failures could significantly disrupt our business

which may inturn negatively affect the market price of our common stock and our ability to pay dividends

Our business is highly dependent on the communications and information systems Any failure or interruption of

these systems could cause delays or other problems in our securities trading activities which could have material

adverse effect on our operating results and negatively affect the market price of our common stock and our ability to

pay dividends

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may affect the real estate industry our profitability and the

marketfor our common stock

The terrorist attacks on September 112001 disrupted the U.S financial markets including the real estate capital

markets and negatively impacted the U.S economy in general Any future terrorist attacks the anticipation of any such

attacks the consequences of any military or other response by the U.S and its allies and other armed conflicts could

cause consumer confidence and spending to decrease or result in increased volatility in the United States and

worldwide financial markets and economy The economic impact of any such future events could also adversely affect

the credit quality of some of our investments and loans and the property underlying our securities
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We may suffer losses as result of the adverse impact of any future attacks and these losses may adversely impact

our performance and revenues and may result in volatility of the value of our securities prolonged economic

slowdown recession or declining real estate values could impair the performance of our investments and harm our

financial condition increase our funding costs limit our access to the capital markets or result in decision by lenders

not to extend credit to us We cannot predict the severity of the effect that potential future terrorist attacks would have

on our business Losses resulting from these types of events may not be fully insurable

In addition the events of September 11 2001 created significant uncertainty regarding the ability of real estate

owners of high profile assets to obtain insurance coverage protecting against terrorist attacks at commercially

reasonable rates if at all With the enactment of the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 or TRIA and the subsequent

enactment of the Terrorism Risk Insurance Extension Act of 2005 which extended TRIA through the end of 2007

insurers must make terrorism insurance available under their property and casualty insurance policies but this

legislation does not regulate the pricing of such insurance The absence of affordable insurance coverage may
adversely affect the general real estate lending market lending volume and the markets overall liquidity and may reduce

the number of suitable investment opportunities available to us and the pace at which we are able to make investments

If the properties in which we invest are unable to obtain affordable insurance coverage the value of those investments

could decline and in the event of an uninsured loss we could lose all or portion of our investment

Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest and Our Relationship with TREIT

The services agreement was not negotiated on an arms-length basis As result the terms including fees payable

may not be as favorable to us as if it was negotiated with an unaffiliated third party

The management agreement between Care and TREIT was negotiated between related parties As result we did

not have the benefit of arms-length negotiations of the type normally conducted with an unaffihiated third party and the

terms including fees payable may not be as favorable to us as if we did engage in negotiations with an unaffihiated

third party We may choose not to enforce or to enforce less vigorously our rights under the services agreement

because of our desire to maintain our ongoing relationship with TREIT and Tiptree

Risks Relating to the Healthcare Industry

Our investments are expected to be concentrated in healthcare facilities and healthcare-related assets making us

more vulnerable economically than if our investments were more diversified

We own interests in healthcare facilities as well as provide financing for healthcare businesses downturn in the

healthcare industry or the economy generally could negatively affect our borrowers or tenants ability to make

payments to us and consequently our ability to meet debt service obligations or make distributions to our

stockholders These adverse effects could be more pronounced than if we diversified our investments outside of

healthcare facilities

Furthermore some of our tenants and operators in the healthcare industry are heavily dependent on

reimbursements from the Medicare and Medicaid programs for the bulk of their revenues Our tenants and borrowers

dependence on reimbursement revenues from government payor programs could cause us to suffer losses in several

instances including the following

If our tenants or operators fail to comply with operational covenants and other regulations imposed by these

programs they may lose their eligibility to continue to receive reimbursements under the programs or incur

monetary penalties either of which could result in the tenants or operators inability to make scheduled

payments to us

If reimbursement rates do not keep pace with increasing costs of services to eligible recipients or funding levels

decrease as result of reductions required by the Affordable Care Act or other legislation state budget crises or

increasing pressures from Medicare and Medicaid to control healthcare costs our tenants and operators may

not be able to generate adequate revenues to satisfy their obligations to us
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If healthcare tenant or operator were to default on its obligation to us we would be unable to invoke our rights

to the pledged receivables directly as the law prohibits payment of amounts owed to healthcare providers under

the Medicare and Medicaid programs to be directed to any entity other than the actual providers Consequently

we would need court order to force collection directly against these governmental payors There is no

assurance that we would be successful in obtaining this type of court order

The healthcare industry continues to face various challenges including increased government and private payor

pressure on healthcare providers to control or reduce costs and increasing competition for patients among healthcare

providers in areas with significant unused capacity We believe that certain of our tenants or operators will continue to

experience shift in payor mix away from fee-for-service payors if any resulting in an increase in the percentage of

revenues attributable to managed care payors and government payors The general pressure to control healthcare costs

and shift away from traditional health insurance reimbursement have resulted in an increase in the number of patients

whose healthcare coverage is provided under managed care plans such as health maintenance organizations and

preferred provider organizations The Affordable Care Act while mandating insurance coverage continues this overall

trend through the creation of government sponsored and subsidized insurance providers The implementation of the

Affordable Care Act and the overall aging of the population could further increase the number and magnitude of

governmental payor programs We anticipate marked increase in the number of patients reliant on healthcare coverage

provided by governmental payors which in the case of skilled nursing facilities is already significant These changes

could have material adverse effect on the financial condition of some or all of our tenants or operators which could

have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations and could negatively affect our ability

to make distributions to our stockholders

The healthcare industry is heavily regulated and existing and new laws or regulations changes to existing laws or

regulations loss of licensure or certification or failure to obtain licensure or certification could result in the

inability of our borrowers operators or tenants to make payments to us

The healthcare industry is highly regulated by federal state and local laws and is directly affected by federal

conditions of participation state licensing requirements facility inspections and audits state and federal reimbursement

policies regulations concerning capital and other expenditures certification requirements and other such laws

regulations and rules In addition establishment of healthcare facilities and transfers of operations of healthcare

facilities are subject to regulatory approvals not required for establishment of or transfers of other types of commercial

operations and real estate Sanctions for failure to comply with these regulations and laws include but are not limited to

loss of or inability to obtain licensure fines and loss of or inability to obtain certification to participate in the Medicare

and Medicaid programs as well as potential criminal penalties The failure of tenants or operators to comply with such

laws requirements and regulations could affect their ability to establish or continue operations and could adversely

affect the ability to make payments to us which could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and

results of operations and could negatively affect our ability to make distributions to our stockholders In addition

restrictions and delays in transferring the operations of healthcare facilities in obtaining new third-party payor

contracts including Medicare and Medicaid provider agreements and in receiving licensure and certification approval

from appropriate state and federal agencies by new tenants or operators may affect the ability of our operators tenants

or borrowers to make payments to us Furthermore these matters may affect new tenants or operators ability to obtain

reimbursement for services rendered which could adversely affect the ability of our tenants or operators to pay rent to

us and to pay principal and interest on their loans from us

Our tenants and operators are subject to fraud and abuse laws the violation of which by tenant or operator may

jeopardize the tenants or operators ability to make payments to us

The federal government and numerous state governments have passed laws and regulations that attempt to

eliminate healthcare fraud and abuse by prohibiting business arrangements that induce patient referrals or

inappropriately influence the ordering of specific ancillary services In addition numerous federal laws have continued

to strengthen the federal fraud and abuse laws to provide for broader interpretations of prohibited conduct and stiffer

penalties for violations Violations of these laws may result in the imposition of criminal and civil penalties including

possible exclusion from federal and state healthcare programs Imposition of any of these
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penalties upon any of our tenants or borrowers could jeopardize their ability to operate facility or to make payments

thereby potentially adversely affecting us

In the past several years federal and state governments have significantly increased investigation and

enforcement activity to detect and eliminate fraud and abuse in the Medicare and Medicaid programs In addition

legislation and regulations have been adopted at both state and federal levels which severely restricts the ability of

physicians to refer patients to entities in which they have financial interest It is anticipated that the trend toward

increased investigation and enforcement activity in the area of fraud and abuse as well as self-referrals will continue in

future years and could adversely affect our prospective tenants or operators and their operations and in turn their

ability to make payments to us

Operators are faced with increased litigation and rising insurance costs that may affect their ability to make their

lease or mortgage payments

In some states advocacy groups have been created to monitor the quality of care at healtheare facilities and these

groups have brought litigation against operators Also in several instances private litigation by patients has

succeeded in winning very large damage awards for alleged abuses The effect of this litigation and potential litigation

has been to materially increase the costs of monitoring and reporting quality of care compliance incurred by operators

In addition the cost of liability and medical malpractice insurance has increased and may continue to increase so long

as the present litigation environment affecting the operations of healtheare facilities continues Continued cost

increases could cause our operators to be unable to make their lease or mortgage payments potentially decreasing our

revenue and increasing our collection and litigation costs Moreover to the extent we are required to take back the

affected facilities our revenue from those facilities could be reduced or eliminated for an extended period of time

Transfers of healthcare facilities generally require regulatory approvals and alternative uses of healthcare

facilities are limited

Because transfers of healthcare facilities may be subject to regulatory approvals not required for transfers of other

types of commercial operations and other types of real estate there may be delays in transferring operations of our

facilities to successor operators or we may be prohibited from transferring operations to successor operator In

addition substantially all of the properties that we may acquire or that will secure our loans will be healthcare facilities

that may not be easily adapted to non-healthcare related uses If we are unable to transfer properties at times opportune

to us our revenue and operations may suffer

Economic crisis generally and its affect on state budgets could result in decrease in Medicare and Medicaid

reimbursement levels

The current economic crisis is having widespread impact both nationally and at the state level Healtheare

facilities are not immune from the impact of the economic crisis Specifically revenues at all healtheare or related

facilities may be impacted as result of individuals forgoing or decreasing utilization of healtheare services or delaying

moves to independent living facilities assisted living facilities or nursing homes Furthermore the Federal government

may seek to further reduce payments under the Medicare and Medicaid programs in order to pay for stimulus programs

assisting the financial sector or other businesses Finally many states are facing severe budget short-falls and in some

eases facing bankruptcy which could result in decrease in funding made available for the Medicaid program and

decrease in reimbursement rates for nursing home facilities assisted living facilities and other healthcare facilities To

the extent that there is decrease in utilization of tenants or operators healtheare facilities or reduction in funds

available for the Medicare or Medicaid programs tenants and operators may not have sufficient revenues to pay rent or

debt service to us or may be forced to discontinue operations In either ease our revenues and operations could be

adversely affected
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Risks Related to Our Investments

Since real estate investments are illiquid we may not be able to sell properties when we desire to do so

Real estate investments generally cannot be sold quickly We may not be able to vary our owned real estate

portfolio promptly in response to changes in the real estate market This inability to respond to changes in the

performance of our owned real estate investments could adversely affect our ability to service our debt The real estate

market is affected by many factors that are beyond our control including

adverse changes in national and local economic and market conditions

changes in interest rates and in the availability costs and terms of financing

changes in governmental laws and regulations fiscal policies and zoning and other ordinances and costs of

compliance with laws and regulations

the ongoing need for capital improvements particularly in older structures

changes in operating expenses and

civil unrest acts of war and natural disasters including earthquakes and floods which may result in uninsured

and underinsured losses

Because of the unique and specific improvements required for healthcare facilities we may be required to incur

substantial renovation costs to make certain of our properties suitable for other tenants and operators which could

have material adverse affect on our business results of operations and financial condition

Healthcare facilities are typically highly customized and may not be easily adapted to non-healthcare-related uses

The improvements generally required to conform property to healthcare use such as upgrading electrical gas and

plumbing infrastructure are costly and often times tenant-specific new or replacement tenant or operator may require

different features in property depending on that tenants or operators particular operations If current tenant or

operator is unable to pay rent and vacates property we may incur substantial expenditures to modify property for

new tenant or for multiple tenants with varying infrastructure requirements before we are able to re-lease the space to

another tenant or alternatively receive lower proceeds on sale Consequently our properties may not be suitable for

lease to traditional office or other healthcare tenants without significant expenditures or renovations which costs may
have material adverse affect on our business results of operations and financial condition

Our use ofjoint ventures may limit our flexibility with respect to such jointly owned investments and could thereby

have material adverse affect on our business results of operations and financial condition REIT status and our

ability to sell these joint venture interests

We have invested in joint ventures with other persons or entities when circumstances warrant the use of these

structures and may invest in additional joint ventures We currently have two joint ventures that are not consolidated

as part of our financial statements Our aggregate investments in these joint ventures represented approximately 23.5%

of our total assets at December 31 2010 Our participation in joint ventures is subject to the risks that

we could experience an impasse on certain decisions because we do not have sole decision-making authority

which could require us to expend additional resources on resolving such impasses or potential disputes

our joint venture partners could have investment goals that are not consistent with our investment objectives

including the timing terms and strategies for any investments

ourjoint venture partners might become bankrupt fail to fund their share of required capital contributions or fail

to fulfill their obligations as joint venture partners which may require us to infuse our own capital into such

ventures on behalf of the joint venture partners despite other competing uses for such capital

our joint venture partners may have competing interests in our markets that could create conflict of interest

issues

income and assets owned through joint-venture entities may affect our ability to satisfy requirements related to

maintaining our REIT status
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any sale or other disposition of our interest in either or both joint venture may require lender consents and we

may not be able to obtain such consents or approvals

such transactions may also trigger other contractual rights held by joint venture partner lender or other third

party depending on how the proposed sale is structured and

there may be disagreements as to whether consents and/or approvals are required in connection with the

consummation of particular transaction with joint venture partner lender and/or other third party or whether

such transaction triggers other contractual rights held by joint venture partner lender and/or other third party

and in either case those disagreements may result in litigation

We have not filed and may not be able to file required audited financial statements for certain non-consolidated

subsidiaries

We have been unable to obtain audited financials for certain of the Cambridge entities that may be required by

Rule 09 of the SECs Regulation S-X due to our ongoing litigation with our joint venture partner If we are required to

file audited financial statements for any such non-consolidated entity which we are continuing to evaluate our failure

to file any such financial statements with this 10-K filing will result in this filing being incomplete

Preferred equity investments involve greater risk of loss than conventional debt financing

We have invested in preferred equity investments and may invest in additional preferred equity investments

While having many attributes which are similar to debt investments our preferred equity investments involve higher

degree of risk than conventional debt financing due to variety of factors including that such investments are

subordinate to all of the issuers loans and are not directly secured by property underlying the investment Furthermore

should the issuer of our preferred investment default on our investment we would only be able to proceed against the

entity in which we have an interest and not the property underlying our investment As result we may not recover

some or all of our investment

Our investments in debt instruments are subject to specific risks relating to the particular obligor of such instrument

and to the general risks of investing in subordinated real estate instruments

We hold debt instruments of healthcare-related issuers Our investments in debt instruments involve specific

risks Our investments in debt instruments are subject to risks that include

delinquency and foreclosure and losses in the event thereof

the dependence upon the successful operation of and net income from the underlying real property

risks generally incident to interests in real property and

risks that may be presented by the type and use of particular commercial property

Debt instruments may be unsecured and may also be subordinated to other obligations of the issuer We may also

invest in debt instruments that are unrated and/or rated below investment grade As result investments in debt

instruments are also subject to risks of

limited liquidity in the secondary trading market

substantial market price volatility resulting from changes in prevailing interest rates

subordination to the prior claims of banks and other senior lenders to the issuer

the operation of mandatory sinking fund or call/redemption provisions during periods of declining interest rates

that could require us to reinvest premature redemption proceeds in lower yielding assets

the possibility that earnings of the debt instrument issuer may be insufficient to meet its debt service and

the declining creditworthiness and potential for insolvency of the issuer of such debt instruments during

periods of rising interest rates and economic downturn
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These risks may adversely affect the value of outstanding debt instruments and the ability of the issuers thereof to

repay principal and interest

Our investments will be subject to risks particular to realproperty

Our remaining loan is directly secured by lien on real property that in the event of foreclosure could result in

our acquiring ownership of the property Investments in real property or real property-related assets are subject to

varying degrees of risk The value of each property is affected significantly by its ability to generate cash flow and net

income which in turn depends on the amount of rental or other income that can be generated net of expenses incurred

with respect to the property The rental or other income from these properties may be adversely affected by number of

risks including

acts of God including hurricanes earthquakes floods and other natural disasters which may result in uninsured

losses

acts of war or terrorism including the consequences of terrorist attacks such as those that occurred on

September 112001

adverse changes in national and local economic and real estate conditions including business layoffs or

downsizing industry slowdowns changing demographics

an oversupply of or reduction in demand for space in properties in geographic areas where our investments

are concentrated and the attractiveness of particular properties to prospective tenants

changes in governmental laws and regulations fiscal policies and zoning ordinances and the related costs of

compliance therewith and the potential for liability under applicable laws and

costs of remediation and liabilities associated with environmental conditions such as indoor mold and the

potential for uninsured or underinsured property losses

Many expenditures associated with properties such as operating expenses and capital expenditures cannot be

reduced when there is reduction in income from the properties Adverse changes in these factors may have material

adverse effect on the ability of our borrowers to pay their loans as well as on the value that we can realize from

properties we own or acquire and may reduce or eliminate our ability to make distributions to stockholders

The bankruptcy insolvency or financial deterioration of our facility operators or tenants could significantly delay

our ability to collect unpaid rents or require us to find new operators

Our financial position and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders may be adversely affected by

financial difficulties experienced by any of our major operators or tenants including bankruptcy insolvency or general

downturn in their business or in the event any of our major operators or tenants do not renew or extend their

relationship with us as their lease terms expire

The healthcare industry is highly competitive and we expect that it may become more competitive in the future Our

operators and tenants are subject to competition from other hcalthcare providers that provide similar services The

profitability of healthcare facilities depends upon several factors including the number of physicians using the

healthcarc facilities or referring patients to it competitive systems of healthcare delivery operating margins and the size

and composition of the population in the surrounding area Private federal and state payment programs remain under

pressure
Such pressure combined with the expansion of other laws and regulations may also have significant

influence on the revenues and income of the properties If our operators or tenants are not competitive with other

healthcare providers and are unable to generate sufficient income they may be unable to make rent and loan payments

to us which could adversely affect our cash flow and financial performance and condition

We are exposed to the risk that our operators and tenants may not be able to meet their obligations which may

result in their bankruptcy or insolvency The bankruptcy laws afford certain rights and protections to party that has

filed for hankruptcy or reorganization and our right to terminate an investment evict an operator or tenant demand

immediate repayment and other remedies under our leases and loans may be limited to bankruptcy proceeding
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and therefore not protect us An operator or tenant in bankruptcy may be able to restrict our ability to collect unpaid

rents or interest during its bankruptcy proceeding

Volatility of values of commercial prop erties may adversely affect our loans and investments

Commercial property values and net operating income derived from such properties are subject to volatility and

may be affected adversely by number of factors including but not limited to national regional and local economic

conditions which may be affected adversely by industry slowdowns and other factors negative changes or continued

weakness in specific industry segments construction quality age and design demographics retroactive changes to

building or similar codes and increases in operating expenses such as energy costs In the event propertys net

operating income decreases an operator or borrower may have difficulty fulfilling its obligations which could result in

losses to us In addition decreases in property values reduce the value of the collateral and the potential proceeds

available to an operator or borrower to satisfy its obligations which could also cause us to suffer losses

Insurance on the real estate underlying our investments may not cover all losses

There are certain types of losses generally of catastrophic nature such as earthquakes floods hurricanes

terrorism or acts of war that may be uninsurable or not economically insurable Inflation changes in building codes and

ordinances environmental considerations and other factors including terrorism or acts of war also might make the

insurance proceeds insufficient to repair or replace property if it is damaged or destroyed Under such circumstances

the insurance proceeds received might not be adequate to restore our economic position with respect to the affected

real property Any uninsured loss could result in both loss of cash flow from and the asset value of the affected

property

Our due diligence may not reveal all of an entitys or borrowers liabilities and may not reveal other weaknesses in

its business

Before investing in an entity or making loan to borrower we assess the strength and skills of such entitys

management and other factors that we believe are material to the performance of the investment In making the

assessment and otherwise conducting customary due diligence we rely on the resources available to us and in some

cases an investigation by third parties This process is particularly important and subjective with respect to newly

organized entities because there may be little or no information publicly available about the entities There can be no

assurance that our due diligence processes have uncovered all relevant facts or that any investment will be successful

Interest rate fluctuations may adversely affect the value of our assets net income and common stock

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond our control including governmental monetary and tax

policies domestic and international economic and political considerations commodity pricing and other such factors

Interest rate fluctuations present variety of risks including the risk of mismatch between asset yields and borrowing

rates variances in the yield curve and fluctuating prepayment rates that may adversely affect our income and as

result the value of our common stock

Our remaining mortgage loan consists of two variable rate instruments which bear interest at stated spreads over

one-month LIBOR and which we funded with equity In periods of declining interest rates our interest income on loans

will be adversely affected The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code exclude income on asset hedges from

qualifying as income derived from real estate activities Accordingly our ability to hedge interest rate risk on portfolio

of assets funded principally by equity is limited

Prepayment rates can increase adversely affecting yields

The value of our assets may be affected by prepayment rates on mortgage loans Prepayment rates on loans are

influenced by changes in current interest rates on adjustable-rate and fixed-rate mortgage loans and variety of

economic geographic and other factors beyond our control Consequently such prepayment rates cannot be predicted

with certainty and no strategy can completely insulate us from prepayment or other such risks In periods
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of declining interest rates prepayments on loans generally increase If general interest rates decline as well the

proceeds of such prepayments received during such periods are likely to be reinvested by us in assets yielding less

than the yields on the assets that were prepaid In addition the market value of the assets may because of the risk of

prepayment benefit less than other fixed income securities from declining interest rates Under certain interest rate and

prepayment scenarios we may fail to fully recoup our cost of acquisition of certain investments Commercial loans oftern

require payments of prepayment fees upon prepayment or maturity of the investment We may not be able to structure

future investments that contain similar prepayment penalties

The lack of liquidity in our investments may harm our business

We may subject to maintaining our REIT qualification and our exemption from regulation under the Investment

Company Act make investments in instruments that are not publicly traded These instruments may be subject to legal

and other restrictions on resale or will otherwise be less liquid than publicly traded securities The illiquidity of our

investments may make it difficult for us to sell such investments if the need arises

Federal Income Tax Risks

Loss of our status as REJT would have significant adverse consequences to us and the value of our common stock

If we lose our status as REIT we will face serious tax consequences that may substantially reduce the funds

available for satisfying our obligations and for distribution to our stockholders for each of the years
involved because

We would be subject to federal income tax as regular corporation and could face substantial tax liability

We would not be allowed deduction for dividends paid to stockholders in computing our taxable income and

would be subject to federal income tax at regular corporate rates

We also could be subject to the federal alternative minimum tax and possibly increased state and local taxes

Corporate subsidiaries could be treated as separate taxable corporations for U.S federal income tax purposes

Any resulting corporate tax liability could be substantial and could reduce the amount of cash available for

distribution to our stockholders which in turn could have an adverse impact on the value of and trading prices

for our common stock and

Unless we are entitled to relief under statutory provisions we will not be able to elect REIT status for four

taxable years following the year during which we were disqualified

In addition if we fail to qualify as REIT all distributions to stockholders would continue to be treated as

dividends to the extent of our current and accumulated earning and profits although corporate stockholders may be

eligible for the dividends received deduction and individual stockholders may be eligible for taxation at the rates

generally applicable to long-term capital gains currently at maximum rate of 15% with respect to dividend

distributions We would no longer be required to pay dividends to maintain REIT status

Our ability to satisfy certain REIT qualification tests depends upon our analysis of the characterization and fair

market values of our assets some of which are not susceptible to precise determination and for which we will not

obtain independent appraisals Our compliance with the REIT income and quarterly asset requirements also depends

upon our ability to successfully manage the composition of our income and assets on an ongoing basis Moreover the

proper classification of an instrument as debt or equity for federal income tax purposes and the tax treatment of

participation interests that we hold in mortgage loans may be uncertain in some circumstances which could affect the

application of the REIT qualification requirements as described below Accordingly there can be no assurance that the

IRS will not contend that our interests in subsidiaries or other issuers will not cause violation of the REIT

requirements Furthermore as result of these factors our failure to qualify as REIT also could impair our ability to

implement our business strategy Although we believe that we qualify as REIT we cannot assure our stockholders

that we will continue to qualify or remain qualified as REIT for tax purposes
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The 90% distribution requirement under the REIT tax rules will decrease our liquidity impact our flexibility and

may force us to engage in transactions that may not be consistent with our business plan

To comply with the 90% REIT taxable income distributioa requirement applicable to REITs and to avoid

nondeductible 4% excise tax if the actual amount that we pay out to our stockholders in calendar year is less than

minimum amount specified under federal tax laws we must make distributions to our stockholders For distributions with

respect to taxable years ending on or before December 31 2011 recent Internal Revenue Service guidance allows us to

satisfy up to 90% of these requirements through the distribution of shares of Care common stock if certain conditions

are met Although we anticipate that we generally will have sufficient cash or liquid assets to enable us to satisfy the

REIT distribution requirement it is possible that from time to time we may not have sufficient cash or other liquid

assets to meet the 90% distribution requirement or we may decide to retain cash or distribute such greater amount as

may be necessary to avoid income and excise taxation This may be due to the timing differences between the actual

receipt of income and actual payment of deductible expenses and the inclusion of that income and deduction of those

expenses in arriving at our taxable income in different periods or taxable years In addition non-deductible expenses

such as principal amortization or repayments or capital expenditures in excess of non-cash deductions also may cause

us to fail to have sufficient cash or liquid assets to enable us to satisfy the 90% distribution requirement

In the event that timing differences occur or we deem it appropriate to retain cash we may borrow funds issue

additional equity securities although we cannot assure our stockholders that we will be able to do so pay taxable

stock dividends if possible distribute other property or securities or engage in transaction intended to enable us to

meet the REIT distribution requirements This may require us to raise additional capital to meet our obligations Taking

such action may not be consistent with our business plan may increase our costs and may limit our ability to grow

Qualifying as REIT involves highly technical and complex provisions of the Internal Revenue Code

Qualification as REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex Code provisions for which there

are only limited judicial and administrative interpretations The determination of various factual matters and

circumstances not entirely within our control may affect our ability to remain qualified as REIT Our continued

qualification as REIT will depend on our satisfaction of certain asset income organizational distribution stockholder

ownership and other requirements on continuing basis In addition our ability to satisfy the requirements to qualify as

REIT depends in part on the actions of third parties over which we have no control or only limited influence including

in cases where we own an equity interest in an entity that is classified as partnership for U.S federal income tax

purposes

New legislation or administrative orfudicial action in each instance potentially with retroactive effect could make

it more difficult or impossible for us to qualify as REIT

The present federal income tax treatment of REITs may be modified possibly with retroactive effect by legislative

judicial or administrative action at any time which could affect the federal income tax treatment of an investment in us

The federal income tax rules that affect REITs are constantly under review by persons involved in the legislative

process the IRS and the U.S Treasury Department which results in statutory changes as well as frequent revisions to

regulations and interpretations

On July 30 2008 the Housing and Economic Recovery Tax Act of 2008 the 2008 Act was enacted into law The

2008 Acts sections that affect the REIT provisions of the Code are generally effective for taxable years beginning after

its date of enactment and for us will generally mean that the new provisions apply from and after January 2009 except

as otherwise indicated below

The 2008 Act made the following changes to or clarifications of the REIT provisions of the Code that could be

relevant for us

Taxable REIT Subsidiaries The limit on the value of taxable REIT subsidiaries securities held by REIT was

increased from 20% to 25% of the total value of such REITs assets
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Rental Income from TRS RUT is generally limited in its ability to earn qualifying rental income from TRS
The 2008 Act permits REIT to earn qualifying rental income from the lease of qualified healthcare property to

TRS if an eligible independent contractor operates the property

Expanded Prohibited Transactions Safe Harbor The safe harbor from the prohibited transactions tax for

certain sales of real estate assets was expanded by reducing the required minimum holding period from four

years to two years among other changes

Hedging Income Income from hedging transaction entered into after July 30 2008 that complies with

identification procedures set out in U.S Treasury Regulations and hedges indebtedness incurred or to be

incurred by us to acquire or carry real estate assets will not constitute gross income for purposes of both the

75% and 95% gross income tests

ReclassWcation Authority The Secretary of the Treasury was given broad authority to determine whether

particular items of gain or income recognized after July 30 2008 qualify or not under the 75% and 95% gross

income tests or are to be excluded from the measure of gross income for such purposes

Revisions in federal tax laws and interpretations thereof could cause us to change our investments and

commitments and affect the tax consequences of an investment in us

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for the reduced tax rates available for some dividends

The maximum tax rate applicable to income from qualified dividends payable to domestic stockholders that are

individuals trusts and estates has been reduced by legislation to 15% through the end of 2011 Dividends payable by

REITs however generally are not eligible for the reduced rate Although this legislation does not adversely affect the

taxation of REITs or dividends payable by REITs the more favorable rate applicable to regular corporate qualified

dividends could cause investors who are individuals trusts and estates to perceive investments in REITs to be

relatively less attractive than investments in the stocks of non-REIT corporations that pay dividends which could

adversely affect the value of the stock of REITs including our common stock

The stock ownership limit imposed by the Internal Revenue Code for REJTs and our charter may restrict our

business combination opportunities

To qualify as REIT under the Code not more than 50% in value of our outstanding stock may be owned directly

or indirectly by five or fewer individuals as defined in the Internal Revenue Code to include certain entities at any time

during the last half of each taxable year after our first year
in which we qualify as REIT Our charter with certain

exceptions authorizes our board of directors to take the actions that are necessary and desirable to preserve our

qualification as REIT Unless an exemption is granted by our board of directors no person as defined to include

entities may own more than 9.8% in value or in number of shares whichever is more restrictive of our common or

capital stock In addition our charter generally prohibits beneficial or constructive ownership of shares of our capital

stock by any person that owns actually or constructively an interest in any of our tenants that would cause us to own
actually or constructively more than 9.9% interest in any of our tenants Our board of directors may grant an

exemption in its sole discretion subject to such conditions representations and undertakings as it may determine In

connection with the Tiptree transaction our board of directors also granted an exemption to Tiptree from the ownership

limitations in our charter

These ownership limitations in our charter are common in REIT charters and are intended to assist us in complying

with the tax law requirements and to minimize administrative burdens However these ownership limits might also delay

or prevent transaction or change in our control that might involve premium price for our common stock or

otherwise be in the best interest of our stockholders
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Even if we remain qualified as REIT we may face other tax liabilities that reduce our cash flow

Even if we remain qualified for taxation as REIT we may be subject to certain federal state and local taxes on our

income and assets including taxes on any undistributed income tax on income from some activities conducted as

result of foreclosure and state or local income property and transfer taxes including mortgage recording taxes In

addition in order to meet the REIT qualification requirements or to avert the imposition of 100% tax that applies to

certain gains derived by REIT from dealer property or inventory we may hold some of our non-healthcare assets

through taxable REIT subsidiaries or TRSs or other subsidiary corporations that will be subject to corporate-level

income tax at regular rates We will be subject to 100% penalty tax on certain amounts if the economic arrangements

among our tenants our IRS and us are not comparable to similar arrangements among unrelated parties Any of these

taxes would decrease cash available for distribution to our stockholders We currently do not have any TRSs

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to forgo otherwise attractive opportunities

To qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes we continually must satisfy tests concerning among other

things the sources of our income the nature and diversification of our assets the amounts we distribute to our

stockholders and the ownership of our stock We may be unable to pursue investments that would be otherwise

advantageous to us in order to satisfy the source-of-income asset-diversification or distribution requirements for

maintaining our status as REIT Thus compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to make certain

attractive investments

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to liquidate otherwise attractive investments

To qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes we must ensure that at the end of each calendar quarter at

least 75% of the value of our assets consists of cash cash items government securities and qualified REIT real estate

assets including certain mortgage loans and mortgage backed securities The remainder of our investment in securities

other than government securities and qualified real estate assets generally cannot include more than 10% of the

outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or more than 10% of the total value of the outstanding securities of any

one issuer In addition in general no more than 5% of the value of our assets other than government securities and

qualified real estate assets can consist of the securities of any one issuer and no more than 25% of the value of our

total securities can be represented by securities of one or more TRSs If we fail to comply with these requirements at the

end of any calendar quarter we must correct the failure within 30 days after the end of the calendar quarter or qualify for

certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losing our REIT status otherwise we will suffer adverse tax consequences

As result we may be required to liquidate from our portfolio otherwise attractive investments These actions could

have the effect of reducing our income and amounts available for distribution to our stockholders

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively

The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code substantially limit our ability to hedge our liabilities Any
income from hedging transaction we enter into to manage risk of interest rate changes or currency fluctuations with

respect to borrowings made or to be made to acquire or carry real estate assets does not constitute gross income for

purposes of the 95% or with respect to transactions entered into after July 30 2008 the 75% gross income test

provided that certain requirements are met To the extent that we enter into other types of hedging transactions the

income from those transactions is likely to be treated as non-qualifying income for purposes of both of the gross

income tests As result we might have to limit our use of advantageous hedging techniques or implement those

hedges through domestic TRSs This could increase the cost of our hedging activities because TRSs would be

subject to tax on gains or expose us to greater risks associated with changes in interest rates than we would otherwise

want to bear
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The tax on prohibited transactions will limit our ability to engage in transactions that would be treated as sales for

federal income tax purposes

REITs net income from prohibited transactions is subject to 100% tax In general prohibited transactions are

sales or other dispositions of property other than foreclosure property but including mortgage loans that are held

primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of our business We might be subject to this tax if we were to

syndicate or dispose of loans or other assets in manner that was treated as sale for federal income tax purposes

Therefore to avoid the prohibited transactions tax we may choose not to engage in certain sales at the REIT level even

though the sales otherwise might be beneficial to us

ITEM lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

ITEM Properties

Our offices are located at 780 Third Avenue in New York NY 10017 We entered into lease for this space in

August of 2010 and moved our operations there in January of 2011 Correspondence should be addressed to Care

Investment Trust Inc 780 Third Avenue 21st Floor New York NY 10017 We can be contacted at 212 446-1410

ITEM Legal Proceedings

Class-action litigation

On September 18 2007 class action complaint for violations of federal securities laws was filed in the

United States District Court Southern District of New York alleging that the Registration Statement relating to the initial

public offering of shares of our common stock filed on June 21 2007 failed to disclose that certain of the assets in the

contributed portfolio were materially impaired and overvalued and that we were experiencing increasing difficulty in

securing our warehouse financing lines On January 18 2008 the court entered an order appointing co-lead plaintiffs

and co-lead counsel On February 19 2008 the co-lead plaintiffs filed an amended complaint citing additional

evidentiary support for the allegations in the complaint We filed motion to dismiss the complaint on April 22 2008

The plaintiffs filed an opposition to our motion to dismiss on July 2008 to which we filed our reply on September 10

2008 On March 2009 the court denied our motion to dismiss Care filed its answer on April 15 2009 At conference

held on May 15 2009 the Court ordered the parties to make joint submission the Joint Statement setting forth

the specific statements that Plaintiffs claim are false and misleading ii the facts on which Plaintiffs rely as showing

each alleged misstatement was false and misleading and iii the facts on which Defendants rely as showing those

statements were true The parties filed the Joint Statement on June 32009 On July 312009 the parties entered into

stipulation that narrowed the scope of the proceeding to the single issue of the warehouse financing disclosure in the

Registration Statement Fact discovery closed on April 23 2010

Defendants filed motion for summary judgment on July 2010 By Opinion and Order dated December 22 2010

the Court granted Defendants summary judgment motion in its entirety and directed the Clerk of the Court to enter

judgment accordingly

On January 11 2011 the parties entered into stipulation ending the litigation In the stipulation Plaintiffs

waived any and all appeal rights that they have in the action including without limitation the right to appeal any

portion of the Courts Opinion and Order granting Defendants summary judgment or the judgment entered by the Clerk

ii Defendants waived any and all rights that they have to seek sanctions of any form against Plaintiffs or their counsel

in connection with the action and iiieach party agreed it would bear its own fees and costs in connection with the

action The stipulation was so ordered by the Court on January 122011 bringing the litigation to close
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Cambridge litigation

On November 25 2009 we filed lawsuit in the U.S District Court for the Northern District of Texas against

Mr Jean-Claude Saada and 13 entities controlled by him the Saada Parties with whom we are joint venture partners

in the ownership of nine medical office buildings in Texas and Louisiana the Cambridge Portfolio seeking

declaratory judgments that we have the right to engage in business combination transaction involving our

Company or sale of our wholly owned subsidiary that serves as the general partner of the joint venture partnership

that holds the direct investment in the Cambridge Portfolio without the approval of the Saada Parties ii the contractual

right of the Saada Parties to put their interests in the Cambridge medical office building portfolio has expired and

iii the operating partnership units held by the Saada Parties do not entitle them to receive any special cash

distributions made to our stockholders We also brought affirmative claims for tortious interference by the Saada Parties

with prospective contract and for their breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing

On January 27 2010 the Saada Parties answered our complaint and simultaneously filed counterclaims the

Counterclaims that named our subsidiaries ERC Sub LLC and ERC Sub L.P our then external manager CIT

Healthcare and then board chairman Flint Besecker as additional third-party defendants The Counterclaims seek

four declaratory judgments construing certain contracts among the parties in the manner directly opposed to the

construction sought by us in our declaratory judgment claims In addition the Counterclaims also seek monetary

damages for purported breaches of fiduciary duty and the duty of good faith and fair dealing as well as fraudulent

inducement against us and the third-party defendants jointly and severally

The Counterclaims further request indemnification by ERC Sub L.P pursuant to contract between the parties

and the imposition of constructive trust on our current assets to be disposed as part of any future liquidation of

Care including all proceeds from those assets Although the Counterclaims do not itemize their asserted damages they

assign these damages value of $100 million or more In addition the Saada Parties filed motion to dismiss our

tortious interference and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing claims on January 27 2010 In

response to the Counterclaims we filed on March 2010 an omnibus motion to dismiss all of the Counterclaims

On March 22 2010 we received letter from Cambridge Holdings which asserted that the transactions with Tiptree

were in violation of our agreements with the Saada Parties

The Saada Parties filed their opposition to our omnibus motion to dismiss on March 26 2010 and we filed our

response on April 2010

On April 14 2010 the Saada Parties motion to dismiss was denied and our motion to dismiss was also denied

On April 27 2010 we filed an answer to the Saada Parties third-party complaint We continue to believe that the

claims pursued and construction sought by Cambridge Holdings lack merit On May 28 2010 Cambridge Holdings filed

motion for leave to amend its previously-asserted Counterclaims and third-party complaint to include new claim for

breach of contract against Care This proposed new claim asserts that Cambridge Holdings and Care agreed in October

2009 upon sale of ERC Sub L.P.s 85% limited partnership interest in the Cambridge properties back to Cambridge

Holdings for $20 million in cash plus certain other arrangements involving the cancellation of operating partnership

units and existing escrow accounts The proposed new claim further asserts that Care reneged on this purported

agreement after having previously agreed to all of its material terms thus breaching the agreement Further the

proposed new claim seeks specific performance of the purported contract Care denies that any agreement of the sort

alleged by Cambridge Holdings was ever reached and Care also believes that the proposed new claim suffers from

several deficiencies Care filed its opposition on June 18 2010 and Cambridge Holdings replied on July 2010 In the

meantime on June 21 2010 ERC Sub L.P sought leave to amend its counterclaims to assert breach of contract action

against Cambridge Holdings Cambridge Holdings did not oppose ERC Sub L.P.s motion On August 2010 the Court

granted the Saada Parties motion for leave to amend and the Saada Parties filed their Amended Answer

Counterclaims and Third-Party Complaint on August 2010 On August 2010 the Court also granted ERC Sub L.P.s

unopposed motion for leave to amend and ERC Sub L.P filed its Amended Answer and Counterclaim on August

2010 The Saada Parties answered ERC Sub L.P.s Counterclaim on August 23 2010 Care moved to dismiss the Saada

Parties new breach-of-contract cause of action on August 18 2010 The Saada Parties
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responded on September 2010 and Care replied on September 14 2010 The court denied Cares motion to dismiss

without opinion on September 21 2010 Care answered the amended counterclaim on October 62010

On August 202010 pursuant to court order the parties jointly designated mediator On September 92010 the

parties filed joint motion asking the court to make certain scheduling modifications to limit litigation activity and

expense prior to the mediation including an extension of discovery deadlines The Court granted the motion on

September 14 2010 The parties held court-ordered mediation session on October 192010

To date the mediation discussions have been unsuccessful and the litigation is ongoing Due to the continuing

litigation we have been unable to obtain audited financial statements for certain of the Cambridge entities that may be

required by Rule 3-09 of the SECs Regulation S-X Rule 3-09 requires that registrants include in their Form 10-K audited

financial statements for certain significant non-consolidated subsidiaries as defined in Rule 3-09 Our inability to

include these audited financial statements in our Form 10-K will result in our filing being considered incomplete For

2009 the SEC granted us one year waiver with regard to this requirement due to the ongoing litigation

Accordingly we will continue to endeavor to obtain audited financial statements for the applicable Cambridge entities

in order to comply with SEC requirements but there is no certainty whether or when we will be able to obtain such

information

Care is not presently involved in any other material litigation nor to our knowledge is any material litigation

threatened against us or our investments other than routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of business

Management believes the costs if any incurred by us related to litigation will not materially affect our financial

position operating results or liquidity

Part II

ITEM Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Shares of our common stock began trading on The New York Stock Exchange on June 22 2007 under the symbol

CRE Following the completion of the Companys self-tender in August 2010 Cares publicly-held common stock fell

below 600000 shares to which the Company provided notice to the New York Stock Exchange NYSE The Company

announced three-for-two stock split on September 2010 in the form of stock dividend in order to increase its

publicly-held common stock above the 600000 share threshold The Company received letter dated August 27 2010

from the NYSE stating that the common stock of the Company was suspended from the NYSE as of market close on

August 26 2010 and ii an application by the NYSE to the SEC to delist the Companys common stock was pending

completion of applicable NYSE procedures which included the Companys right to appeal the New York Stock

Exchange Staffs decision The letter also stated that the NYSE decision was made after having received the final results

on the completion of the Companys self tender offer which confirmed that fewer than 600000 shares of the Companys
common stock remained publicly held

The Company appealed the NYSE Staffs decision In order to facilitate trading in its stock during the pendency of

the NYSE appeal process the Company sought and received approval for listing on the OTCQX US listing platform

On October 21 2010 the NYSE Regulation Inc Board of Directors Committee for Review rejected the Companys

appeal and affirmed the NYSE Staffs decision to delist the Companys common stock Subsequent to the NYSE ruling

the NYSE submitted notification of removal from listing to the SEC to delist the Companys common stock which was

filed on January 31 2011 The Company remains listed and trades on the OTCQX marketplace under the ticker symbol

CVTR

As of March 12011 there were shareholders of record and approximately 460 beneficial owners
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The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices per share of our common stock and the

distributions declared and paid per share on our common stock for the periods indicated

Dividends Dividends

2008 High Low Declared Paid

First Quarter $1123 $10.08 0.17 0.17

Second Quarter $11.50 9.43 0.17 0.17

Third Quarter $1100 8.80 0.17 0.17

Fourth Quarter $11.61 6.85 0.17 0.17

2009
______ ______ _________ _________

First Quarter 9.30 4.02 0.17

Second Quarter 6.33 4.90 0.17 0.17

Third Quarter $8.11 5.02 0.17 0.34

Fourth Quarter 855 7.05 0.17 0.17

2010
______ ______ _________ _________

First Quarter 9.02 7.74

Second Quarter 8.96 8.63

Third Quarter 8$9 4.4001

Fourth Quarter 5.151 4.151

The Company announced three for-two stock split on September 2010 prices represent post-split values

On March 25 2011 the closing sales price of our common stock was $5.10 per share Future distributions will be

declared and paid at the discretion of the board of directors See ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations Dividends for additional information regarding our dividends

On October 22 2008 we announced that the board of directors authorized the purchase from time to time of up
to 2000000 shares of our common stock On November 25 2008 we repurchased 1000000 shares of our common
stock from GoldenTree Asset Management LP at $8.33 per share and also paid GoldenTree the dividend of $0.17 per

share declared for the third quarter of 2008 During the fourth quarter of 2010 we did not repurchase any shares of

common stock pursuant to the previously announced repurchase program or otherwise

On March 16 2010 we entered into definitive purchase and sale agreement with Tiptree under which we agreed

to sell newly issued common stock to Tiptree at $9.00 per share and to launch cash tender offer to all of our

stockholders to purchase their common stock at $9.00 per share This transaction was completed on August 13 2010

resulting in change of control of the Company total of approximately 19.74 million shares of our common stock

representing approximately 97.4% of our outstanding common stock were tendered by our stockholders and

approximately 6.18 million of newly issued shares of our common stock representing approximately 92.2% of our

outstanding common stock after taking into consideration the effect of the tender offer were issued to Tiptree in

exchange for cash proceeds of approximately $55.7 million

The graph below compares the cumulative total return of Care adjusted to reflect three-for-two stock split

announced September 12010 the SP 500 the Dow Jones REIT Index and the Dow Jones Equity REIT Index
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from June 22 2007 commencement of operations to December 31 2010 Total return assumes quarterly reinvestment

of dividends before consideration of income taxes
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6265

62.17

4144

53.10
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Adjusted to reflect three-for-two stock split announced September 12010
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ITEM Selected Financial Data

Set forth below is our selected financial data for the years ended December 31 2010 December 31 2009 and

December 31 2008 Although our Company continues to exist as the same legal entity after the Tiptree Transaction as

result of the application of push-down accounting at August 13 2010 we are required to present consolidated financial

statements for the year ended December 31 2010 as Predecessor and Successor periods For more detailed

discussion of the Tiptree transaction see ITEM Business Overview Our predecessor periods relate to the

accounting periods preceding the Tiptree Transaction in which we applied historical basis of accounting Our

successor periods relate to the accounting periods following the Tiptree Transaction in which we have applied push

down accounting To enhance the comparability of our consolidated results we have mathematically combined our

predecessor consolidated results for the 224 days ended August 12 2010 and our successor consolidated results for

the 141 days ended December 31 2010 Although this presentation does not comply with GAAP we believe it provides

the most meaningful comparison of our consolidated results for the year ended December 31 2Q10 because it allows us

to compare our consolidated results over equivalent periods of time Although we believe the foregoing presentation

provides the most meaningful presentation for comparing our results for such period you should nonetheless bear in

mind that the consolidated financial statements for our predecessor and successor periods have been prepared using

different bases of accounting and accordingly are not directly comparable to one another

The following table utilizes non-GAAP presentation for 2010 which combines the operating results of the

successor and predecessor entities for the periods overlapping the 2010 fiscal year as described earlier This information

should be read in conjunction with ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations

Operating Data

For the Period

June 22 2007

For the For the For the For the For the Commencement
In thousands Period from Period from Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended of Operations to

except share and August 13 2010 to January 2010 to December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31

per share data December 31 2010 August 12 2010 2010 2009 2008 2007

Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor Predecessor Predecessor

Predecessor

Total revenues 5675 9228 14903 20009 22259 12163

Operating expenses2 4778 20708 25486 12153 44271 14339

Other income/expense

Interest expense 2139

Loss from paitially

owned entities 1540

3578

1941

5717

3481

6510 4521 134

4397 4431

Net loss1X2 2464 6941 19405 2826 30806 1557

Net loss per share

basic and diluted 0.24 0.84 0.84 0.14 1.47 1.07

Cash dividends paid

per share 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.68 0.68 0.17
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Balance Sheet Data

Asof Asof Asof

December 31 December 31 December 31
2009 2008 2007

Predecessor Predecessor Predecessor

236833

25325 159916

101539 105130

56078 64890 72353

315432 370906 328398

37781 25000

81873 82217

88639 129774 35063

226793 241432 293335

For the

Year Ended

December 31

2010

ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes included herein

This Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains certain non

GAAP financial measures See Non-GAAP Financial Measures and supporting schedules for reconciliation of our

non-GAAP financial measures to the comparable GAAP financial measures

Overview

Care Investment Trust Inc all references to Care the Company we us and our means Care Investment

Trust Inc and its subsidiaries is healthcare equity REIT formed to invest in healthcare-related real estate and

mortgage debt The Company which utilizes hybrid management structure was incorporated in Maryland in March

2007 and completed its initial public offering on June 22 2007 As REIT we are generally not subject to income taxes

To maintain our REIT status we are required to distribute annually as dividends at least 90% of our REIT taxable

income as defined by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code to our stockholders among other

requirements If we fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year we would be subject to U.S federal income tax on our

taxable income at regular corporate tax rates

In thousands

As of

December 31
2010

Successor

Loans held for investment 8S52

Investments in loans held at LOCOM
Investment in real estate net 10572.9

Investments in partially-owned entities 39200

Total assets 166877

Borrowings under warehouse line of credit

Mortgage notes payable 81684

Total liabilities 86264

Stockholders equity 80612

Other Data

In thousands except per share data

For the Period

June 22 2007

For the For the Commencement
Year Ended Year Ended of Operations to

December 31 December 31 December 31

2009 2008 2007

Funds from OperationsI 6739 10188 1983Z 1557

Funds from Operations per share 0.29 0.51 0.95 0.07

Adjusted Funds from Operations3 7822 6183 4560 1902

Adjusted Funds from Operations per share basic and diluted 0.34 0.31 0.22 0.38

For 2008 includes $29327 charge related to the valuation allowance on our loans held at LOCOM

For 2010 includes $7400 expense related to the buyout payment incurred in conjunction with the termination of CIT Healthcare as

our Manager for the Predecessor period

Funds from Operations FF0 and Available Funds from Operations AFFO are non-GAAP financial measures of REIT performance

See ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Non GAAP Financial

Measures for additional information
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We were originally structured as an externally managed REIT and positioned to make mortgage investments in

healthcare-related properties and to invest in healthcare-related real estate through utilizing the origination platform of

our then external manager CIT Healthcare LLC CIT Healthcare wholly-owned subsidiary of CIT Group Inc

CIT We acquired our initial portfolio of mortgage loan assets from CIT Healthcare in exchange for cash proceeds

from our initial public offering and common stock In response to dislocations in the overall credit market and in

particular the securitized financing markets in late 2007 we redirected our focus to place greater emphasis on

healthcare-related real estate investments In 2008 we completed this transition into becoming an equity REIT by

making our mortgage loan portfolio available for sale and fully shifting our strategy from investing in mortgage loans to

acquiring healthcare-related real estate

On March 16 2010 we entered into definitive purchase and sale agreement with Tiptree Financial Partners L.P

Tiptree under which we agreed to sell significant amount of newly issued common stock to Tiptree at $9.00 per

share and to launch cash tender offer for up to all of our outstanding common stock at $9.00 per
share This

transaction was completed on August 13 2010 resulting in change of control of our Company total of

approximately 19.74 million shares of our common stock representing approximately 97.4% of our outstanding common

stock were tendered by our stockholders and approximately 6.19 million of newly issued shares of our common stock

representing approximately 92.2% of our outstanding common stock after taking into consideration the effect of the

tender offer were issued to Tiptree in exchange for cash proceeds of approximately $55.67 million

On November 2010 in conjunction with the change of control we entered into termination cooperation and

confidentiality agreement with CIT Healthcare which terminated CIT Healthcare as our external manager as of

November 16 2010 hybrid management structure was put into place with senior management being internalized and

the Company entering into services agreement with TREIT Management LLC TREIT an affiliate of Tiptree Capital

As of December 31 2010 we maintained diversified investment portfolio consisting of approximately $39.2 million

25% in unconsolidated joint ventures that own real estate approximately $112.2 million 70% invested in wholly

owned real estate and approximately $8.6 million 5% in mortgage loans Due to our change of control and our election

to utilize push-down accounting our entire portfolio was revalued as of August 13 2010 based on the estimated fair

market value of each asset on such date Our current investments in healthcare real estate include medical office

buildings assisted living facilities independent living facilities and Alzheimer facilities Our remaining mortgage

investment is primarily secured by portfolio of skilled nursing assisted living and mixed-use facilities

As REIT we generally will not be subject to federal taxes on our REIT taxable income to the extent that we

distribute our taxable income to stockholders and maintain our qualification as REIT

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America which requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods Actual results could differ from those estimates Set

forth below is summary of our accounting policies that we believe are critical to the preparation of our consolidated

financial statements This summary should be read in conjunction with more complete discussion of our accounting

policies included in Note to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the Companys accounts and those of our subsidiaries which are

wholly-owned or controlled by us All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated

Investments in partially-owned entities where the Company exercises significant influence over operating and

financial policies of the subsidiary but does not control the subsidiary are reported under the equity method of

accounting Generally under the equity method of accounting the Companys share of the investees earnings or loss is

included in the Companys operating results
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Accounting Standards Codification 810 Consolidation ASC 810 requires company to identify investments in

other entities for which control is achieved through means other than voting rights variable interest entities or

VIEs and to determine which business enterprise is the primary beneficiary of the VIE variable interest entity is

broadly defined as an entity where either the equity investors as group if any do not have controlling financial

interest or the equity investment at risk is insufficient to finance that entitys activities without additional subordinated

financial support The Company consolidates investments in VIEs when it is determined that the Company is the

primary beneficiary of the VIE at either the creation of the variable interest entity or upon the occurrence of

reconsideration event The Company has concluded that neither of its partially-owned entities are VIEs

tnvestments in Loans

Investments in loans amounted to $8.6 million at December 31 2010 and $25.3 million at December 31 2009

Accounting Standards Codification 948 Financial Services Mortgage Banking ASC 948 which codified the

FASBs Accounting for Certain Mortgage Banking provides that loans which are expected to be held for the

foreseeable future or to maturity should be held at amortized cost and all other loans should be held at LOCOM
measured on an individual basis Our intent is to hold our remaining loan investment to maturity and we therefore in

accordance with ASC 948 accounted for this loan at its amortized cost adjusted for any allowance for unrealized losses

For the year ended December 31 2009 we carried our loan portfolio at LOCOM The determination to account for our

loan investments at December 31 2009 at LOCOM was driven by our decision in 2008 to reposition ourselves from

mortgage REIT to traditional direct property ownership REIT referred to as an Equity REIT see notes and

to the consolidated financial statements At that time due to overall market conditions and the resulting decision to

convert our focus to property ownership we were no longer certain that we would hold our portfolio of loans to

maturity and therefore in accordance with ASC 948 were required to account for our loan portfolio using LOCOM Prior

to such time we held our loans to maturity and therefore the loans had been carried at amortized cost net of

unamortized loan fees acquisition and origination costs unless the loans were impaired

As part of the implementation of LOCOM for December 31 2009we followed the guidance provided in ASC 820

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC 820 and included nonperformance risk in calculating fair value

adjustments As specified in ASC 820 the framework for measuring fair value is based on independent observable

inputs of market data and follows the following hierarchy

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

Level Significant observable inputs based on quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets quoted

prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-based valuations for which all

significant assumptions are observable

Level Significant unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity that are significant to

the fair value of the assets or liabilities

Coupon interest on our remaining mortgage loan is recognized as revenue when earned Receivables are evaluated

for collectability if loan becomes more than 90 days past due The principal amortization portion of payments received

is applied to the carrying value

Expense for credit losses in connection with loan investments is charge to earnings to increase the allowance for

credit losses to the level that management estimates to be adequate to cover probable losses considering delinquencies

loss experience and collateral quality Allowance for unrealized losses are taken on loans based on factors including the

estimated ability to recover our carrying value and estimated fair value of the underlying real estate collateral on an

individual loan basis The fair value of the collateral may be determined by an evaluation of operating cash flow from the

property during the projected holding period and/or estimated sales value computed by applying an expected

capitalization rate to the stabilized net operating income of the specific property less selling costs Whichever method

is used other factors considered relate to geographic trends and project diversification the size of the portfolio and

current economic conditions Based upon these factors we will establish an allowance for credit losses when

appropriate When it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts contractually due the loan is considered

impaired
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Where an unrealized loss is indicated charge is recorded based upon the excess of the recorded investment

amount over our estimated recovery amount For the period from August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 Successor we

incurred an allowance for unrealized loss of approximately $0.4 million

We rely on significant subjective judgments and assumptions of our Management and external adviser i.e
discount rates expected prepayments market comparables etc regarding the above items There may be material

impact to these financial statements if such judgments or assumptions are subsequently determined to be incorrect

Real Estate and Identified Intangible Assets

Real estate and identified intangible assets are carried at cost net of accumulated depreciation and amortization

Betterments major renewals and certain costs directly related to the acquisition improvement and leasing of real estate

are capitalized Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred Depreciation is provided on straight-

line basis over the assets estimated useful lives which range from to 40 years

Upon the acquisition of real estate we assess the fair value of acquired assets including land buildings and

improvements and identified intangible assets such as above and below market leases and acquired in-place leases and

customer relationships and acquired liabilities in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 805 Business

Combinations ASC 805 and Accounting Standards Codification 350-30 Intangibles Goodwill and other ASC
350-30 and we allocate purchase price based on these assessments We assess fair value based on estimated cash

flow projections that utilize appropriate discount and capitalization rates and available market information Estimates of

future cash flows are based on number of factors including the historical operating results known trends and

market/economic conditions that may affect the property This analysis was repeated and updated this past August as

result of our election to utilize push-down accounting in conjunction with the change of control of the Company

Our properties including any related intangible assets are reviewed for impairment under ACS 360-10-35-15

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ASC 360-10-35-15 if events or circumstances change indicating that

the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable Impairment exists when the carrying amount of an asset

exceeds its fair value An impairment loss is measured based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value

We have determined fair value by using discounted cash flow model and an appropriate discount rate The evaluation

of anticipated cash flows is subjective and is based in part on assumptions regarding future occupancy rental rates

and capital requirements that could differ materially from actual results If our anticipated holding periods change or

estimated cash flows decline based on market conditions or otherwise an impairment loss may be recognized As of

December 31 2010 we have not recognized an impairment loss

Revenue Recognition

Interestincome on investments in loans is recognized over the life of the investment on the accrual basis Fees

received in connection with loans are recognized over the term of the loan as an adjustment to yield Anticipated exit

fees whose collection is expected will also be recognized over the term of the loan as an adjustment to yield

Unamortized fees are recognized when the associated loan investment is repaid before maturity on the date of such

repayment Premium and discount on purchased loans are amortized or accreted on the effective yield method over the

remaining terms of the loans As part of our implementation of push-down accounting in conjunction with our change

of control in August of last year such unamortized fees with respect to our remaining loan asset was eliminated and

such loan was valued based on its fair market value as of August 13 2010

Income recognition will generally be suspended for loan investments at the earlier of the date at which payments

become 90 days past due or when in our opinion full recovery of income and principal becomes doubtful Income

recognition is resumed when the loan becomes contractually current and performance is demonstrated to be resumed

For the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 we have no loans for which income recognition has been suspended
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The Company recognizes rental revenue in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 840 Leases ASC
840 ASC 840 requires that revenue be recognized on straight-line basis over the non-cancelable term of the lease

unless another systematic and rational basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the use benefit is

derived from the leased property Renewal options in leases with rental terms that are lower than those in the primary

term are excluded from the calculation of straight line rent if the renewals are not reasonably assured We commence

rental revenue recognition when the tenant takes control of the leased space The Company recognizes lease

termination payments as component of rental revenue in the period received provided that there are no further

obligations under the lease As part of our election to utilixe push-dowu accounting in conjunction with our change of

control in August of last year we revalued our rental property based on its fair market value as of August 13 2010 and

recalculated our rental revenue based on the remaining term of the leases in place

Stock-based Compensation Plans

We have two stock-based compensation plans described more fully in Note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements We account for the plans using the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 505-50 Equity-Based Payments

to Non-Employees ASC 505-50 and ASC 718 Compensation Stock Compensation ASC 718 ASC 505-50

and ASC 718 require that compensation cost for stock-based compensation be recognized ratably over the service

period of the award for employees non employees and board members respectively Our stock-based compensation for

our non-employees are adjusted in each subsequent reporting period based on the fair value of the award at the end of

the reporting period until such time as the award has vested or the service being provided is substantially completed or

under certain circumstances likely to be completed whichever occurs first

Derivative Instruments

We account for derivative instruments in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 815 Derivatives and

Hedging ASC 815 In the normal course of business we may use variety of derivative instruments to manage or

hedge interest rate risk We will require that hedging derivative instruments be effective in reducing the interest rate

risk exposure they are designated to hedge This effectiveness is essential for qualifying for hedge accounting Some

derivative instruments may be associated with an anticipated transaction In those cases hedge effectiveness criteria

also require that it be probable that the underlying transaction will occur Instruments that meet these hedging criteria

will be formally designated as hedges at the inception of the derivative contract

To determine the fair value of derivative instruments we may use variety of methods and assumptions that are

based on market conditions and risks existing at each balance sheet date For the majority of financial instruments

including most derivatives long-term investments and long-term debt standard market conventions and techniques

such as discounted cash flow analysis option-pricing models replacement cost and termination cost are likely to be

used to determine fair value All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of fair value and such

value may never actually be realized

We may use variety of commonly used derivative products that are considered plain vanilla derivatives These

derivatives typically include interest rate swaps caps collars and floors We expressly prohibit the use of

unconventional derivative instruments and using derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes Further

we have policy of only entering into contracts with major financial institutions based upon their credit ratings and

other factors so we do not anticipate nonperformance by any of our counterparties

We may employ swaps forwards or purchased options to hedge qualifying forecasted transactions Gains and

losses related to these transactions are deferred and recognized in net income as interest expense
in the same period or

periods that the underlying transaction occurs expires or is otherwise terminated

Hedges that are reported at fair value and presented on the balance sheet could be characterized as either cash

flow hedges or fair value hedges For derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments the gain or loss

resulting from the change in the estimated fair value of the derivative instruments will be recognized in current earnings

during the period of change

As of December 31 2010 we have one derivative instrument on our balance sheet which is recorded as

$2.1 million liability This derivative instrument pertains to the operating partnership units which were issued as
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part of our investment in the Cambridge Medical Office Building Portfolio See Note to the consolidated financial

statements in December of 2007 To the extent cash flow from operations from these properties is not sufficient to cover

our required minimum return the number of operating partnership units is reduced We revalue the operating

partnership units each quarter and any change in value is included in our income statement for the quarter

Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code To qualify as REIT we must

meet certain organizational and operational requirements including requirement to distribute at least 90% of our REIT

taxable income to our stockholders As REIT we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on taxable income

that we distribute to our stockholders If we fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year we will then be subject to

federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and we will not be permitted to qualify for treatment

as REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years following the year during which qualification is lost unless

the Internal Revenue Service grants us relief under certain statutory provisions Such an event could materially

adversely affect our net income and net cash available for distributions to stockholders However we believe that we

will operate in such manner as to qualify for treatment as REIT and we intend to operate in the foreseeable future in

such manner so that we will qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes We may however be subject to certain

state and local taxes

In July 2006 the FASB issued Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes An

Interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 FIN 48 FIN 48 has been incorporated into ASC under Section 740
Income Taxes.ASC 740 prescribes recognition threshold and measurement attribute for how company should

recognize measure present and disclose in its financial statements uncertain tax positions that the company has taken

or expects to take on tax return ASC 740 requires that the financial statements reflect expected future tax

consequences of such positions presuming the taxing authorities full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts

but without considering time values ASC 740 was adopted by the Company and became effective beginning January

2007 The implementation of ASC 740 has not had material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements All tax years from 2007 and forward remain
open for examination by the Internal Revenue Service The

Company does not have any uncertain tax positions as of December 31 2010

Earnings per Share

We present basic earnings per share or EPS in accordance with ASC 260 Earnings per Share We also present

diluted EPS when diluted EPS is lower than basic EPS Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net

income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period Diluted EPS reflects the

potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted

into common stock where such exercise or conversion would result in lower EPS amount At December 31 2010

diluted EPS was the same as basic EPS because there were no outstanding restricted stock awards The operating

partnership units issued in connection with an investment See Note to the consolidated financial statements are in

escrow and do not impact EPS

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes Actual results

could differ from those estimates

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instmments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash

investments real estate loan investments and interest receivable We may place our cash investments in excess of

insured amounts with high quality financial institutions We perform ongoing analysis of credit risk concentrations in

our real estate and loan investment portfolio by evaluating exposure to various markets underlying property types

investment strncture term sponsors tenant mix and other credit metrics The collateral securing our remaining

mortgage loan investment are real estate properties located in the United States
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-06 Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurement to

enhance the usefulness of fair value measurements The amended guidance requires both the disaggregation of

information in certain existing disclosures as well as the inclusion of more robust disclosures about valuation

techniques and inputs to recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements This ASU amends ASC 820 to add new

requirements for disclosures about transfers into and out of Levels and and separate disclosures about purchases

sales issuances and settlements relating to Level measurements This ASU also clarifies existing fair value

disclosures about the level of disaggregation and about inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value

Further this ASU amends guidance on employers disclosures about postretirement benefit plan assets under ASC 715

to require that disclosures be provided by classes of assets instead of by major categories of assets This ASU is

effective for the first reporting period including interim periods beginning after December 15 2009 except for the

requirement to provide the Level activity of purchases sales issuances and settlements on gross basis which will

be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 and for interim periods within those fiscal years Early

adoption is permitted The adoption of this standard did not affect our financial condition results of operations or cash

flows

In June 2009 the FASB amended the guidance for determining whether an entity is variable interest entity or VIE

The guidance requires an entity to consolidate VIE if it has the power to direct the activities that most significantly

impact the VIEs economic performance and ii the obligation to absorb the losses of the VIE or the right to receive the

benefits from the VIE which could be significant to the VIE The pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning

after November 15 2009 On January 12010 the Company adopted the FASB guidance for determining whether an

entity is variable interest entity such adoption did not have material effect on our financial condition results of

operations or cash flows

Results of Operations

Although our Company continues to exist as the same legal entity after the change of control associated with the

acquisition of approximately 92.2% of our common stock by Tiptree as result of our election to utilize push-down

accounting we are required to separate our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2010 into

Predecessor and Successor periods Our predecessor periods relate to the accounting periods preceding the

Tiptree Transaction Our Successor period relates to the accounting period following the Tiptree Transaction To

enhance the comparability of our consolidated results we have mathematically combined our Predecessor consolidated

results for the 224 days ended August 12 2010 and our Successor consolidated results for the 141 days ended

December 31 2010 Although this presentation does not comply with GAAP we believe it provides the most meaningful

comparison of our consolidated results for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 because it allows us to

compare our consolidated results over equivalent periods of time While we believe the foregoing presentation provides

the most meaningful presentation for comparing our results for such period you should nonetheless bear in mind that

the consolidated financial statements for our Predecessor and Successor periods have been prepared using different

bases of accounting and accordingly are not directly comparable to one another
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The following table is non-GAAP presentation which combines the operating results of the Successor and

Predecessor entities for the periods overlapping the 2010 fiscal year as described earlier dollars in thousands

Unaudited

For the For the

Period from Period from Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

August 13 2010 to January 2010 to December 31 December 31 December 31

December 31 2010 August 12 2010 2010 2009 2008

Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor Predecessor

Predecessor

Revenue

Rental revenue 5123 7880 13003 12710 6228

Income from investments in loans 552 1348 1900 7135 15794

Other income 164 237

Total Revenue 5675 9228 14903 20009 22259

Expenses

Management fees and buyout

payments to related party 346 8.477 8823 2235 4105

Marketing general and administrative

including stock-based compensation

expense of $374 $163 $537 $2270

and $1212 respectively 2923 11021 13944 11653 6623

Depreciation and amortization 1509 2072 3581 3375 1554

Realized gain/loss on sale and

repayment of loans 1064 2662

Adjustment to valuation allowance on

Investment in loans 858 858 404 29327

Operating Expenses 4778 20708 25486 12153 44271

Other Income Expense

Loss from investments in partially-

owned entities 1540 1941 3481 4397 4431

Unrealized gain/loss on derivative

instruments 836 41 795 153 237

Interest income 99 105 73 395
Unrealized loss on Investments 524 524

Interest expense including amortization

of deferred financing costs 2139 3578 5717 6511 4521

Net Loss 2464 16941 19405 2826 30806

Revenue

Rental Revenues

During the year ended December 31 2010 we recognized approximately $13.0 million of rental revenue on the

twelve 12 properties acquired in the Bickford transaction in June 2008 and the two additional properties acquired

from Bickford in September 2008 as compared with approximately $12.7 million recognized during the twelve 12 month

period ended December 31 2009 an increase of approximately $0.3 million The increase in revenue was the result of

annual escalations in contractual rent due from Bickford as per the terms of the master lease on the 14 properties

We earned investment income on our mortgage loan investments of approximately $1.9 million for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2010 as compared with approximately $7.1 million for the comparable period ended December 31

2009 decrease of approximately $5.2 million The decrease in income related to our loan portfolio
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is primarily attributable to lower average outstanding principal loan balance during the year ended December 31 2010

as compared with the twelve 12 month period ended December 31 2009 This was the result of loan prepayments and

loan sales that occurred during the fourth quarter of 2009 and the first quarter of 2010 in connection with the Companys
decision to shift our operating strategy to place greater emphasis on acquiring high quality healthcare-related real estate

investments and away from mortgage investments Our remaining mortgage loan investment is part of syndicated loan

and has variable interest rate based on 30-day LIBOR and at December 31 2010 and 2009 had an effective yield of

4.34% and 6.99% respectively This mortgage loan was originally scheduled to mature on February 12011 Pursuant to

negotiations with the borrower the loan maturity has been extended twice first to April 21 2011 and subsequently to

June 202011 As per the terms of the most recent extension the borrower will continue to pay scheduled principal and

interest payments and default interest shall accrue We continue to hold the loan on accrual status and accordingly

record interest and principal as received Further in connection with the first extension the lenders agreed to liquidate

the capital expenditure reserve which resulted principal paydown to us of approximately $1.0 million on February 17

2011 which we treated as partial principal paydown

Expenses

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 we recorded management fee expense and buyout payments under

our Management Agreement of approximately $8.8 million as compared with approximately $2.2 million for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2009 an increase of approximately $6.6 million The increase is primarily attributable to the buyout

payment of $7.4 million made to CIT Healthcare in 2010 in connection with the termination of CIT Healthcare as manager

Marketing general and administrative expenses were approximately $13.9 million for the fiscal year
ended

December 31 2010 and consist of fees for professional services insurance general overhead costs for the Company

and real estate taxes on our facilities as compared with approximately $11.6 million for the twelve 12 month period

ended December 31 2009 an increase of approximately $2.2 million The increase is primarily result of increased legal

and advisory fees incurred in connection with the Tiptree Transaction Included in the marketing general and

administrative expenses for 2010 are Predecessor costs for advisory services of $3.5 million Directors and Officers

insurance costs of $1.3 million and legal costs associated with the Tiptree transaction and Cambridge litigation of

$1.5 million Pursuant to ASC 505-50 we recognized an expense of $0.2 million for the year ended December 31 2010

related to rcmeasurement of stock grants as compared with an expense of $2.3 million for the year ended December 31

2009 decrease of approximately $2.1 million The decrease was principally the result of fewer share issuances in the

fiscal year ended 2010 and accelerated vesting of stock-based compensation resulting from the January 28
2010 shareholder vote approving the plan of liquidation which was recognized in the fiscal year ended 2009 Upon

approval of the plan of liquidation most of the Companys remaining stock grants vested immediately In addition we

paid $0.2 million and $0.3 million in stock-based compensation related to shares of our common stock earned by our

independent directors as part of their compensation for the fiscal years
ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

The decrease in stock-based compensation to our directors was the result of fewer directors receiving compensation on

our Board of Directors as well as reduction in the directors fees payable for services rendered effective August 13

2010 Each independent director is paid base retainer of $50000 annually which is payable 70% in cash and 30% in

stock Payments are made quarterly in arrears Shares of our common stock issued to our independent directors as part

of their annual compensation vest immediately and are expensed by us accordingly

The management fees expense reimbursements and the relationship between CIT Healthcare and us are discussed

further in Note 12

Loss from investments in partially-owned entities

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 net loss from partially-owned entities amounted to $3.5 million as

compared with loss of $4.4 million for the comparable period ended fiscal year ended December 31 2009 decrease of

approximately $0.9 million Our equity in the non-cash operating loss of the Cambridge properties for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2010 was $4.6 million which included $9.1 million attributable to our share of the depreciation and

amortization expenses associated with the Cambridge properties which was partially offset by
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our share of equity income in the SMC properties of $1.0 million Total cash received from the Cambridge and SMC
investments during the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 was approximately $6.4 million

Unrealized gain on derivatives

We recognized $0.8 millionunrealized loss on the fair value of our obligation to issue partnership units related to

the Cambridge transaction for the year ended December 31 2010 as compared with an unrealized loss of $0.2 million for

the fiscal year ended December 31 2009

interest Expense

We incurred interest expense of $5.7 millionfor the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 as compared with interest

expense of $6.5 million for the comparable period in 2009 decrease of approximately $0.8 million The decrease is

primarily related to the write-off of deferred financing fees incurred in connection with the Companys termination of its

warehouse line in 2009 Interest expense for 2010 was related to the interest payable on the mortgage debt which was

incurred for the acquisition of 14 facilities from Bickford

Valuation Allowance on Loans Held at LOCOM and Realized Gain/Loss on Loans Sold

We recognized favorable adjustment to our Investment in Loans of $0.9 million in fiscal year 2010 as compared

with favorable adjustment of $4.0 million for the comparable period in 2009 Until December 31 2008 we intended to

hold our loans to maturity and therefore the loans had been carried at amortized cost net of unamortized loan fees

acquisition and origination costs unless the loans were impaired At December 31 2008 reflecting change in Cares

strategies in connection with our decision to reposition ourselves from mortgage REIT to traditional direct property

ownership REIT and as result of existing market conditions we reclassified our portfolio of mortgage loans to LOCOM
and recorded charge of $29.3 million Interim assessments were made of carrying values of the loans based on

available data including sale and repayments on quarterly basis during 2009 through August 13 2010 Available data

included appraisals repayments and mortgage loan sales to our manager and to third parties In connection with the

transfer we recorded an initial valuation allowance of approximately $29.3 million representing the difference between

our carrying amount of the loans and their estimated fair value at December 31 2008 At December 31 2009 the

valuation allowance was reduced to $8.4 million representing the difference between the carrying amounts and

estimated fair value of our three remaining loans

Our intent is to hold our remaining loan investment to maturity and we have therefore valued this loan on an

amortized cost basis as adjusted for the use of push-down accounting associated with the change of control resulting

from the Tiptree transaction The principal amortization portion of payments received is applied to the carrying value

and the interest portion of the payment is recorded as interest income

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenses amounted to $3.6 million in the fiscal year ended 2010 and $3.4 million for

the comparable period in 2009 an increase of approximately $0.2 million The Depreciation and Ainortixation cxpensc

related primarily to the twelve 12 Bickford properties acquired in June 2008 and the two Bickford properties

acquired in September 2008

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents were approximately $5.0 million at December 31 2010 as compared with approximately

$122.5 million at December 31 2009 decrease of approximately $117.5 million The utilization of cash during the year

ended 2010 was primarily in conjunction with the Tiptree transaction and pertained to the Companys $9.00 per share

self-tender offer total of approximately 19.74 million shares were tendered requiring net cash outlay of

approximately $177.7 million of which approximately $123.3 million was funded from cash on hand and the balance from

the cash proceeds of the stock sale to Tiptree This was an increase of approximately $71.4 million over the net cash of

approximately $51.9 which was utilized for net financing for the
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twelve 12 months ended December 31 2009 which consisted primarily of approximately $37.8 for repayment and

retirement of our warehouse line and approximately $13.8 million for the payment of dividends

Net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31 2010 amounted to approximately $10.3 million

as compared with approximately $6.7 million generated from operating activities for the twelve 12 months ended

December 31 2009 difference of approximately $17.0 million Net loss before adjustments for 2010 was $19.4 million

The allocated equity loss in the operating results of and cash distributions from the Cambridge properties resulted in

total addition or offset Ui the net loss of approximately $9.8 million Non-cash charges for straight-line effects of lease

revenue gains on sales and repayments of loans adjustment to our valuation allowance on investments in loans

amortization of deferred loan fees amortization and write-off of deferred financing costs stock based compensation

unrealized loss on derivative instruments unrealized loss from asset impairment charges and depreciation and

amortization generated approximately $0.3 million of incremental cash flow The net change in operating assets and

liabilities absorbed approximately $1.0 million of cash and consisted of decrease in accrued interest receivable and

other assets of $0.3 million which was offset by decrease in accounts payable and accrued
expenses

of approximately

$0.3 million and an approximately $1.0 million decrease in other liabilities including amounts due to related party

Net cash provided by investing activities for the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 was approximately

$16.1 million as compared with approximately $136.0 million provided from investing activities for the twelve 12 months

ended December 31 2009 decrease of approximately $119.9 million The decrease is primarily attributable to

investments in partially-owned entities of approximately $0.9 million and fixed asset purchases of $0.2 million consisting

of capital expenditures from reserve accounts during 2010 as compared with investments in partially-owned entities of

approximately $2.4 million offset by sales of loans to third parties generating approximately $55.8 million sales of loans

to CIT Healthcare of approximately $42.2 million and loan repayments received of approximately $40.4 million during the

twelve 12 months ended December 31 2009

Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31 2010 was $123.3 million as compared with net

cash used in financing activities of $51.9 million for the year ended December 31 2009 an increase of $71.4 million The

increase is primarily attributable to the cash used to consummate the purchase of our common stock via tender offer of

$177.7 million which was partially offset by cash received from the sale of shares to Tiptree in conjunction with the sale

of control of the Company of $55.7 million This compares with the repayment of $37.8 million and subsequent

termination of our warehouse line of credit and payment of dividends totaling $10.3 million during the comparable period

ended December 31 2009

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is measurement of our ability to meet potential cash requirements including ongoing commitments to

repay borrowings fund and maintain loans and other investments pay dividends and other general business needs

Our primary sources of liquidity are rental income from our real estate properties distributions from our joint ventures

net interest income earned on our remaining mortgage loan and interest income earned from our available cash balances

We also obtain liquidity from repayments of principal by our borrower in connection with our loan

As of December 31 2010 the Company had approximately $5.0 million in cash and cash equivalents

Prior to February of 2010 we relied on borrowings under warehouse line of credit along with Mortgage

Purchase Agreement MPA with CIT Healthcare to fund our investments In October 2007 we obtained warehouse

line of credit from Column Financial an affiliate of Credit Suisse under which we borrowed funds collateralized by the

mortgage loans in our portfolio In March 2009 we repaid these borrowings in full with cash on hand In September

2008 we entered into Mortgage Purchase Agreement MPA with our then Manager in order to secure potential

additional source of liquidity Pursuant to the MPA we had the right subject to the conditions of the MPA to cause

CIT Healthcare to purchase our mortgage loans at their then-current fair market value as determined by third party

appraiser On January 28 2010 upon the effective date of the second amendment to the Management Agreement with

CIT Healthcare the MPA was terminated and all outstanding notices of our intent to sell additional loans to our then

Manager were rescinded
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To maintain our status as REIT under the Code we must distribute annually at least 90% of our REIT taxable

income This distribution requirement limits our ability to retain earnings and thereby replenish or increase capital for

future operations

Capitalization

As of December 31 2010 we had 10.064.982 shares of common stock outstanding which includes stock split in

the ratio of three-for-two effected in the form of common stock dividend during the third quarter of 2010

Contractual Obligations

The table below summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31 2010

Amounts in millions 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter

Commitment to fund tenant improvements 0.9

Mortgage notes payable 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 80.4

TREIT Management feW 0.4 0.4 0.4

Company Office Lease 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.8

Subject to increase based on increases in shareholders equity The termination fee payable to TREIT in the event of non renewal of

the Services Agreement by the Company is not fixed and determinable and is therefore not included in the table

We have commitments at December 31 2010 to finance tenant improvements of $0.9 million which represents

holdbacks from the initial purchase of Cambridge The estimated amounts and timing of the commitments to fund tenant

improvements are based on projections by the managers who are affiliates of Cambridge

On November 2010 the Company entered into Services Agreement the Services Agreement with TREIT

pursuant to which TREIT will provide certain advisory services related to the Companys business beginning on the

Termination Effective Date as defined herein For such services the Company will pay TREIT monthly base services

fee in arrears of one-twelfth of 0.5% of the Companys Equity as defined in the Services Agreement The initial term of

the Services Agreement shall expire on December 31 2013 and will renew automatically each year thereafter for an

additional one-year period unless the Company or TREIT elects not to renew

On June 26 2008 with the acquisition of the twelve 12 properties from Bickford Senior Living Group LLC the

Company entered into mortgage loan with Red Mortgage Capital Inc for $74.6 million The terms of the mortgage

required interest-only payments at fixed interest rate of 6.845% for the first twelve months Commencing on the first

anniversary and every month thereafter the mortgage loan requires fixed monthly payment of approximately

$0.5 million for both principal and interest until the maturity in July 2015 when the then outstanding balance of

approximately $69.6 million is due and payable Care made principal payments of approximately $0.7 million during the

year ended December 31 2010 The mortgage loan is collateralized by the twelve 12 Bickford properties

On September 30 2008 with the acquisition of the two additional properties from Bickford the Company entered

into an additional mortgage loan with Red Mortgage Capital Inc for $7.6 million The terms of the mortgage require

monthly interest and principal payments of approximately $52000 based on fixed interest rate of 7.17% until the

maturity in July 2015 when the then outstanding balance of approximately $7.1 million of the loan is due and payable

Care made principal payments of approximately $0.1 million during the year ended December 31 2010 The mortgage

loan is collateralized by the remaining two Bickford properties

In conjunction with the termination of CIT Healthcare as our external manager the Company entered into lease

for its new headquarters at 780 Third Avenue New York NY which expires in March 2019 The annual rent obligation

from this commitment is approximately $0.2 million

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As discussed above in Business Unconsolidated Joint Ventures we own interests in certain unconsolidated

joint ventures Our risk of loss associated with these investments is limited to our investment
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in each of these joint ventures It should be noted however that under the terms of our investment in the joint venture

with Cambridge Holdings our joint venture party had the contractual right to put its 15% interest in the Cambridge

properties to us in the event we entered into change in control transaction Accordingly we provided notice to

Cambridge on May 2009 that we had entered into term sheet with third party for transaction that would result in

change in control of Care which notice in our opinion triggered Cambridges contractual right to put its interests in

the joint venture to us at price equal to the then fair market value of such interests Pursuant to the agreement fair

market value was to be mutually agreed to by the parties or lacking such mutual agreement at price determined

through qualified third party appraisals Cambridge did not exercise its right to put its 15% joint venture interest to us in

connection with our aforementioned entry into the term sheet with the third party As result it is our position that

Cambridges contractual put right expired

Dividends

To maintain our qualification as REIT we must pay annual dividends to our stockholders of at least 90% of our

REIT taxable income determined before taking into consideration the dividends paid deduction and net capital gains

Before we pay any dividend whether for federal income tax purposes or otherwise we must first meet both our

operating requirements and any scheduled debt service on our outstanding borrowings

Related Party Transactions and Agreements

Management Agreement

In connection with our initial public offering we entered into Management Agreement with CIT Healthcare

which described the services to be provided by our former Manager and its compensation for those services Under the

Management Agreement CIT Healthcare subject to the oversight of our board of directors was required to conduct

our business affairs in conformity with the policies approved by our board of directors The Management Agreement

had an initial term scheduled to expire on June 30 2010 which would automatically be renewed for one-year terms

thereafter unless terminated by us or CIT Healthcare

On September 30 2008 we entered into an amendment the Amendment to the Management Agreement

hetween ourselves and CIT Healthcare Pursuant to the terms of the Amendment the Base Management Fee as defined

in the Management Agreement payable to the Manager under the Management Agreement was reduced from

monthly amount equal to 1112 of 1.75% of the Companys equity as defined in the Management Agreement to

monthly amount equal to 1/12 of 0.875% of the Companys equity In addition pursuant to the terms of the Amendment
the Incentive Fee as defined in the Management Agreement payable to the Manager pursuant to the Management

Agreement was eliminated and the Termination Fee as defined in the Management Agreement payable to the Manager

upon the termination or non-renewal of the Management Agreement was amended to equal the average annual Base

Management Fee as earned by the Manager during the two years immediately preceding the most recently completed

fiscal quarter prior to the date of termination times three but in no event less than $15.4 million No termination fee

would be payable if we terminated the Management Agreement for cause

In consideration of the Amendment and for CIT Healthcares continued and future services to the Company the

Company granted CIT Healthcare warrants to purchase 435000 shares of the Companys common stock at $17.00 per

share the Warrant under the Manager Equity Plan adopted by the Company on June 21 2007 the Manager Equity

Plan The Warrant which is immediately exercisable expires on September 30 2018

On January 15 2010 we entered into an Amended and Restated Management Agreement the AR Management

Agreement with CIT Healthcares Pursuant to the terms of the AR Management Agreement which became effective

upon approval of the Companys plan of liquidation by our stockholders on January 28 2010 the Base Management

Fee was reduced to monthly amount equal to $125000 from February 2010 until the earlier of June 30 2010 and

the date on which four of the Companys six then-existing investments have been sold then from such date

ii $100000 until the earlier of December 31 2010 and the date on which five of the Companys six then

existing investments have been sold then from such date iii $75000 until the effective date of expiration or earlier

termination of the Agreement by either of the Company or CIT Healthcare provided however that notwithstanding the

foregoing the base management tee shall remain at $125000 per month until the later of ninety 90 days after the

filing by the Company of Form 15 with the SEC
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and the date that the Company is no longer subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act In addition

the termination fee payable to the Manager upon the termination or non-renewal of the Management Agreement was

replaced by buyout payment of $7.5 million payable in installments of $2.5 million upon approval of the Companys

plan of liquidation by our stockholders ii $2.5 million upon the earlier of April 2010 and the effective date of

the termination of the AR Management Agreement by either of the Company or CiT Healthcare and iii $2.5 million

upon the earlier of June 30 2011 and the effective date of the termination of the AR Management Agreement by

either the Company or CIT Healthcare The AR Management Agreement also provided CIT Healthcare with an

incentive fee of $1.5 million if at any time prior to December 31 2011 the aggregate cash dividends paid to the

Companys stockholders since the effective date of the AR Management Agreement equaled or exceeded $9.25 per

share or ii as of December 31 2011 the sum of the aggregate cash dividends paid to the Companys stockholders

since the effective date of the AR Management Agreement and the aggregate distributable cash equals or exceeds

$9.25 per share In the event that the aggregate distributable cash equaled or exceeded $9.25 per share but for the impact

of payment of $1.5 million incentive fee the Company shall have paid CIT Healthcare an incentive fee in an amount

that allows the aggregate distributable cash to equal $9.25 per share Under the AR Management Agreement the

Mortgage Purchase Agreement between us and CIT Healthcare was terminated and all outstanding notices of our intent

to sell additional loans to CIT Healthcare were rescinded The AR Management Agreement was to continue in effect

unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms thereof until December 31 2011

On November 2010 the Company entered into Termination Cooperation and Confidentiality Agreement the

CIT Termination Agreement with CIT Healthcare Pursuant to the CIT Termination Agreement the parties terminated

the AR Management Agreement on November 16 2010 the Termination Effective Date The CIT Termination

Agreement also provides for an 180 day cooperation period beginning on the Termination Effective Date relating to the

transition of management of the Company from CIT Healthcare to the officers of the Company two year mutual

confidentiality period and mutual release of all claims related to CIT Healthcares management of the Company Under

the CIT Termination Agreement the parties agreed that in lieu of the payments otherwise required under the termination

provisions of the AR Management Agreement the Company would pay to CIT Healthcare on the Termination

Effective Date $2.4 million plus any earned but unpaid monthly installments of the base management fee due under the

AR Management Agreement Those amounts were paid in full in November 2010 The Company previously paid

$5.0 million of this buyout fee during the first two quarters of 2010

For the periods ended December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 we recognized $8.8 million and $2.2 million in

management fee and buyout fee expense respectively Since our initial public offering transactions with CIT Healthcare

relating to our initial public offering and the Management Agreement included

The acquisition of our initial assets from CIT Healthcare upon the completion of our initial public offering The

fair value of the acquisitions was approximately $283.1 million inclusive of approximately $4.6 million in premium

In exchange for these assets we issued 5256250 restricted shares of common stock to CIT Healthcare at fair

value of approximately $78.8 million and paid approximately $204.3 million in cash from the proceeds of our initial

public offering

Our issuance of 607690 shares of common stock issued to CIT Healthcare concurrently with our initial public

offering at fair value of $9.1 million at date of grant These shares vested immediately and therefore their fair

value was expensed at issuance

Our issuance of 133333 restricted shares of common stock to CIT Healthcares employees some of who were

also our officers or directors and 15000 shares to our independent directors with total fair value of

approximately $2.2 million at the date of grant The shares granted to CIT Healthcare employees and the shares

granted to our independent directors vested immediately upon approval of the Companys plan of liquidation by

its shareholders and

Expenses of $8.7 million for the Base Management Fee and buyout expenses as required pursuant to our

agreement with CIT Healthcare for the year ended December 31 2010 which consisted of $7.4 million related to

the buyout fee in conjunction with the termination of CIT Healthcare as manager and $1.1 million of management

fees paid to CIT Healthcare and expenses
of $2.2 million for the Base Management Fee for the comparable

period in 2009
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Services Agreement

On November 2010 the Company entered into Services Agreement the Services Agreement with TREIT

pursuant to which TRE1T will provide certain advisory services related to the Companys business beginning on the

Termination Effective Date For such services the Company will pay TREIT monthly base services fee in arrears of

one-twelfth of 0.5% of the Companys Equity as defined in the Services Agreement and quarterly incentive fee of

15% of the Companys AFFO Plus Gain/Loss On Sale as defined in the Services Agreement so long as and to the

extent that the Companys AFFO Plus Gain ILoss on Sale exceeds an amount equal to Equity multiplied by the Hurdle

Rate as defined in the Services Agreement Twenty percent 20% of any such incentive fee shall be paid in shares of

common stock of the Company unless greater percentage is requested by TREIT and approved by an independent

committee of directors The initial term of the Services Agreement extends until December 31 2013 Unless terminated

earlier in accordance with its terms the Services Agreement will be automatically renewed for one year periods following

such date unless either party elects not to renew If the Company elects to terminate without cause or elects not to

renew the Services Agreement Termination Fee as defined in the Services Agreement shall be payable by the

Company to TREIT

For the periods ended December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 we paid $0.1 million and $0 in management fee

expense respectively to TREIT Management LLC

Mortgage Iurchase Agreement

On September 30 2008 we entered into Mortgage Purchase Agreement MPA with CIT Healthcare in order to

secure potential additional source of liquidity Pursuant to the MPA the Company had the right but not the

obligation to cause the Manager to purchase its current senior mortgage assets the Mortgage Assets at their then-

current fair market value as determined by third party appraiser However the MPA provided that in no event shall

CIT Healthcare be obligated to purchase any Mortgage Asset if CIT Healthcare had already purchased Mortgage

Assets with an aggregate sale price of $125.0 million pursuant to the MPA or the third party appraiser determined

that the fair market value of such Mortgage Asset is greater than 105% of the then outstanding principal balance of

such Mortgage Asset

Pursuant to the MPA we sold mortgage investments made to four borrowers to CIT Healthcare for total proceeds

of $64.6 million The sale of the first mortgage to CIT Healthcare closed in November 2008 for proceeds of $22.4 million

and the sale of the second mortgage closed in February 2009 for proceeds of $22.5 million Additional mortgages from

two borrowers were sold to CIT Healthcare during August and September 2009 and generated cash proceeds of

$2.3 million and $17.4 million respectively

On January 28 2010 upon the effective date of the AR Management Agreement with CIT Healthcare the MPA
was terminated and all outstanding notices of our intent to sell additional loans to our Manager were rescinded

Warrant

In consideration of the Amendment and for CIT Healthcares continued and future services to the Company the

Company granted our former manager warrants to purchase 435000 shares of the Companys common stock at $17.00

per share the Warrant under the Manager Equity Plan adopted by the Company on June 21 2007 the Manager
Equity Plan The Warrant which is immediately exercisable expires on September 30 2018 As part of the Tiptree

Transaction Tiptree acquired the Warrant from CIT Healthcare for $100000

Noa-GAAP Financial Measnres

Funds from Operations

Funds From Operations or FF0 which is non-GAAP financial measure is widely recognized measure of REIT

performance We compute FF0 in accordance with standards established by the National Association of Real Estate

Investment Trusts or NAREIT which may not be comparable to FF0 reported by other REITs that do not compute FF0

in accordance with the NAREIT definition or that interpret the NAREIT definition differently than we do
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The revised White Paper on FF0 approved by the Board of Governors of NAREIT in April 2002 defines FF0 as

net income loss computed in accordance with GAAP excluding gains or losses from debt restructuring and sales of

properties plus real estate related depreciation and amortization and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships

and joint ventures

Adjusted Funds from Operations

Adjusted Funds From Operations or AFFO is non-GAAP financial measure We calculate AFFO as net income

loss computed in accordance with GAAP excluding gains losses from debt restructuring and gains losses from

sales of property plus the expenses associated with depreciation and amortization on real estate assets non-cash

equity compensation expenses the effects of straight lining lease revenue excess cash distributions from the

Companys equity method investments and one-time events pursuant to changes in GAAP and other non-cash

charges Proportionate adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures will also be taken when

calculating the Companys AFFO

We believe that FF0 and AFFO provide additional measures of our core operating performance by eliminating the

impact of certain non-cash expenses and facilitating comparison of our financial results to those of other comparable

REITs with fewer or no non-cash charges and comparison of our own operating results from period to period The

Company uses FF0 and AFFO in this way and also uses AFFO as one performance metric in the Companys executive

compensation program The Company also believes that its investors will use FF0 and AFFO to evaluate and compare

the performance of the Company and its peers and as such the Company believes that the disclosure of FF0 and

AFFO is useful to and expected of its investors

However the Company cautions that neither FF0 nor AFFO represent cash generated from operating activities in

accordance with GAAP and they should not be considered as an alternative to net income determined in accordance

with GAAP or an indication of our cash flow from operating activities determined in accordance with GAAP
measure of our liquidity or an indication of funds available to fund our cash needs including our ability to make cash

distributions In addition our methodology for calculating FF0 and or AFFO may differ from the methodologies

employed by other REITs to calculate the same or similar supplemental performance measures and accordingly our

reported FF0 and or AFFO may not be comparable to the FF0 and AFFO reported by other REITs

Although our Company continues to exist as the same legal entity after the Tiptree Transaction as result of the

application of push down accounting at August 13 2010 we are required to present consolidated financial statements

for the year ended December 31 2010 as Predecessor and Successor periods Our Predecessor periods relate to the

accounting periods preceding the Tiptree Transaction Our Successor periods relate to the accounting periods

following the Tiptree Transaction To enhance the comparability of our consolidated results we have mathematically

combined our Predecessor consolidated results for the 224 days ended August 12 2010 and our Successor

consolidatedresults for the 141 days ended December 31 2010 which we believe provides the most meaningful

comparison of our consolidated results for the year ended December 31 2010 Although we believe the foregoing

presentation provides the most meaningful presentation for comparing our results for such period you should

nonetheless bear in mind that the consolidated financial statements for our Predecessor and Successor periods have

been prepared using different bases of accounting and accordingly are not directly comparable to one another
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The following table combines the operating results of the successor and predecessor entities for the periods

overlapping the 2010 fiscal year as described earlier dollars in thousands except per share data

For the year ended

December 31 2010

In thousands except share and per share data FF0 AFFO

Net loss 19405 19405

Depreciation and amortiiation from partially-owned entities 9086 9086

Depreciation and amortization on owned properties 3581 3581

Adjustment to valuation allowance for investment in loans 858

Straight-line effects of lease revenue 2366
Excess cash distributions from the Companys equity method investments 639

Unrealized loss from asset impairment 524

Gain on sales and repayment of Loans

Unrealized gain on Obligation to issue OP Units 795
Stock-based compensation 374

Funds From Operations and Adjusted Funds From Operations 6739 9224

FF0 and Adjusted FF0 per share basic 0.29 0.40

FF0 and Adjusted FF0 per share diluted 029 0.40

Weighted average shares outstanding basic 22972256 22972256

Weighted average shares outstanding diluted 22972256 22972256
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ITEM 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk includes risks that arise from changes in interest rates commodity prices equity prices and other

market changes that affect market sensitive instruments In pursuing our business plan we expect that the primary

market risks to which we will be exposed are real estate and interest rate risks

Real Estate Risk

The value of owned real estate commercial mortgage assets and net operating income derived from such properties

are subject to volatility and may be affected adversely by number of factors including but not limited to national

regional and local economic conditions which may be adversely affected by industry slowdowns and other factors

local real estate conditions such as an oversupply of retail industrial office or other commercial space changes or

continued weakness in specific industry segments construction quality age and design demographic factors

retroactive changes to building or similar codes and increases in operating expenses such as energy costs In the

event net operating income decreases or the value of property held for sale decreases our tenant operator and/or

borrower as applicable may have difficulty paying our rent or repaying our loans which could result in losses to us

Even when propertys net operating income is sufficient to cover the propertys rent or debt service at the time an

investment is made there can be no assurance that this will continue in the future

The current turmoil in the residential mortgage market may continue to have an effect on the commercial mortgage

market and real estate industry in general

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many factors including the availability of liquidity governmental monetary

and tax policies domestic and international economic and political considerations and other factors beyond our control

We may in the future enter into derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps and caps in order to mitigate

the interest rate risk on related financial instrument We will not enter into derivative or interest rate transactions for

speculative purposes

Our operating results will depend in large part on differences between the income from assets in our real estate and

mortgage loan portfolio and our borrowing costs At present our remaining variable rate mortgage loan investment is

funded by our equity as restrictive conditions in the securitized debt markets have not enabled us to leverage the

portfolio as we originally intended Accordingly the income we earn on this loans is subject to variability in interest

rates At current investment levels changes in one month LIBOR at the magnitudes listed would have the following

estimated effect on our annual income from our remaining mortgage loan investment one month LIBOR was 0.26% at

December 31 2010

Increase/decrease in income

from investments in loans

Increase/Decrease in interest rate5 dollars in thousands

20 basis points 26
Base interest rate

100 basis points 128

200 basis points 257

300 basis points

Assumes one month LIBOR woutd not go below zero
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In the event of significant rising interest rate environment and/or economic downturn delinquencies and defaults

could increase and result in credit losses to us which could adversely affect our liquidity and operating results Further

such delinquencies or defaults could have an adverse effect on the spreads between interest-earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities

Our funding strategy involves utilizing asset-specific debt to finance our real estate investments While there has

been some recent improvement the overall availability of liquidity remains constrained due to investor concerns over

dislocations in the debt markets and related impact on the overall credit markets These concerns have materially

impacted liquidity in the debt markets making financing terms for borrowers less attractive We cannot foresee when

credit markets may stabilize and liquidity becomes more readily available
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ITEM Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Indepeadent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Care Investment Trllst Inc and subsidiaries

New York NY

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Care Investment Trust Inc and subsidiaries

the Company as of December 31 2010 Successor and 2009 Predecessor and the related consolidated statements

of operations stockholders equity and cash flows for the period from August 13 2010 to December 31 2010

Successor the period from January 2010 to August 12 2010 and the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Predecessor Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at ITEM 15 These financial

statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is

to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we

engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audits included consideration of internal

control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We

believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position

of Care Investment Trust Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 Successor and 2009 Predecessor and the

results of their operations and their cash flows for the period from August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 Successor

the period from January 2010 to August 12 2010 and the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 Predecessor in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion such

financial statement schedules when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as

whole present fairly in all material respects the infonnation set forth therein

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements as of August 13 2010 the Company changed its

basis of accounting in connection with business combination in which the Company applied push-down accounting

to the purchase price in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 5J New Basis ofAccounting Required in

Certain Circumstances

IsI DELOI1TE TOUCHE LLP

New York NY
March 31 2011
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

dollars in thousands except share and per share data

December 31

2010

Successor

December 31

2009

Predecessor

Real Estate

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

166876 315432

Land 5020

Buildings and improvements 102002

Less accumulated depreciation 1293

5020

101000

4481

Total real estate net 105729 101539

Cash and cash equivalents 5032

Investments in loans 8552

122512

25325

Investments in partially-dwne4 entities 39200

Accrued interest receivable 64

Deferred financing costs net of accumulated amortization of $0 and $1122

respectively

56078

Identified intangible assets leases in place net 6477

Other assets 1822

4471

4611

Total Assets 166876 315432

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Liabilities

Mortgage notes payable 81684

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1570

81S73

2245

Accrued expenses payable to related patty 39

Obligation to issue operating partnership units 2095

Other liabilities 525

2890

i087

Total Liabilities 85913 88639

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders Equity

Common stock $0.OOl par value 250000.000 shares authorized 30.865038 and

21159647 shares issued respectively and 10.064982 and 20158.894 shares

outstanding respectively II 21

Treasury stock 8334
Additional paid-in-capital 83.416

Accumulated deficit 2464

Total Stockholders Equity 80963

301926

66820

226793
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

dollars in thousands except share and per share data

For the

Period from

August 13 2010 to

December 31 2010

Successor

For the

Period from

January 2010 to

August 12 2010

Predecessor

Year Ended

December 31
2009

Predecessor

Year Ended

December 31
2008

Predecessor

Revenue

Rental revenue 5123 7880 12710 6228

Income from investments in loans 552

Other income

1348 7135 15794

164 237

Total Revenue 5675

Expenses

Management fees and buyout payments to

9228 20009 22259

related party 346

Marketing general and administrative

including stock-based compensation

expense of $374 $163 $2270 $1212

respectively 2923

8477 2235 4105

11021 11653 6623

Depreciation and amortization 1509

Realized gain loss on sale and

repayments of loans

Adjustment to valuation allowance on

Investment in Loans

2072 3375 1554

1064 2662

85S 4046 29327

Operating Expenses 4778 20708 12153 44271

Other Income Expense

Loss from investments in partially-owned

entities 1540

Unrealized gain loss on dedvative

1941 4397 4431

instruments 836
Interest income

41 153 237

99 72 395
Unrealized loss on Investments 524

Interest expense including amortization of

deferred financing costs 2139

Net Loss 2464

3578 6510 4521

16941 2826 30806

Loss per share of common stock

Net loss basic and diluted 0.24 0.84 0.14 1.47

Weighted average common shares

outstanding basic and diluted 10064212 20221329 20061763 20952972

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders Equity

dollars in thousands except share data

Common Stock
Treasury Additional Accumulated

Shares Stock Paid in Capital Deficit Total

Balance at December 31 2007 Predecessor 21017588 21 298444 5130 293335

Treasury stock purchased 1000000 8330 8330
Stockbased compensation fair value net of forfeitures 22000 410 410

Stock-based compensation to directors for services

rendered 25771 270 270

Warrants granted to manager 532 532

Dividends declared and paid on common stock 14279 14279
Net loss 30806 30806

Balance December 31 2008 Predecessor 20021359 $21 8330 299656 50215 241132

Treasury stock purchased 753
Stock based compensation fair value 90738 1970 1970

Stock-based compensation to directors far tervicet

rençlered 47550 .- 300 300

Dividends declared and paid on common stock 13779 13779
Net loss C. .. 2826 2826
Balance December 31 2009 Predecessor 20158894 $21 8334 301926 66820 226793

Stock-based compensation fair value0 150649

Stock-based compensation to directors for services

rendered 13634 163 163

Treasury stock purchasedct 59253 490 490
Distributions accrued on performance sharest3

Netloss 16941 16941

Balance August 12 2010 Predecessor 20263924 $21 8824 302089 83764 209522

Adjustment to additional paid-in capital to reflect fair

value 22669 22669

Shares issued to Tiptree Financial Partners L.P 6185050 55.659 55665

Elimination of predecessor additional paid-in capital net

of shares not tendered accumulated deficit and

treasury sharesta 19740050 20 8824 297372 83764 l204804

Balance August 13 2010 Successor 6.708924 $7 83.045 83052

Stock-based corispensation to directors for services

rendered 1596 23 24

Stock split shares for 3354462

Stock-based compensation to employees 351 351

Net loss 24641 2464

Balanee December 112010 Successor 10064982 $11 83416 2464 80963

Less than $500

Shares vested January 28 2010 for which compensation was recognized in prior years see Note 10

Shares purchased from employees of CIT Healthcare LLC and its affiliates pursuant to the tax withholding net settlement feature of

Company equity incentive awards see Note 10

Amounts accrued based on performance share award targets see Note 14

Reflects adjustments related to recapitalization of the Company from series of transactions for cash tender of shares and simultaneous

sale of shares to Tiptree Financial Partners L.P see Note

The Company completed three-for-two stock split in September 2010 in the form of stock dividend see Item

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the

Period from

August 13 2010 to

Decemher 31 2010

Successor

For the For the Year For the Year

Period from Ended Ended

January 2010 to December 31 December 31

August 12 2010 2009 2008

Predecessor Predecessor Predecessor

Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows

dollars in thousands

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net loss 2464
Adjustments to reconcile pet loss to net cash used in

16941 2826 30806

provided by operating activities

Increase in deferred rent receivable 991
Unrealized loss on Investments 524

1375 2411 1218

Realized gain/loss on sale and repayment of loans 1064 2662

Loss from investments in partially-owned entities 1540 1941 4397 4431

Distribution of income from partially owned entities 2753 3608 6867 3358

Amortization of loan premium paid on investments in

loans 1530 1927

Amortization and write off of deferred financing cost 80 689 367

Amortization of deferred loan fees 15 247 380
Stock-based compensation 374

Depreciation and amortization on real estate including

163 2270 1212

intangible assets 1509

Unrealized gainIloss on derivative instruments 836
Adjustment to valuation allowance on investments in

loans

2072 3415 1554

41 153 237

858 4046 29327

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accrued interest receivable 63

Decrease/Increase in Other assets 406
DecreaseIlncrease in Accounts payable and accrued

50 868 854

643 220 14

expenses 5943
Decreaseflncrease in Other liabilities including payable

to related party 3147

5268 620 116

2080 3475 598

Net cash used in provided by operating activities 7024
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

3247 6654 3Q29

Sale of loan to CIT 1-lenlthcare LLC

Sale of loans to third parties

Fixed asset purchases 162

42249

5880 55790

Loan repayments 531 10806 40379 54245

Loan investments

Investments in partially owned entities 224
Investments in real estate

10864
706 2452 326

i098Q

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 145 15980 135966 67925
Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Sale of shares to Tiptree Financial Partners L.P

Share tender offer

55665

177660
Borrowing under mortgage notes payable 82227

Principal payments under mortgage notes payable 328 518 344
Borrowings under warehouse line of credit 13601

Principal payments under warehouse line of credit

Treasury stock purchases

Payment of deferred financing costs

37781 830
490 8330

1012
Dividends paid 13779 14279

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 328
Net decrease/increase in cash and cash

equivalents 7207
Cash andcash equivalents begiosting of period 12239

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 5032

123006 51908 71377

110273 90712 16481

122512 31800 1531.9

12239 122512 31800

Suoolemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for interest 1893 3787 5834 4181

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2010 and 2009

Note Organization

Care Investment Trust Inc together with its subsidiaries the Company or Care unless otherwise indicated or

except where the context otherwise requires we us or our is real estate investment trust REIT with

geographically diverse portfolio of senior housing and healthcare-related assets in the United States From inception

through November 16 2010 Care was externally managed and advised by CIT Healthcare LLC CIT Healthcare Upon

termination of CIT Healthcare as our external manager Care internalized its management and entered into services

agreement with TREIT Management LLC TREIT which is an affiliate of Tiptree Capital Management LLC Tiptree

Capital by which Tiptree Financial Partners L.P Tiptree is externally managed Tiptree acquired control of Care on

August 13 2010 as discussed further in Note Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies As of

December 31 2010 Cares portfolio of assets consisted of real estate and mortgage related assets for senior housing

facilities skilled nursing facilities medical office properties and mortgage liens on healthcare related assets Our owned

senior housing facilities are leased under triple-net leases which require the tenants to pay all property-related

expenses

Care elected to be taxed as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code commencing with our taxable year ended

December 31 2007 To maintain our tax status as REIT we are required to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable

income to our stockholders At present Care does not have any taxable REIT subsidiaries TRS but in the normal

course of business we expect to form such subsidiaries as necessary

Note 2Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

On August 13 2010 Care completed the sale of control of the Company to Tiptree through combination of

$55.7 million equity investment by Tiptree in newly issued common stock of the Company at $9.00 per share and cash

tender the Tender Offer by the Company for all of the Companys previously issued and outstanding shares of

common stock the Tiptree Transaction Approximately 97.4% of previously existing shareholders tendered their

shares in connection with the Tiptree Transaction and the Company simultaneously issued to Tiptree approximately

6.19 million newly issued shares of the Companys common stock representing ownership of approximately 92.2% of

the Company Pursuant to the Tiptree Transaction CIT Healthcare ceased management of the Company as of

November 16 2010 Since such time Care has been managed through combination of internal management and

services agreement with TREIT

The Tiptree Transaction was accounted for as purchase in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification

ASC 805 Business Combinations ASC 805 and the purchase price was pushed-down to the Companys
consolidated financial statements in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 5J New Basis of

Accounting Required in Certain Circumstances When using the push-down basis of accounting the acquired

companys separate financial statements reflects the new accounting basis recorded by the acquiring company

Accordingly Tiptrees purchase accounting adjustments have been reflected in the Companys financial statements for

the period commencing on August 13 2010 The new basis of accounting reflects the estimated fair value of the

Companys assets and liabilities as of the date of the Tiptree Transaction

As result of the Tiptree Transaction the periods prior to August 13 2010 for which the Companys results of

operations financial position and cash flows are presented are reported as the Predecessor periods The period from

August 13 2010 through December 31 2010 for which the Companys results of operations financial position and cash

flows are presented is reported as the Successor period
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The following table shows fair value of assets and liabilities on the date of the Tiptree transaction resulting in an

adjustment to paid-in capital of $22.7 million

Dollars in thousands Fair Value as of

Item August 13 2010

Assets

Real Estate Net 107022

Cash 12239

Investments in loans 9553

Investments in partially-owned enfitiss 43350

Accrued interest receivable 127

Identified intangible assets leases in place 6693

Other assets 294

Total assets l79278

Liabilities

Mortgage notes payable 82074

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7512

Accrued expenses payable to related party 3l8b

Obligation to issue operating partnership units 2932

Other liabilities 525

Total liabilities 96229

Fair value of net assets acquired 83049

Cash paid by Tiptree for 6185050 shares at $9.00 per share 55665

Shares not tenderecl 523874 shares at $9.00 per share 4715

Adjustment to additional paid-in capital to reflect fair value 22669

Total equity 83049

For
purposes

of determining estimated fair value of the assets and liabilities of the Company as of August 13 2010

historical values were used for cash and cash equivalents as well as short term receivables and payables which

approximated fair value For real estate investments in loans investments in partially-owned entities leases in-place

and mortgage notes payable the value for each such item was independently determined using combination of

internal models based on historical operating performance in order to determine projections for future performance and

applying available current market data including but not limited to published industry discount and capitalization rates

for similar or comparable items historical appraisals and applicable interest rates on newly originated mortgage

financing as adjusted to take into consideration other relevant variables

In our opinion all adjustments which include fair value adjustments related to the acquisition necessary to

present fairly the financial position results of operations and cash flows have been made The Predecessor results of

operations for the period from January 2010 to August 12.2010 and the Successor results of operations for the period

from August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 are not necessarily indicative of the operating results for the full year

The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our subsidiaries which are wholly-owned

or controlled by us All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated Our consolidated financial

statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP in the United States of

America which require us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities

and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses during the reporting periods Actual results could differ materially from those estimates
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Investments in partially-owned entities where the Company exercises significant influence over operating and

financial policies of the subsidiary but does not control the subsidiary are reported under the equity method of

accounting Under the equity method of accounting the Companys share of the investees earnings or loss is included

in the Companys operating results

Segment Reporting

ASC 280 Segment Reporting ASC 280 establishes standards for the way that public entities report information

about operating segments in the financial statements We are REIT focused on originating and acquiring healthcare

related real estate and commercial mortgage debt and currently operate in only one reportable segment

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents

Included in cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2010 and 2009 are approximately $0.5 million and $1.1 million

respectively in customer deposits maintained in an unrestricted account

Real Estate and Identified Intangible Assets

Real estate and identified intangible assets are carried at cost net of accumulated depreciation and amortization

Betterments major renewals and certain costs directly related to the acquisition improvement and leasing of real estate

are capitalized Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred Depreciation is provided on straight-

line basis over the assets estimated useful lives which range from to 40 years

Upon the acquisition of real estate we assess the fair value of acquired assets including land buildings and

improvements and identified intangible assets such as above and below market leases acquired in-place leases and

customer relationships and acquired liabilities in accordance with ASC 805 Business Combinations ASC 805 and

ASC 350-30 Intangibles Goodwill and other ASC 350-30 and we allocate purchase price based on these

assessments We assess fair value based on estimated cash flow projections that utilize appropriate discount and

capitalization rates and available market information Estimates of future cash flows are based on number of factors

including the historical operating results known trends and marketieconomic conditions that may affect the property

Our properties including any related intangible assets are regularly reviewed for impairment under ACS

360-10-35-15 Impairment or Disposal ofLong-LivedAssets ASC 360-10-35-15 An impairment exists when the

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its fair value An impairment loss is measured based on the excess of the carrying

amount over the fair value We determine fair value by using discounted cash flow model and an appropriate discount

rate The evaluation of anticipated cash flows is subjective and is based in part on assumptions regarding future

occupancy rental rates and capital requirements that could differ materially from actual results If our anticipated

holding periods change or estimated cash flows decline based on market conditions or otherwise an impairment loss

may be recognized

Investments in Loans

Valuation of Loans Held at LOCOM Predecessor

We account for our investment in loans in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 948 Financial

Services Mortgage Banking ASC 948 which codified the FASBs Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting for Certain Mortgage Banking Activities Under ASC 948 loans expected to be held for the foreseeable

future or to maturity should be held at amortized cost and all other loans should be held at LOCOM measured on an

individual basis In accordance with ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC 820 the Company
includes nonperformance risk in calculating fair value adjustments As specified in ASC 820 the framework for

measuring fair value is based on independent observable inputs of market data
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At December 31 2008 in connection with our decision to reposition ourselves from mortgage REIT to

traditional direct property ownership REIT referred to as an equity REIT see Notes and and as result of

existing market conditions we transferred our portfolio of mortgage loans to LOCOM because we were no longer certain

that we would hold our portfolio of loans either until maturity or for the foreseeable future Prior to December 31 2008

we intended to hold our loans until maturity and therefore the loans had been carried at amortized cost net of

unamortized loan fees acquisition and origination costs and impairment charges if any In connection with the transfer

to LOCOM we recorded an initial valuation allowance of approximately $29.3 million representing the difference

between our carrying amount of the loans and their estimated fair value at December 31 2008 Interim assessments were

made of carrying values of the loans based on available data including sale and repayments on quarterly basis during

2009 Gains or losses on sales are determined by comparing sales proceeds to carrying values based on interim

assessments At December 31 2009 the valuation allowance for the predecessor was reduced to approximately

$8.4 million representing the difference between the carrying amounts and estimated fair value of the Companys three

remaining loans The Companys remaining loan was fair valued as of August 13 2010 in conjunction with the

Companys decision to adopt push-down accounting as part of its change of control and is carried by the Successor on

the December 31 2010 balance sheet at its amortized cost basis net of an allowance for unrealized losses of

approximately $0.4 million in accordance with the Companys intent to hold the loan to maturity

For loans held-for-investment interest income is recognized using the interest method or on basis approximating

level rate of return over the term of the loan Nonaccrual loans are those on which the accrual of interest has been

suspended Loans are placed on nonaccrual status and considered nonperforming when full payment of principal and

interest is in doubt or when principal or interest is 90 days or more past due and collateral if any is insufficient to cover

principal and interest Interest accrued but not collected at the date loan is placed on nonaccrual status is reversed

against interest income In addition the amortization of net deferred loan fees is suspended Interest income on

nonacerual loans may be recognized only to the extent it is received in cash However where there is doubt regarding

the ultimate collectibility of loan principal cash receipts on such nonaccrual loans are applied to reduce the carrying

value of such loans Nonaccrual loans may be returned to accrual status when repayment is reasonably assured and

there has been demonstrated performance under the terms of the loan or if applicable the restructured terms of such

loan The Company does not have any loans on non-accrual status as of December 31 2010

For the year ended December 31 2009 Predecessor we carried our loan investments at LOCOM Currently our

intent is to hold our remaining loan investment to maturity and we have therefore reflected this loan at its amortized

cost basis on the December 31 2010 consolidated balance sheet Investments in loans amounted to $8.6 million

Successor and $25.3 million Predecessor at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively This mortgage loan was

originally scheduled to mature on February 2011 The loan maturity has been extended twice first to April 21 2011

and subsequently to June 20 2011 As part of the second extension the borrower will continue to pay scheduled

principal and interest payments and default interest shall accrue Further in connection with the first extension the

lender consortium also agreed to liquidate an existing capital expense reserve Our share of this reserve was

approximately.$1 .0 million which we received on February 17 2011 and treated as partial principal paydown

Interest Income Recognition Credit Losses and Impairment

Coupon interest on the loans is recognized as revenue when earned Receivables are evaluated for collectability If

the fair value of loan held at LOCOM by Predecessor was lower than its amortized cost changes in fair value gains

and losses were reported through the consolidated statement of operations Loans previously written down may be

written up based upon subsequent recoveries in value but not above their cost basis

Expense for credit losses in connection with loan investments is charge to earnings to increase the allowance for

credit losses to the level that management estimates to be adequate to cover probable losses considering delinquencies

loss experience and collateral quality Impairment losses are taken for impaired loans based on the fair value of collateral

on an individual loan basis The fair value of the collateral may be determined by an evaluation of operating cash flow

from the property during the projected holding period and/or estimated sales value computed by applying an expected

capitalization rate to the stabilized net operating income of the specific
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property less selling costs Whichever method is used other factors considered relate to geographic trends and project

diversification the size of the portfolio and current economic conditions Based upon these factors we will establish an

allowance for credit losses when appropriate When it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts

contractually due the loan is considered impaired

Investment in Partially-Owned Entities

We invest in preferred equity interests that allow us to participate in percentage of the underlying propertys

cash flows from operations and proceeds from sale or refinancing At the inception of the investment we must

determine whether such investment should be accounted for as loan joint venture or as real estate Care invested in

two equity investments as of December 31 2010 and accounts for such investments under equity method

The Company assesses whether there are indicators that the value of its partially owned entities may be impaired

An investments value is impaired if the Company determines that decline in the value of the investment below its

carrying value is other than temporary To the extent impairment has occurred the loss shall be measured as the excess

of the carrying amount of the investment over the estimated value of the investment As of December 31 2010 the

Company has recognized an unrealized loss on investments of approximately $0.1 million on one of its partially owned

entities

Comprehensive Income

The Company has no items of other comprehensive income and accordingly net loss is equal to comprehensive

loss for all periods presented

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes rental revenue in accordance with ASC 840 Leases ASC 840 ASC 840 requires that

revenue be recognized on straight-line basis over the non-cancelable term of the lease unless another systematic and

rational basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the use benefit is derived from the leased property

Renewal options in leases with rental terms that are higher than those in the primary term are excluded from the

calculation of straight line rent if the renewals are not reasonably assured We commence rental revenue recognition

when the tenant takes control of the leased space The Company recognizes lease termination payments as

component of rental revenue in the period received provided that there are no further obligations under the lease

Interest income on investments in loans is recognized over the life of the investment on the accrual basis Fees

received in connection with loans are recognized over the term of the loan as an adjustment to yield Anticipated exit

fees whose collection is expected will also be recognized over the term of the loan as an adjustment to yield

Unamortized fees are recognized when the associated loan investment is repaid before maturity on the date of such

repayment Any premiums or discounts on purchased loans are amortized or accreted on the effective yield method over

the remaining terms of the loans

Income recognition will generally be suspended for loan investments at the earlier of the date at which payments

become 90 days past due or when in our opinion full recovery of income and principal becomes doubtful Income

recognition is resumed when the loan becomes contractually current and performance is demonstrated to be resumed

For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 we have no loans for which income recognition has been

suspended

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs represent commitment fees legal and other third party costs associated with obtaining

such financing These costs are amortized over the terms of the respective financing agreements on the effective

interest method and the amortization of such costs is reflected in interest expense Unamortized deferred financing costs

are expensed when the associated debt is refinanced or repaid before maturity Costs incurred in seeking financing

transactions which do not close are expensed in the period in which it is determined that the financing will not close
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Stock-based Compensation Plans

The Company has two stock-based compensation plans which remain in effect with the Successor described more

fully in Note 14 We account for the plans using the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 505-50 Equity-Based

Payments to Non-Employees ASC 505-50 and ASC 718 Compensation Stock Compensation ASC 718
ASC 505-50 and ASC 718 require that compensation cost for stock-based compensation be recognized ratably over the

service period of the award for non-employees and employees and board members respectively All of our stock-based

compensation for non-employees are adjusted in each subsequent reporting period based on the fair value of the award

at the end of such reporting period until the earliest of such time as the award has vested or the service being provided

is substantially completed or under certain circumstances is likely to be completed

Derivative Instruments Obligation to issue Operating Partnership Units

We account for derivative instruments in accordance with ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging In the normal

course of business we may use variety of derivative instruments to manage or hedge interest rate risk We will

require that hedging derivative instruments be effective in reducing the interest rate risk exposure they are designated

to hedge This effectiveness is essential for qualifying for hedge accounting Some derivative instruments may be

associated with an anticipated transaction In those cases hedge effectiveness criteria also require that it be probable

that the underlying transaction will occur Instruments that meet these hedging criteria will be formally designated as

hedges at the inception of the derivative contract

To determine the fair value of derivative instruments we may use variety of methods and assumptions that are

based on market conditions and risks existing at each balance sheet date For the majority of financial instruments

including most derivatives long-term investments and long-term debt standard market conventions and techniques

such as discounted cash flow analysis option-pricing models replacement cost and termination cost are likely to be

used to determine fair value All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of fair value and such

value may never actually be realized

We may use variety of commonly used derivative products that are considered plain vanilla derivatives These

derivatives typically include interest rate swaps caps collars and floors We expressly prohibit the use of

unconventional derivative instruments and using derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes Further

we have policy of only entering into contracts with major financial institutions based upon their credit ratings and

other factors so we do not anticipate nonperformance by any of our counterparties

Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as RUT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code To qualify as

REIT we must meet certain organizational and operational requirements including requirement to distribute at least

90% of our REIT taxable income to stockholders As REIT we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on

taxable income that we distribute to our stockholders If we fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year we will then be

subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and we will not be permitted to qualify for

treatment as REIT for federal income tax purposes
for four years following the

year during which qualification is

lost unless the Internal Revenue Service grants us relief under certain statutory provisions Such an event could

materially adversely affect our net income and net cash available for distributions to stockholders However we believe

that we will operate in such manner as to qualify for treatment as REIT and we intend to operate in the foreseeable

future in such manner so that we will qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes We may however be subject

to certain state and local taxes

In July 2006 the FASB issued Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes An

Interpretation ASC 740 of FASB Statement No 109 FIN 48 FIN 48 has been incorporated into ASC under

Section 740 Income Taxes ASC 740 prescribes recognition threshold and measurement attribute for how company

should recognize measure present and disclose in its financial statements uncertain tax positions that the company
has taken or expects to take on tax return ASC 740 requires that the financial statements reflect expected future tax

consequences of such positions presuming the taxing authorities full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts

but without considering time values ASC 740 was adopted by the Company and became effective
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beginning January 2007 All tax years from 2007 and forward remain open for the examination by the IRS The

Company does not have any uncertain tax positions as of December 31 2010 The Company does not have any

uncertain tax positions as of December 31 2010

Earnings per Share

We present basic earnings per
share or BPS in accordance with ASC 260 Earnings per Share Basic BPS excludes

dilution and is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding

during the period Diluted BPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue

common stock were exercised or converted into common stock where such exercise or conversion would result in

lower BPS amount At December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 diluted BPS was the same as basic BPS because all outstanding

restricted stock awards were anti-dilutive The operating partnership units issued in connection with an investment See
Note are in escrow and do not impact BPS

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes Significant

estimates are made for the valuation allowance on investment in loans Predecessor valuation of derivatives fair value

assessments with respect to the Companys decision to implement push-down accounting as part of its change of

control and impairment assessments Actual results could differ from those estimates

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash real

estate mortgage loan investment and interest receivable We may place our cash investments in excess of insured

amounts with high quality financial institutions We perform ongoing analysis of credit risk concentrations in our real

estate and loan investment portfolios by evaluating exposure to various markets underlying property types investment

structure term sponsors tenant mix and other credit metrics The collateral securing our loan investments are real

estate properties located in the United States

In addition we are required to disclose fair value information about financial instruments whether or not recognized

in the financial statements for which it is practical to estimate that value In cases where quoted market prices are not

available fair value is based upon the application of discount rates to estimated future cash flows based on market

yields or other appropriate valuation methodologies Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and

develop estimated fair value Accordingly the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts

we could realize on disposition of the financial instruments The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation

methodologies may have material effect on the estimated fair value amounts

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-06 Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurement to

enhance the usefulness of fair value measurements The amended guidance requires both the disaggregation of

information in certain existing disclosures as well as the inclusion of more robust disclosures about valuation

techniques and inputs to recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements This ASU amends ASC 820 to add new

requirements for disclosures about transfers into and out of Levels and and separate disclosures about purchases

sales issuances and settlements relating to Level measurements This ASU also clarifies existing fair value

disclosures about the level of disaggregation and about inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value

This ASU is effective for the first reporting period including interim periods beginning after December 15 2009 except

for the requirement to provide the Level activity of purchases sales issuances and settlements on gross basis

which will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 and for interim periods within those fiscal

years Barly adoption is permitted The adoption of this standard did not affect our financial condition results of

operations or cash flows
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Consolidation ASC 810

In June 2009 the FASB amended the guidance for determining whether an entity is variable interest entity or VIE

The guidance requires an entity to consolidate VIE if it has the power to direct the activities that most significantly

impact the VIEs economic performance and ii the obligation to absorb the losses of the VIE or the right to receive the

benefits from the VIE which could be significant to the VIE The pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning

after November 15 2009 On January 2010 the Company adopted the FASB guidance for determining whether an

entity is variable interest entity such adoption did not have any effect on our financial condition results of

operations or cash flows

Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments

On July 21 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-20 which amends ASC 310 by requiring more robust and

disaggregated disclosures about the credit quality of an entitys financing receivables and its allowance for credit

losses For
purposes

of ASU 2010-20 financing receivables includes mortgage loans This standard is effective for

financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods ending after December 15 2010 The Company adopted

the standard in the fourth quarter of 2010

Note 3Real Estate Properties

On June 26 2008 we purchased twelve 12 senior living properties for approximately $100.8 million from Bickford

Senior Living Group LLC an unaffiliated party Concurrent with the purchase we leased these properties to Bickford

Master LLC the Master Lessee or Bickford for initial annual base rent of $8.3 million and additional base rent of

$0.3 million with fixed escalations of 3% per annum for 15 years The lease provides for four renewal options of ten

years
each The additional base rent is deferred and accrues for the first three

years
of the initial lease term and then is

paid over 24 month period commencing with the first month of the fourth year July of 2011 We funded this

acquisition using cash on hand and mortgage financing of $74.6 million

On September 30 2008 we purchased two additional senior living properties for approximately $10.3 million from

Bickford Senior Living Group LLC Concurrent with the purchase we amended the aforementioned lease with Bickford

the Bickford Master Lease to include these two properties at an initial annual base rent of $0.8 million and

additional base rent of $0.03 million with fixed escalations of 3% per annum for 14.75 years the remaining term of the

Bickford Master Lease The additional base rent is deferred and accrues for the first 33 months of the initial lease term

and then is paid over 24 month period starting with the first month of the fourth year of the Bickford Master Lease

July of 201 We funded this acquisition using cash on hand and mortgage financing of $7.6 million

Additionally as part of the June 26 2008 transaction we sold back property acquired on March 31 2008 from

Bickford Senior Living Group LLC The property was sold at its net carrying amount which did not result in gain or

loss to the Company

In connection with the sale of control of the Company to Tiptree discussed in Note the Company completed an

assessment of the allocation of the fair value of the acquired assets including land buildings equipment and in-place

leases in accordance with ASC 805 Business Combinations and ASC 350 Intangibles Goodwill and Other Based

upon that assessment the allocation of the fair value of the Bickford assets acquired was as follows in millions

Btiildings and improvements

Furniture fixtures and equipment

95.6

6.4

Land 5.0

Identified intangibles leases in-place Note 6.7

113.7

As of December 31 2010 the properties owned by Care and leased to Bickford were 100% managed or operated by

Bickford Senior Living Group LLC As an enticement for the Company to enter into the leasing arrangement for the

properties Care received additional collateral and guarantees of the lease obligation from
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parties affiliated with Bickford who act as subtenants under the Bickford Master Lease The additional collateral

pledged in support of Bickfords obligation to the lease commitment included properties and ownership interests in

affiliated companies of the subtenants

Future minimum annual rental revenue under the non-cancelable terms of the Companys operating leases at

December 31 2010 are as follows in thousands

2011 10176

2012 10874

2013 10974

2014 11062

Thereafter OS434

151520

Note 4Investments in Loans

As of December 31 2010 Successor and December 31 2009 Predecessor our net investments in loans

amounted to $8.6 million and $25.3 million respectively For the period from August 13 2010 to December 31 2010

Successor the period from January 2010 to August 12 2010 Predecessor and for the year ended December 31

2009 we received $0.5 million $16.7 million and $138.4 million respectively in principal repayments and proceeds from

loan sales and recognized $0 $0 and $1.5 million respectively in amortization of the premium which was recorded as

reduction of our interest income Our loan investments have historically included senior whole loans and participations

secured primarily by real estate and other collateral in the form of pledges of ownership interests direct liens or other

security interests and have been in various geographic markets in the United States We maintain one loan investment

as of December 31 2010 The remaining loan investment is variable rate loan and all loans held by the predecessor at

December 31 2009 were variable rate as well Our investments in loans had weighted average spread of 4.08% and

6.76% over one month LIBOR an effective yield of 4.34% and 6.99% and an average maturity of approximately 0.3 and

1.0 year at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Our remaining mortgage loan investment at December 31 2010 in

which we are participant in larger credit facility was scheduled to mature on February 2011 The agent for the

credit facility has been engaged in discussions with the borrower with respect to repayment of the credit facility and in

connection with these negotiations the lender consortium and the borrower all agreed to initially extend the loan

maturity to April 21 2011 and subsequently to June 20 2011 As part of the second extension the borrower will

continue to pay scheduled principal and interest payments and default interest shall accrue Further in connection with

the first extension the lenders agreed to liquidate the capital expenditure reserve which resulted in principal paydown

to us of approximately $1.0 million on February 17 2011 One month LIBOR was 0.26% and 0.23% at December 31 2010

and December 31 2009 respectively As of December 31 2010 we have recognized an allowance for loan loss of

approximately $0.4 million on our remaining mortgage investment

December 31 2010 Successor

Location Cost Interest Maturity

Property Type City State Basis 000s Rate Date

SNFISrAppts/ALF Various Texas/Louisiana 8995 L4.30% 4/21/11

Unrealized Loss on Investments 443

Investments in loans 8552
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December 31 2009 Predecessor

Location Cost Interest Maturity

Property Type City State Basis ODDs Rate Date

SNF/ALPab Nacogdoches Texas 9338 L3 tS% 10/02/li

SNF/Sr.Appts/ALF Various Texas/Louisiana 14226 L4.30% 02/01/11

SNFac Various Michigan 10118 L1MO% 02/19/10

Investment in loans gross 33742

Valuation allowance 8417
Investments in loans 25325

The mortgages are subject to various interest rate floors ranging from 6.00% to 11.5%

Loan sold to third party in March 2010 for approximately $6.1 million of cash proceeds before selling costs

Loan repaid at maturity in February 2010 for approximately $10.0 million

During the year ended December 31 2010 the Company received proceeds of approximately $0.5 million

Successor and $10.8 million Predecessor related to the scheduled principal payments as well as the prepayment of

mortgage loans and received proceeds of approximately $5.9 million Predecessor related to sales of mortgage loans to

third parties During the year ended December 31 2009 Predecessor the Company received proceeds of approximately

$40.4 million related to the prepayment of mortgage loans and received proceeds of approximately $42.2 million related to

sales to CIT Flealthcare and approximately an additional $55.8 million from sales of mortgage loans to third parties As of

December 31 2010 the Company held one remaining loan investment

Note Sales of Investments in Loans

On September 30 2008 we finalized Mortgage Purchase Agreement the Agreement with CIT Healthcare that

provided us an option to sell loans from our investment portfolio to our former Manager at the loans fair value on the

sale date

Pursuant to the Agreement on February 2009 we sold one loan with net carrying amount of approximately

$22.5 million as of December 31 2008 Proceeds from the sale approximated the net carrying value of $22.5 million We
incurred loss of $4.9 million on the sale of this loan The loss on this loan was included in the valuation allowance on

the loans held at LOCOM at December 31 2008 On August 19 2009 we sold two mortgage loans with net carrying

value of approximately $2.9 million as of December 31 2008 On September 162009 we sold interests in participation

loan in Michigan with net carrying value of approximately $19.7 million as of December 31 2008 and reduced to

$18.7 million at the time of sale as result of principal paydown Proceeds from the sale of the interests in the

participation loan were approximately $17.4 million or approximately $1.3 million less than the net carrying value On

November 2008 we sold loan with carrying amount of approximately $24.8 million and incurred loss of $2.4 million

In addition to our loan sales to CIT Healthcare we also completed number of sales with non-affiliates On

September 15 2009 we sold four mortgage loans to third party with net carrying value of approximately

$22.8 rsiillion as of December 31 2008 and $22.4 million as of June 30 2009 Proceeds from the sale of these four

mortgage loans were approximately $24.8 million or approximately $2.4 million above the net carrying value On

October 2009 we sold one mortgage loan with net carrying value of $8.2 million as of December 31 2008 and an

adjusted value of $8.4 million as of June 30 2009 Proceeds from the sale of this mortgage loan were approximately

$8.5 million or approximately $0.1 million above the net carrying value On November 12 2009 we sold one mortgage

loan to third party with net carrying value of approximately $19.3 million as of December 31 2008 and an adjusted

value of $19.9 million as of June 30 2009 Proceeds from the sale of this mortgage loan were approximately $22.4 million

or approximately $2.5 million above the net carrying value

On February 19 2010 one borrower repaid one of the Companys mortgage loans with net carrying value of

approximately $10.0 million on the repayment date No gain or loss was recorded on the repayment

On March 22010 we sold one mortgage loan to third party with net carrying value of approximately

$5.9 million After deducting selling costs no gain or loss was recorded on the sale
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Note Investment in Partially-Owned Entities

On December 31 2007 Care through its subsidiary ERC Sub L.P purchased an 85% equity interest in eight

limited liability entities owning nine medical office buildings with value of approximately $263.0 million for

approximately $61.9 million in cash including the funding of certain reserve requirements and 700000 operating

partnership units OP Units as described in more detail herein At the time of acquisition the properties were

encumbered by approximately $178.9 million of asset specific non-recourse mortgage financing The seller was

Cambridge Holdings Incorporated Cambridge and the interests were acquired through DownREIT partnership

subsidiary i.e ERC Sub L.P The 700000 Op Units issued by us to Cambridge were placed in escrow and were subject

to future performance of the underlying properties Based on the expected timing of the release of the operating

partnership units from escrow the fair value of the operating partnership units was $2.1 million and $2.9 million on

December 31 2010 Successor and 2009 Predecessor respectively At December 31 2014 each OP Unit held in escrow

at that time is redeemable into one share of the Companys common stock subject to certain conditions The Company

has the option to pay cash or issue shares of the Companys common stock upon redemption

In accordance with ASC 820 the obligation to issue the OP Units is accounted for as derivative instrument

Accordingly the value of this obligation is reflected as liability on the Companys balance sheet will be remeasured

every period until the OP Units are released from escrow

Care will receive an initial preferred minimum return of 8.0% on capital invested at close with 2.0% per annum

escalation until certain portfolio performance metrics are achieved As of December 31 2010 the properties carry

$178.4 million in asset-specific non recourse mortgage debt The earliest maturity date of such is the fourth quarter of

2016 and the weighted average fixed interest rate of the mortgage debt is 5.88%

The Cambridge portfolio contains approximately 767000 square feet and eight of the properties are located in

major metropolitan markets in Texas and the remaining property is located in Baton Rouge Louisiana The properties are

situated on leading medical center campuses or adjacent to prominent acute care hospitals or ambulatory surgery

centers Affiliates of Cambridge act as managing general partners of the entities that own the properties as well as

manage and lease these facilities

Summarized financial information as of December 31 2010 and 2009 for the Companys unconsolidated joint

venture in Cambridge is as follows amounts in millions

2010 2009

Amount Amount

Assets

Liabilities

2153

189.8

2264

190.5

Equity 25.5 35.9

Revenue 25.3 24.8

Expenses 30.7 31.4

Net Loss 5.4 6.6

For the period from August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 Successor for the period from January 12010 to

August 12 2010 Predecessor and the year ended December 31 2009 our allocable loss from our Cambridge portfolio

investment amounted to approximately $1.9 million $2.7 million and $5.6 million respectively which included

approximately $5.7 million $3.4 million and $9.6 million respectively attributable to our 85% share of the depreciation

and amortization expenses associated with the Cambridge properties For the period from August 13 2010 to

December 31 2010 Successor for the period from January 2010 to August 12 2010 Predecessor and the year ended

December 31 2009 we received approximately $2.8 million $3.6 million and $6.9 million in distributions from our

investment in Cambridge

On December 31 2007 the Company also formed joint venture SMC-CIT Holding Company LLC with an affiliate

of Senior Management Concepts LLC to acquire four independent and assisted living facilities located in Utah The

four facilities contain total of 243 independent living units and 165 assisted living units The properties were

constructed in the last 25 years and two were built in the last ten 10 years Total capitalization
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of the joint venture is approximately $61.0 million Care invested $6.8 million in exchange for 100% of the preferred equity

interests and 10% of the common equity interests of the joint venture The Company will receive preferred return of

15% on its invested capital and an additional common equity return equal to 10% of the projected free cash flow after

payment of debt service and the preferred return Subject to certain conditions being met our preferred equity interest is

subject to redemption at par beginning on January 2010 We retain an option to put our preferred equity interest to

our partner at par any time beginning on January 2016 If our preferred equity interest is redeemed we have the right

to put our common equity interest to our partner within thirty 30 days after notice at fair market value as determined by

third-party appraiser Affiliates of Senior Management Concepts LLC have leased the facilities from the joint venture

for 15 years expiring in 2022 Care accounts for its investment in SMC-CIT Holding Company LLC under the equity

method As of December 31 2010 the Company has recognized an unrealized loss on investments of approximately $0.1

million on its SMC investment

SMC with our approval has entered into sales transaction for three of the four properties in the joint

venture The transaction is currently scheduled to close on April 29 2011 Currently SMC is delinquent with respect to

two months of preferred payments totaliag approximately $0.2 million We expect that proceeds from the sale of the

three properties will be sufficient to enable us to recover such delinquent amounts as well as our allocable preferred

equity investment in the three properties and 10% of the residual proceeds representing our 10% common interest in

the SMC portfolio In addition we presently maintain deposit reserve of approximately $0.5 million which is available

to us to recover any monthly payment shortfalls The transaction is subject to normal closing conditions and we can

offer no assurance that the transaction will ultimately close

Summarized financial information as of December 31 2010 Successor and 2009 Predecessor for the Companys
unconsolidated joint venture in SMC is as follows amounts in millions

2010 2009

Amount Amount

Assets

Liabilities

56.8

53.9

58.1

54.5

Equity 2.9 3.6

Revenue 6.1 6.1

Expenses 6.3 6.3

Net loss 0.2 0.2

For the period from August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 Successor the period from January 12010 to

August 12 2010 Predecessor and for the year ended December 31 2009 we recognized approximately $0.8 million

$0.4 million and $1.2 million respectively in equity income from our interest in SMC and received equivalent amounts in

cash distributions respectively See Note 19

Note Identified Intangible Assets leases in-place net

In connection with the transfer of control of the Company to Tiptree and the election to use push-down

accounting we undertook an assessment of the allocation of the fair value of the acquired assets as discussed in more

detail in Note

The following table summarizes the Companys identified intangible assets as of December 31 2010

amounts in thousands

Leases in-place 6693

Accumulated amortization 216

6477
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The estimated annual amortization of acquired in-place leases for each of the succeeding years as of December 31

2010 is as follows amounts in thousands

2011 518

2012 518

2013 518

2014 518

2015 518

Thereafter 3887

The Company amortizes this intangible asset over the terms of the underlying lease on straight-line basis

Note 8Other Assets

Other assets at December 31 2010 Successor and 2009 Predecessor consisted of the following amounts in

thousands

December 31 December 31

2010 2009

Successor Predecessor

Straight-line effect of lease revenue 991 3628

Prepaid expenses 406 722

Receivables 263 166

Furniture and leasehold improvements net 162

Deferred exit fees and other 101

Total other assets 1822 4617

Note 9Borrowings under Warehouse Line of Credit

On October 2007 Care entered into master repurchase agreement with Column Financial Inc Column an

affiliate of Credit Suisse one of the underwriters of Cares initial public offering in June 2007 This type of lending

arrangement is often referred to as warehouse facility The agreement provided an initial line of credit of up to

$300 million which could be increased temporarily to an aggregate amount of $400 millionunder the terms of the

Agreement

On March 2009 Care repaid the outstanding balance of the facility in full and terminated the warehouse line of

credit

Note 10Mortgage Notes Payable

On June 26 2008 with the acquisition of the twelve 12 properties from Bickford the Company entered into

mortgage loan with Red Mortgage Capital Inc for approximately $74.6 million The terms of the mortgage require

interest-only payments at fixed interest rate of 6.845% for the first twelve 12 months Commencing on the first

anniversary and every month thereafter the mortgage loan requires fixed monthly payment of approximately

$0.5 million for both principal and interest at fixed interest rate of 6.845% until the maturity in July 2015 when the then

outstanding balance of approximately $69.6 million is due and payable Care paid approximately $0.5 million $0.2 million

and $0.3 million in principal amortization during the period from August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 Successor the

period from January 12010 to August 12 2010 Predecessor and the year ended December 31 2009 Predecessor

respectively The mortgage loan is collateralized by the twelve 12 properties

On September 30 2008 with the acquisition of the two additional properties from Bickford the Company entered

into an additional mortgage loan with Red Mortgage Capital Inc for $7.6 million The terms of the mortgage require

monthly interest and principal payments of approximately $52000 based on fixed interest rate of 7.17 until the

maturity in July 2015 when the then outstanding balance of approximately $7.1 million is due and payable Care paid

approximately $50000 and $25000 and $0.1 million in principal amortization during the period from August 13 2010 to

December 31 2010 Successor the period from January 12010 to August 12 2010
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Predecessor and the year ended December 31 2009 Predecessor respectively The mortgage loan is collateralized by

the two properties

As of December 31 2010 principal repayments due under all borrowings thru maturity are as follows in millions

2011 0.9

2012 0.9

2013 1.0

2014 1.1

2015 71.3

Note 11 Other Liabilities

Other liabilities as of December 31 2010 Successor and 2009 Predecessor consist principally of deposits and real

estate escrows from joint venture partners and borrowers amounting to approximately $0.5 million and approximately

$1.1 million respectively

Note 12 Related Party Transactions

Management Agreement with CIT Healthcare

The Company entered into an Amended and Restated Management Agreement dated as of January 15 2010

AR Management Agreement which amended the original Management Agreement dated on June 27 2007 the

Management Agreement as previously amended by Amendment No to the Management Agreement The AR
Management Agreement became effective upon approval by the Companys stockholders of the plan of liquidation on

January 28 2010 Pursuant to its terms the AR Management Agreement was to continue in effect until December 31
2011 unless earlier terminated in accordance with its terms Effective February 2010 the AR Management

Agreement also reduced the monthly base management fee payable to CIT Healthcare to $125000 with such amount

being subject to further reduction In addition the termination fee of $15.4 million was replaced by buyout payment of

$7.5 million which was subsequently reduced to $7.4 million

On November 2010 the Company entered into Termination Cooperation and Confidentiality Agreement the

CIT Termination Agreement with CIT Healthcare Pursuant to the CIT Termination Agreement the parties terminated

the AR Management Agreement as of November 16 2010 the Termination Effective Date The CIT Termination

Agreement also provides for an 180 day cooperation period beginning on the Termination Effective Date relating to the

transition of management of the Company from CIT llealthcare to the officers of the Company two year mutual

confidentiality period and mutual release of all claims related to CIT Healthcares management of the Company
Pursuant to the CIT Termination Agreement the Company paid CIT Healthcare on the Termination Effective Date

$2.4 million plus $0.2 million representing earned but unpaid monthly installments of the base management fee due

under the AR Management Agreement These amounts were in addition to the $5.0 million previously paid by the

Company with respect to the buyout fee during the first two quarters of 2010

In addition to the management fee and buyout payment we were also responsible in 2010 and 2009 for reimbursing

CIT Healthcare for its pro rata portion of certain expenses detailed in the initial Management Agreement and

subsequent amendments such as rent utilities office furniture equipment and overhead among others required for

our operations Accordingly transactions with CIT Healthcare during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

included

Our expense recognition and payment of $7.4 million for the buyout payment obligation to CIT Healthcare in

2010

Our expense recognition and payment of $1.1 million and $2.2 million for the years ended December 31 2010 and

December 31 2009 respectively for the base management fee to CIT Healthcare

On February 2009 the Company closed on the sale of loan to CIT Healthcare for proceeds of $22.5 million
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On August 19 2009 the Company closed on the sale of loan to CIT Healthcare for proceeds of $2.3 million

and

On September 16 2009 the Company closed on the sale of loan to CIT Healthcare for proceeds of $17.4 million

Our expense recognition of $0.6 million and $4.1 million for the three months and year ended December 31 2008

respectively for the Base Management Fee

On November 20 2008 we sold loan with book value of $24.8 million to our Manager for proceeds of $22.4

resulting in an approximate loss of $2.4 million

Services Agreement with TREIT Management LLC

On November 2010 the Company entered into Services Agreement the Services Agreement with TREIT

pursuant to which TREIT will provide certain advisory services related to the Companys business beginning on the

Termination Effective Date For such services the Company will pay TREIT monthly base services fee in arrears of

one-twelfth of 0.5% of the Companys Equity as defined in the Services Agreement and quarterly incentive fee of

15% of the Companys AFFO Plus Gain/Loss On Sale as defined in the Services Agreement so long as and to the

extent that the Companys AFFO Plus Gain ILoss on Sale exceeds an amount equal to Equity multiplied by the Hurdle

Rate as defined in the Services Agreement Twenty percent 20% of any such incentive fee shall be paid in shares of

common stock of the Company unless greater percentage is requested by TREIT and approved by an independent

committee of the board of directors of the Company The initial term of the Services Agreement extends until

December 31 2013 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of the Services Agreement and will be

automatically renewed for one year periods following such date unless either party elects not to renew the Services

Agreement in accordance with its terms If the Company elects to terminate without cause or elects not to renew the

Services Agreement Termination Fee as defined in the Services Agreement shall be payable by the Company to

TRE1T

Transactions with TREIT during the years ended December 31 2010 included

$0.1 million for management fees paid to TREIT Management LLC

Other Transactions with Related Parties

In connection with the sale of control of the Company to Tiptree CIT Healthcare sold warrants to purchase

435000 shares of the Companys common stock at $17.00 per share the Warrant under the Manager Equity Plan

adopted by the Company on June 21 2007 the Manager Equity Plan The Warrant which was granted to CIT

Healthcare by the Company as consideration for amendments to earlier versions of the Management Agreement and

which was immediately exercisable expires on September 30 2018 and was adjusted to 652500 shares of the Companys
common stock at $1 1.33 per share as result of the three for two stock split announced by the Company in September

2010

In accordance with ASC 505 50 the Company used the Black-Scholes option pricing model to measure the fair

value of the Warrant on the date of sale of control of the Company to Tiptree The Black-S choles model valued the

Warrant using the following assumptions at the fair value date of August 13 2010

Volatility

Expected Dividend Yield

20.1%

7.59%

Risk-free Rate of Return 3.6%

Current Market Price $8.96

Strike Price $I10O

Term of Warrant 8.14 years

The fair value of the Warrant was approximately $36000 at August 13 2010 and is recorded as part of additional

paid-in-capital in connection with the transaction
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Note 13Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has established processes for determining the fair value of financial instruments Fair value is based

on quoted market prices where available If listed prices or quotes are not available then fair value is based upon

internally developed models that primarily use inputs that are market-based or independently-sourced market

parameters

financial instruments categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based
upon

the lowest level of input that

is significant to the fair value measurement The three levels of valuation hierarchy are defined as follows

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in

active markets

Level inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active

markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly for substantially the full

term of the financial instrument

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement

The following describes the valuation methodologies used for the Companys financial instruments measured at

fair value as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy

Investments in loans At December 31 2009 the fair value of our loan portfolio was based primarily on appraisals

obtained from independent third parties entity specializing in the sale and trading of mortgage and debt assets in the

secondary market Investing in healthcare-related commercial mortgage debt is transacted through an over-the-counter

market with minimal pricing transparency Loans are infrequently traded and market quotes are not widely available and

disseminated At December 31 2010 we valued our remaining loan at amortized cost less allowances for unrealized

losses For purposes of both determining value on August 13 2010 and the amount of the subsequent allowance for

unrealized losses we utilized internal modeling factors using level inputs

Obligation to issue operating partnership units the fair value of our obligation to issue OP Units is based on

an internally developed valuation model as quoted market prices are not available nor are quoted prices available for

similar liabilities Our model involves the use of management estimates as well as some Level inputs The variables in

the model include the estimated release dates of the shares out of escrow based on the expected performance of the

underlying properties discount factor of approximately 21% as of December 31 2010 and 15% as of December 31

2009 and the market price and expected quarterly dividend of Cares common shares at each measurement date

ASC 820-l0-50-2bb ASC 820 requires disclosure of the amounts of significant transfers between Level and

Level of the fair value hierarchy and the reasons for the transfers In addition ASC 820 requires entities to separately

disclose in their rollforward reconciliation of Level fair value measurements changes attributable to transfers in

and/or out of Level and the reasons for those transfers Significant transfers into level must be disclosed separately

from transfers out of level

The following table presents the Companys financial instruments carried at fair value on the consolidated balance

sheets as of December 31 2010 Successor and December 31 2009 Predecessor

Fair Value at December 31 2010

Successor

in millions Level Level Level Total

Liabilities

Obligation to issue operating partnership unitsl 2.1 $2.1

Fair Value at December 31 2009

Predecessor

Level Level Level Total

Assets

Investment in loans 16.1 9.2 $25.3

Liabilities

Obligation to issue operating partnership unitsl 2.9 $2.9
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At December 31 2010 Successor the fair value of our obligation to issue partnership units was $2.1 million and we recorded

unrealized gain of $0.8 million on revaluation at December31 2010 Successor and an unrealized gain of $0.1 million on revaluation

at December 31 2009 Predecessor

The table below present reconciliations for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis using

significant Level inputs during the year ended December 31 2010 Level instruments presented in the tables include

liability to issue operating partnership units which are carried at fair value The Level instruments were valued using

internally developed valuation models that in managements judgment reflect the assumptions marketplace

participant would use at December 31 2010

Level Instruments

Fair Value Measurements

Obligation to

Issue Investments

Partnership in Loans at

dollars in millions Units LOCOM

Balance Decembef 31 2009 Predecessor

Repayments of loans

2.9 25.3

10.8

Sales of loan to third party 5.9
Total unrealized gain included in income statement 0.9

Balance August 122010 Predecessor $.. 2.9 9.5

Net change in unrealized gain from obligations owed/investments held at August 12

2010 0.7

Balance December 312010 Successor

Net change in unrealized gain from obligations owed/investments held at December 31
2010 0.8

In addition we arc required to disclose fair value information about financial instruments whether or not recognited

in the financial statements for which it is practical to estimate that value In cases where quoted market prices are not

available fair value is based upon the application of discount rates to estimated future cash flows based on market

yields or other appropriate valuation methodologies Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and

develop estimated fair value Accordingly the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts

we could realize on disposition of the financial instruments The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation

methodologies may have material effect on the estimated fair value amounts

In addition to the amounts reflected in the financial statements at fair value as provided above cash and cash

equivalents accrued interest receivable accounts payable and accrued expenses accrued expenses payable to related

party and other liabilities reasonably approximate their fair values due to the short maturities of these items The

mortgage notes payable of approximately $73.8 million and approximately $7.5 million that were used to finance the

acquisitions of the Bickford properties on June 26 2008 and September 30 2008 respectively were revalued in

connection with the Tiptree Transaction and our election to utilize push-down accounting and determined to have

combined fair value of approximately $82.1 million on August 13 2010 and combined fair value of approximately

$80.7 million as of December 31 2010 The fair value of the debt was calculated by determining the present value of the

agreed upon cash flows at discount rate reflective of financing terms currently available to us for collateral with the

similar credit and quality characteristics

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business The primary risk which may be managed

by using derivative instruments is interest rate risk We may enter into interest rate swaps caps floors or similar

instruments to manage interest rate risk associated with the Companys borrowings The company has no interest rate

derivatives in place as of December 31 2010

We are required to recognize all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities at fair value in the statement ot

financial position As of December 31 2010 the Company has only one derivative instrument which pertains to the

OP Units issued in conjunction with the Cambridge investment The Company has not designated this derivative

instrument as hedging instrument Accordingly our consolidated financial statements include the
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following fair value amounts and reflect gains and losses associated with the aforementioned derivative instrument

dollars in thousands

December 31 December 31

2010 2009

Successor Predecessor

Balance Balance Balance

Derivatives not designated as Sheet Fair Sheet Fair

hedging instruments Location Value Location Value

Operating Partnership Units Obligation to issue Obligation to issue

operating partnership units 2095 operating partnership units 2890

Total Derivatives $2095 $2890

Amount of Gain/Loss

Recognized in Income on

Derivative

Year Ended

For the

Period from For the

August 13 2010 to Period from

Location of Gain/Loss December 31 January 2010 to December 31

Derivatives not designated as Recognized in Income on 2010 August 12 2010 2009

hedging instruments Derivative Successor Predecessor Predecessor

Unrealizedgain/loss on

derivative

Operating Partnership Units instruments 836 41 155

Unreahzedgain/loss on

derivative

Interest Rate Caps instruments

Totni 836 41 1S3

Note 14Stockholders Equity

Our authorized capital stock consists of 100000000 shares of preferred stock $0.00 par value and

250000000 shares of common stock $0.00 par value As of December 31 2010 and 2009 no shares of preferred stock

were issued and outstanding and 30865038 Successor and 21159647 Predecessor shares of our common stock were

issued respectively and 10064982 Successor and 20158894 Predecessor shares of common stock were outstanding

respectively

Equity Plan

Restricted Stock Grants

At the time of our initial public offering in June 2007 we issued 133333 shares of common stock to certain CIT

Healthcare employees some of whom were officers or directors of Care and we also awarded 15000 shares of common

stock to Cares independent Board members The shares granted to CIT Healthcares employees had an initial vesting

date of June 222010 three years from the date of grant The shares granted to our independent Board members were

scheduled to vest ratably on the first second and third anniversaries of the grant During the year ended December 31
2008 42000 shares of restricted stock granted to CIT Healthcares employees were forfeited and 10000 shares vested

due to termination of an officer of CIT Flealthcare without cause In addition 20000 shares of restricted stock were

granted to Board member who formerly served as an employee of CIT Healthcare These shares had fair value of

$183000 at issuance and had an initial vesting date of June 27 2010

On January 28 2010 our shareholders approved the Companys plan of liquidation Under the terms of each of the

aforementioned stock awards the approval of the plan of liquidation by our shareholders accelerated the vesting of the

awards on that day
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Schedule of Shares Equity Plan

Grants to Grants to

Independent CIT Healthcares Total

Directors Employees Grants

Balance at January 2008 Predecessor t5000 133333 148333

Granted 20000 20000

Vested 5000 10000 1500a

Forfeited 42000 42000

Balance at December 312008 Predecessor 30000 81333 111333

Granted

Vested 30000 81333 111 333

Forfeited

Balance at December 312009 Predecessor __________

Granted 30000

Vested 28000

Forfeited 2000

Balance at August 12 2010 Predecessor

Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Balance at December 31 2010 Successor

Restric ted Stock Units

On April 2008 the Compensation Committee the Committee of the Board of Directors of Care awarded the

Companys CEO 35000 shares of restricted stock units RSUs under the Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Incentive

Plan Equity Plan The RSUs had fair value of $385000 on the grant date The initial vesting of the award was 50%

on the third anniversary of the award and the remaining 50% on the fourth anniversary of the award Under the terms of

these awards shareholder approval of the plan of liquidation accelerated the vesting of the awards on January 28 2010

On November 2009 the Board of Directors of Care awarded our Chairman of the Board of Directors 10000

restricted stock units which were initially subject to vesting in four equal installments commencing on November

2010 Under the terms of this award shareholder approval of the plan of liquidation accelerated the vesting of this award

on January 28 2010

Long-Term Equity Incentive Progroins

On May 12 2008 the Committee approved two new long-term equity incentive programs under the Equity Plan

The first program is an annual performance-based RSU award program the RSU Award Program All RSUs granted

under the RSU Award Program included vesting period of four years The second program is three year

performance share plan the Performance Share Plan

In connection with the initial adoption of the RSU Award Program certain employees of CIT Healthcare and its

affiliates were granted 68308 RSUs on the adoption date with grant date fair value of $0.7 million In 2009 9242 of

these shares were forfeited and 14763 of these shares vested in May of that year Achievement of awards under the

2008 RSU Award Program was based upon the Companys ability to meet both financial AFFO per share and strategic

shifting from mortgage to an equity REIT performance goals during 2008 as well as on the individual employees

ability to meet performance goals In accordance with the 2008 RSU Award Program 49961 RSUs and 30333 RSUs were

granted on March 12 2009 and May 2009 respectively
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Under the Performance Share Plan participant is granted number of performance shares or units the settlement

of which will depend on the Companys achievement of certain pre-determined financial goals at the end of the three

year performance period Any shares received in settlement of the performance award were to be issued to the

participant in early 2011 without any further vesting requirements With respect to the 2008-2010 performance periods

the performance goals related to the Companys ability to meet both financial compound growth in AFFO per share

and share return goals total shareholder return versus the Companys healthcare equity and mortgage REIT peers The

Committee established threshold target and maximumlevels of performance If the Company met the threshold level of

performance participant earned 50% of the performance share grant if it met the target level of performance

participant earned 100% of the performance share grant and if it achieve the maximum level of performance participant

earned 200% of the performance share grant Similarly shareholder approval of the plan of liquidation accelerated the

vesting of performance shares granted under the Performance Share Plan

On December 10 2009 the Company granted special transaction performance share awards to plan participants for

an aggregate amount of 15000 shares at target levels and an aggregate maximum amount of 30000 shares On

February 23 2010 the terms of the awards were modified such that the awards were triggered upon the execution of one

or more of the following transactions that resulted in liquidity to the Companys stockholders during 2010 within the

parameters expressed in the special transaction performance share awards agreement merger or other business

combination resulting in the disposition of all of the issued and outstanding equity securities of the Company ii
tender offer made directly to the Companys stockholders either by the Company or third party for at least majority

of the Companys issued and outstanding common stock or iii the declaration of aggregate distributions by the

Companys Board equal to or exceeding $8.00 per share In 2010 total of 2000 of these shares were forfeited and

28000 shares representing the maximumtarget level were issued in connection with the completion of the Tiptree

Transaction on August 13 2010

The Equity Plan will automatically expire on the 10th anniversary of the date it was adopted Cares Board of

Directors may terminate amend modify or suspend the Equity Plan at any time subject to stockholder approval in the

case of amendments or modifications For the period from August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 and For the period from

January 2010 to August 12 2010 and the Year Ended December 31 2009 we recorded $0.4 million $0.2 million and

$2.3 million of expense related to compensation respectively Approximately $0.8 million of the expense recorded in 2009

related to accelerated vesting in the aggregate All of the shares issued under our Equity Plan prior to the sale of control

to Tiptree are considered non-employee awards and the expense for each period prior to the consummation of the

Tiptree Transaction was determined based on the fair value of each share or unit awarded over the required performance

period

In conjunction with the Tiptree Transaction and as part of internalizing management the Company entered into

employment arrangements with five employees in November of 2010 As part of their compensation the employees

were granted in aggregate 73999 shares of stock which they received on January 2011 The aggregate value of the

shares granted was approximately $351000 and was recorded as compensation expense in the fourth quarter of 2010

As of December 31 2010 exclusive of the stock grant described in the preceding paragraph 238514 shares remain

available for future issuances under the Equity Plan

Shares Issued to Directors für Hoard Fees

On January 2010 April 2010 July 2010 and October 18 2010 8030 5604 5772 and 1596 shares of common

stock respectively with an aggregate fair value of approximately $170500 were granted to our independent Directors as

part of their annual retainers Subsequent to the completion of the Tiptree Transaction each independent Director

receives an annual base retainer of $50000 payable quarterly in arrears of which 70% is paid in cash and 30% in

common stock of Care Prior to such time each independent Director received an annual base retainer of $100000

payable quarterly in arrears of which 50% was paid in cash and 50% in common stock of Care Shares granted as part of

the annual retainer vest immediately and are included in general and administrative expense
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Manager Equity Plan

Upon completion of our initial public offering in June 2007 approximately 1.3 million shares were made available

and we granted 607690 fully vested shares of our common stock to CIT Healthcare under the Manager Equity Plan all

of which were repurchased by the Company as part of the share tender offer in August of 2010 At December 31 2010

282945 shares remain available for future issuances under the Manager Equity Plan which is net of 435000 shares

which are reserved for potential issuance upon conversion of warrant issued to CIT Healthcare and sold to Tiptree as

further described in Note 12 The Manager Equity Plan will automatically expire on the 10th anniversary of the date it

was adopted Cares Board of Directors may terminate amend modify or suspend the Manager Equity Plan at any time

subject to stockholder approval in the case of amendments or modifications

Note iSLoss per share in thousands except share and per share data

For the Period For the Period

from August 13 from January For the Year For the Year

2010 to 2010 to Ended Ended

December 31 2010 August 12 2010 December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Successor Predecessor Predecessor Predecessor

Loss per share basic and diluted 0.24 0484 0.14 1.47

Numerator

Net loss 2464 16941 2826 30$06
Denominator

Weighted Average Common
Shares Outstanding 10064212 20221329 20061763 20952972

Diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per share for each period because all outstanding restricted stock

awards were anti-dilutive

Note 16 Commitments and Contingencies

At December 31 2010 Care was obligated to provide approximately $0.9 million in tenant improvements related to

our purchase of the Cambridge properties

On November 2010 the Company entered into Services Agreement the Services Agreement with TREIT

pursuant to which TREIT will provide certain advisory services related to the Companys business beginning upon the

effective termination of CIT Healthcare as our external manager For such services the Company will pay TREIT

monthly base services fee in arrears of one-twelfth of 0.5% of the Companys Equity as defined in the Services

Agreement and quarterly incentive fee of 15% of the Companys AFFO Plus Gain/Loss On Sale as defined in the

Services Agreement so long as and to the extent that the Companys AFFO Plus Gain Loss on Sale exceeds an

amount equal to Equity multiplied by the Hurdle Rate as defined in the Services Agreement Twenty percent 20% of

any such incentive fee shall be paid in shares of common stock of the Company unless greater percentage is

requested by TREIT and approved by an independent committee of directors The initial term of the Services Agreement

extends until December 31 2013 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of the Services Agreement and

will be automatically renewed for one year periods following such date unless either party elects not to renew the

Services Agreement in accordance with its terms If the Company elects to terminate without cause or elects not to

renew the Services Agreement Termination Fee as defined in the Services Agreement shall be payable by the

Company to TREIT
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The table below summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31 2010

Amounts in millions 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter

Commitment to fund tenant improvements $0.9

Mortgage notes payable 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 80.4

TREIT Base management fee0 04 04 04

Company Office Lease 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.8

Subject to increase based on increases in shareholders equity The termination fee payable to TREIT in the event of non-renewal of

the Services Agreement by the Company is not fixed and determinable and is therefore not included in the table

Class-action litigation

On September 18 2007 class action complaint for violations of federal securities laws was filed in the United

States District Court Southern District of New York alleging that the Registration Statement relating to the initial public

offering of shares of our common stock filed on June 21 2007 failed to disclose that certain of the assets in the

contributed portfolio were materially impaired and overvalued and that we were experiencing increasing difficulty in

securing our warehouse financing lines On January 18 2008 the court entered an order appointing co-lead plaintiffs

and co-lead counsel On February 19 2008 the co-lead plaintiffs filed an amended complaint citing additional

evidentiary support for the allegations in the complaint It was our position throughout that the complaint and

allegations vere without merit and accordingly our intent was to defend against the complaint and allegations

vigorously We filed motion to dismiss the complaint on April 22 2008 The plaintiffs filed an opposition to our motion

to dismiss on July 2008 to which we filed our reply on September 10 2008 On March 2009 the court denied our

motion to dismiss Care filed its answer on April 15 2009 At conference held on May 15 2009 the Court ordered the

parties to make ajoint submission the Joint Statement setting forth the specific statements that Plaintiffs claim

are false and misleading ii the facts on which Plaintiffs rely as showing each alleged misstatement was false and

misleading and iii the facts on which Defendants rely as showing those statements were true The parties filed the

Joint Statement on June 2009 On July 31 2009 the parties entered into stipulation that narrowed the scope of the

proceeding to the single issue of the warehouse financing disclosure in the Registration Statement Fact discovery

closed on April 23 2010

Care filed motion for summary judgment on July 92010 By Opinion and Order dated December 222010 the

Court granted Defendants summary judgment motion in its entirety and directed the Clerk of the Court to enter

judgment accordingly

On January 11 2011 the parties entered into stipulation ending the litigation In the stipulation plaintiffs

waived any and all appeal rights that they have in the action including without limitation the right to appeal any

portion of the Courts Opinion and Order granting Cares summary judgment or the judgment entered by the Clerk

iiCare waived any and all rights that they have to seek sanctions of any form against Plaintiffs or their counsel in

connection with the action and iiieach party agreed it would bear its own fees and costs in connection with the

action The stipulation was so ordered by the Court on January 122011 bringing the litigation to close

Cambridge litigation

On November 25 2009 we filed lawsuit in the U.S District Court for the Northern District of Texas against

Mr Jean-Claude Saada and 13 of his companies the Saada Parties seeking declaratory judgments that we have

the right to engage in business combination transaction involving our Company or sale of our wholly owned

subsidiary that serves as the general partner of the partnership that holds the direct investment in the portfolio without

the approval of the Saada Parties ii the contractual right of the Saada Parties to put their interests in the Cambridge

medical office building portfolio has expired and iii the operating partnership units held by the Saada Parties do not

entitle them to receive any special cash distributions made to our stockholders We also brought affirmative claims for

tortious interference by the Saada Parties with prospective contract and for their breach of the implied covenant of

good faith and fair dealing

On January 27 2010 the Saada Parties answered our complaint and simultaneously filed counterclaims the

Counterclaims that named our subsidiaries ERC Sub LLC and ERC Sub L.P our then external manager CIT

Healthcare and our then Board Chairman Flint Besecker as additional third-party defendants The Counterclaims

seek four declaratory judgments construing certain contracts among the parties that are largely the mirror image of our

declaratory judgment claims In addition the Counterclaims also seek monetary damages
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for purported breaches of fiduciary duty and the duty of good faith and fair dealing as well as fraudulent inducement

against us and the third-party defendants jointly and severally

The Counterclaims further request indemnification by ERC Sub L.P pursuant to contract between the parties

and the imposition of constructive trust on our current assets to be disposed as part of any future liquidation of

Care including all proceeds from those assets Although the Counterclaims do not itemize their asserted damages they

assign these damages value of $100 million or more In addition the Saada Parties filed motion to dismiss our

tortious interference and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing claims on January 27 2010 In

response to the Counterclaims we filed on March 52010 an omnibus motion to dismiss all of the Counterclaims

On March 22 2010 we received letter from Cambridge Holdings which asserted that the proposed Tiptree

Transaction was in violation of our agreements with the Saada Parties

The Saada Parties filed their opposition to our omnibus motion to dismiss on March 26 2010 and we filed our

response on April 2010

On April 14 2010 the Saada Parties motion to dismiss was denied and our motion to dismiss was also denied

On April 27 2010 we filed an answer to the Saada Parties third-party complaint We continue to believe that the

arguments advanced by Cambridge Holdings lack merit On May 28 2010 Cambridge Holdings filed motion for leave

to amend is previously-asserted counterclaims and third-party complaint to include new claim for breach of contract

against Care This proposed new claim asserts that Cambridge Holdings and Care agreed in October 2009 to sale of

ERC Sub L.P.s 85% limited partnership interest in the Cambridge properties back to Cambridge Holdings for $20 million

in cash plus certain other arrangements involving the cancellation of partnership units and existing escrow accounts

The proposed new claim further asserts that Care reneged on this purported agreement after having previously agreed

to all of its material terms thus breaching the agreement Further the proposed new claim seeks specific performance

of the purported contract Care denies that any agreement of the sort alleged by Cambridge Holdings was ever reached

and Care also believes that the proposed new claim suffers from several deficiencies Care filed its opposition on

June 18 2010 and Cambridge Holdings replied on July 2010 In the meantime on June 21 2010 ERC Sub L.P sought

leave to amend its counterclaims to assert breach of contract action against Cambridge Holdings Cambridge Holdings

did not oppose ERC Sub L.P.s motion On August 2010 the Court granted the Saada Parties motion for leave to

amend and the Saada Parties filed their Amended Answer Counterclaims and Third-Party Complaint on August

2010 On August 2010 the Court also granted ERC Sub L.P.s unopposed motion for leave to amend and ERC Sub

L.P filed its Amended Answer and Counterclaim on August 52010 The Saada Parties answered ERC Sub L.P.s

Counterclaim on August 23 2010 Care moved to dismiss the Saada Parties new breach-of-contract cause of actioa on

August 18 2010 The Saada Parties responded on September 32010 and Care replied on September 14 2010 The court

denied Cares motion to dismiss without opinion on September 21 2010 Care answered the amended counterclaim on

October 2010

On August 202010 pursuant to court order the parties jointly designated mediator On September 92010 the

parties filed joint motion asking the court to make certain scheduling modifications to limit litigation activity and

expense prior to the mediation including an extension of discovery deadlines The Court granted the motion on

September 14 2010 The parties held court-ordered mediation session on October 19 2010

To date the mediation discussions have been unsuccessful and the litigation is ongoing

Care is not presently involved in any other material litigation nor to our knowledge is any material litigation

threatened against us or our investments other than routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of business

Management believes the costs if any incurred by us related to such litigation will not materially affect our financial

position operating results or liquidity
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Note 17 Quarterly Financial Information Unnudited

Summarized unaudited consolidated quarterly information for each of the years ended December 31 2010

Successor and Predecessor and 2009 Predecessor is provided below

Amounts in millions except per share amounts Quarter or Period Ended

2010 March 31 June 30 July 1-Aug 12

Predecessor Predecessor Predecessor

Aug 13-Sept 30 Dec 31

Successor Successor

Revenues 4.0 3.6 1.7

Loss available to common shareholders 8.4 1.9 6.6

Loss per share basic and dllutedt 0.42 0.09 0.33

2.0 33

0.4 2.1

0.04 0.21

Amounts in millions except per share amounts Quarter Ended

2009 Predecessor March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31

Revenues 6.1 5.1 5.0 3.9

Income loss available to common shareholders 2.5 0.5 0.4 4.4

Earnings loss per share basic and dilutedtl 0.12 0.03 0.02 0.21

Basic and diluted are the same as inclusion of diluted shares woutd be anti-dilutive

Note l8Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated all events or transactions occurring subsequent to December 31 2010 and through

March 31 2011 which represents the date the financial statements are available to be issued Adjustments or additional

disclosures if any have been included in these financial statements

Investment in Loans

Our remaining mortgage loan investment in which we are participant in larger credit facility was slated to

mature on February 2011 The agent for the credit facility has been engaged in discussions with the borrower with

respect to repayment of the credit facility and in connection with these negotiations the lender consortium and the

borrower agreed to initially extend the loan maturity to April 21 2011 and subsequently to June 20 2011 As part of the

second extension the borrower will continue to pay scheduled principal and interest payments and default interest

shall accrue Further in connection with the first extension the lender consortium also agreed to liquidate an existing

capital expense reserve Our share of this reserve was approximately $1.0 million which we received on February 17 2011

and treated as partial principal paydown

investment in SMC

SMC with our approval has entered into sales transaction for three of the four properties in the joint

venture The transaction is currently scheduled to close on April 29 2011 Currently SMC is delinquent with respect to

two months of preferred payments totaling approximately $0.2 million We expect that proceeds from the sale of the

three properties will be sufficient to enable us to recover such delinquent amounts as well as our allocable preferred

equity investment in the three properties and 10% of the residual proceeds representing our 10% common interest in

the SMC portfolio In addition we presently maintain deposit reserve of approxirpately $0.5 million which is available

to us to recover any monthly payment shortfalls The transaction is subject to normal closing conditions and we can

offer no assurance that the transaction will ultimately close

in vestment in Cambridge

On March Il 2011 we received approximately $1.1 million related to the quarterly distribution for the fourth quarter

of 2010 from Cambridge

Share Grants

On January 2011 the Company issued 73999 shares in the aggregate to officers and employees of the Company

as part of 2010 compensation agreements which we recognized as compensation expense of $0.4 million for the period

from August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 Successor
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ITEM Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

ITEM 9A Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be

disclosed in the our filings under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time

periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated

to the our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely

decisions regarding required disclosure We also have investments in unconsolidated entities which are not under our

control Consequently our disclosure controls and procedures with respect to these entities are necessarily more

limited than those we maintain with respect to our consolidated subsidiaries Notwithstanding the foregoing no matter

how well control system is designed and operated it can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that it will

detect or uncover failures within our Company to disclose material information otherwise required to be set forth in our

filings under the Exchange Act

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

On August 13 2010 we had change of control upon closing of the Tiptree Transaction On November 16 2010

we terminated our management agreement with CIT Healthcare as our external manager internalized our management

and entered into the Services Agreement with TREIT In connection with this series of transactions and events our

internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f changed Such change

was incurred as of November 16 2010 the effective termination date of our management agreement with CIT Healthcare

At such time Management implemented new internal controls over financial reporting which are consistent with the

revised management structure Based on such evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have

concluded that as of the end of such period our disclosure controls and procedures are effective

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting

for the Company The Companys internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles The Companys internal control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the Company

ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of

the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company and

iiiprovide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the consolidated financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
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controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies

and procedures included in such controls may deteriorate

Our management did not make an assessment of our internal control over financial reporting as December 31 2010

for the reasons enumerated below

From our inception until November 16 2010 the Termination Date we were externally managed by CIT

Healthcare We paid CIT Healthcare monthly management fee for services rendered which included accounting

and finance functions In providing these services to us CIT Healthcare utilized the accounting system and

personnel of CIT Group Inc CIT Upon termination of CIT Healthcare as our external manager we no longer

had access to the CIT accounting system or its personnel

On November 2010 our then Chief Financial Officer Paul Hughes resigned and was replaced by our current

Chief Financial Officer Steven Sherwyn

Effective on the Termination Date management was internalized iicorporate headquarters was relocated

iii our Services Agreement with TREIT to provide us with certain advisory services became effective and

iv management took control of the accounting books and records

As part of maintaining the accounting books and records for the Company management implemented internal

control over financial reporting The change in internal control over financial reporting necessitated by the facts

presented above did not occur until the Termination Date or November 16 2010 Accordingly as of year-end

such internal control over financial reporting had only been implemented for total of 44 days period which

was insufficient for management and our internal auditor to complete full assessment of is effectiveness

Our Independent auditor did not conduct an audit of or render any report with respect to our internal control over

financial reporting as of and for the year ended December 31 2010

ITEM 9B Other Information

An Annual Meeting of Stockholders the Annual Meeting was announced on November 22 2010 and held on

December 20 2010

Proxies for the Annual Meeting were solicited pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act At the Annual

Meeting stockholders voted on proposal to elect seven directors to serve until the 2011 annual meeting of

stockholders or until their successors are duly elected and qualified to ratify the selection of Deloitte Touche LLP as

our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31 2010 and to consider and act upon such other matters

that may properly be bought before the annual meeting or at any adjournments or postponements thereof The number

of votes cast for and against these proposals and the number of abstentions and broker non-votes are set forth below

Item For Withheld Broker Non-Votes

Proposal Election of seven noniineesto the Board of Directors

Michael Barnes 9427600 51427 482687

Geoffrey Kauffman 9427300 51727 482687

Salvatore Torey Riso 9428050 50977 482687

Flint Besecker 9428350 50677 482687

RainerTwiford 9472261 6766 482687

Jonathan Ilany 9472261 6766 482687

William Houlihan 9472261 6766 482687

Proposal Ratification of Deloitte Touche as independent auditors for

fiscal year 2010 9955493 4971 1250

Special Meeting of Stockholders the Tiptree Special Meeting was announced on July 15 2010 and held on

August 13 2010 Proxies for the Annual Meeting were solicited pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act At

the Tiptree Special Meeting stockholders voted on proposal for approval of the issuance of shares of our common

stock par value $0.00 per share to be issued in connection with the purchase and sale agreement dated

89



Table of Contents

March 16 2010 in which Tiptree Financial Partners L.P Tiptree agreed to purchase shares of our common stock

Proposal and for proposal to approve the abandonment of the plan of liquidation which was approved by the

Companys stockholders on January 28 2010 in favor of the Tiptree Transaction Proposal Stockholders also voted

on proposal to approve an amendment to the Companys charter to remove provision designed to protect our status

as real estate investment trust or RElY under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended in order to facilitate

the Tiptree Transaction Proposal and to approve an amendment to our charter to be effective on the 20th calendar

day following the consummation of the Tiptree Transaction reinstating the REIT protective provision removed by

Proposal Proposal Stockholders also were asked to approve proposal to adjourn the special meeting if

necessary to permit further solicitation of proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to

approve proposals or Proposal The number of votes cast for and against these proposals and the number of

abstentions are set forth below

Item For Against Abstain

Proposal Issuance of shares to Tiptree 16207193 25463 66983

Proposal Abandonment of plan of Liquidation 16207193 25463 66983

Proposal Amendment of Articles of Incorporation to remove Section 7.2 laiii 16207193 25463 66983

Proposal Amendment of Articles of Incorporation to reinstate Section 7.2.1a

iii 16207193 25463 66983

Proposal Adjournment of Tiptree Special Meeting 16133607 107596 58436

Special Meeting of Stockholders the Special Meeting was announced on December 29 2009 and held on

January 28 2010

Proxies for the Special Meeting were solicited pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act At the Special

Meeting stockholders voted on proposal for approval of the Companys plan of liquidation and proposal to

approve any adjournment of the special meeting including if necessary to solicit additional proxies in favor of the plan

of liquidation proposal if sufficient votes to approve such plan of liquidation proposal were not available The number

of votes cast for and against these proposals and the number of abstentions and broker non-votes are set forth below

Item For Against Abstain

Proposal Plan of Liquidation 11858977 18634 760

Proposal Adjournment of Special Meeting 11574640 301884 1847
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Part III

ITEM 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance of the Registrant

The information called for by ITEM 10 is incorporated by reference to the information under the caption Election

of Directors in the Registrants definitive proxy statement relating to its Annual Meeting of Stockholders

ITEM 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by ITEM ii is incorporated by reference to the information under the caption Executive

Compensation in the Registrants definitive proxy statement relating to its Annual Meeting of Stockholders

ITEM 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by ITEM 12 is incorporated by reference to the information under the caption Security

Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management in the Registrants definitive proxy statement relating to its

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

ITEM 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by ITEM 13 is incorporated by reference to the information under the caption Certain

Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence in the Registrants definitive proxy statement

relating to its Annual Meeting of Stockholders

ITEM 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by ITEM 14 is incorporated by reference to the information under the caption

Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm in the Registrants definitive proxy

statement relating to its Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Part IV

ITEM 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

List of Documents Filed

Financial Statements

All financial statements are set forth under ITEM of this Annual Report and are incorporated herein by reference

Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules required are set forth under ITEM of this Annual Report and are incorporated herein by reference

Exhibits

The exhibits filed in response to Item 601 of Regulation S-K are listed on the Exhibit Index which is attached hereto

and incorporated by reference herein

Exhibits

The exhibits filed in response to Item 601 of Regulation S-K are listed on the Exhibit Index which is attached hereto

and incorporated by reference herein

Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules

None
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Schedule HI Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

December 31 2010

Dollars in thousands

Real Estate

Balance at December 31 2009 Predecessor $106020

Additionsfadjustnient during the year
Land

Buildings and improvements 1002

Balance at December 31 2010 Successor $107022

Aecwnulated Depreciation

Balance at December 31 2009 Predecessor 4481

Additions during the year

Additions/Adjustments charged to operating expense 3188

Balance at December 312010 Successor 1293
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Schedule IV Mortgage Loans on Real Estate

December 31 2010

Dollars in thousands

Location Carrying Interest Maturity

Property Typea City State Amount Rate Date

SNF/Sr.Appts/ALF Various Texas/Louisiana 8995 L4.30% 04/21111

Unrealized loss on Investments 443

Investment in Loans 8552

SNF refers to skilled nursing facilities ALF refers to assisted living facilities ICF refers to intermediate care facility and Sr Appts

refers to senior living apartments

Balance at December 312009 Predecessor 25325

Additions

New loans and advances on existing loans

Amortization of loan fees 15

Deductions

Repayments 11337
Sale of baa to third parties 5880
Unrealized loss on Investments 443

Adjustments to lower of cost or market reserve 858

Realized gain on sale and repayment of loans

Balance at December 31 2010 Successor 8552
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Care Investment Trust Inc

By /5/ Steven Sherwyn

Steven Sherwyn

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

March 16 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been duly signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

Is Salvatore Torey Riso Jr President Chief Executive Officer and March 31 2011

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr
Director Principal Executive Officer

Is Steven Sherwyn Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer March 31 2011

Steven Sherwyn
Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

Is Michael Barnes Chairman of the Board of Directors March 31 2011

Michael Barnes

Is Geoffrey Kauffman Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors March 31 2011

Geoffrey Kauffman

Is Flint Besecker Lead Director March 31 2011

FlintD Besecker

Is RainerTwiford Director March 31 2011

Rainer Twiford

/s William Houlihan Director March 31 2011

William Houlihaa

Is Jonathan Ilany Director March 31 2011

Jonathan Ilany
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No Description

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the

Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by

reference

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Companys
Form lO-Q File No 00 1-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

4.1 Form of Certificate for Common Stock previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Form S-il as

amended File No 333-141634 filed on June 72007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.1 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock dated as of September 30 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to

the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on October 2008 and herein incorporated by

reference

10.2 Multifamily Note dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K

File No 00 1-33549 filed on July 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.3 Exceptions to Non-Recourse Guaranty dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the

Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on July 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.4 Master Lease Agreement dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys
Form 8-K File No 00 1-33549 filed on July 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.5 Purchase and Sale Contract dated as of May 142008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys
Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on May 20 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.6 Performance Share Award Agreement under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan dated as

of May 122008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed

on November 14 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.7 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan dated as of

April 82008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 00 1-33549 filed on

April 14 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.8 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan

previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on April 14 2008

and herein incorporated by reference

10.9 Contribution and Purchase Agreement dated as of December 31 2007 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to

the Companys Form 8-K File No 00 1-33549 filed on January 2008 and herein incorporated by

reference

10.10 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form lO-Q

File No 001 -33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.11 Care Investment Trust Inc Manager Equity Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys
Form 10-Q File No 00 1-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.12 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously

filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 5-11 as amended File No 333-141634 filed on June 2007

and herein incorporated by reference

10.13 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously

filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Form S-li as amended File No 333-141634 filed on June 2007

and herein incorporated by reference

10.14 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Manager Equity Plan

previously filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Form S-li as amended File No 333-141634 filed on

June 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.15 Form of Indemnification Agreement previously filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys Form S-li as

amended File No 333-141634 filed on June 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.16 Loan Purchase Agreement with CapitaiSource Bank dated September 15 2009 previously filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form lO-Q File No 001-33549 filed on November 92009 and herein

incorporated by reference
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Exhibit No Description

10.17 Loan Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of October 2009 by and between Care Investment

Trust Inc and General Electric Capital Corporation previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys
Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on November 18 2009 and herein incorporated by reference

10.18 Form of Performance Share Award Granted to the Companys Chairman of the Board and Executive

Officers dated December 10 2009 and amended and restated on February 23 2010

10.19 Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between Care Investment Trust Inc and Tiptree Financial

Partners L.P dated as of March 162010 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K

File No 001-33549 filed on March 16 2010 and herein incorporated by reference

10.20 Registration Rights Agreement by and between Care Investment Trust Inc and Tiptree Financial

Partners L.P dated as of March 16 2010 previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K

File No 00 1-33549 filed on March 16 2010 and herein incorporated by reference

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company filed herewith

23.1 Consent of Deloitte Touche dated as of March 16 2011 filed herewith

31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewith

31.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewith

32.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 furnished herewith

32.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 furnished herewith
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Section EX-21.1 EX-21.1

EXHIBIT 21.1

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES OF CARE INVESTMENT TRUST INC

Name Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Formation

ERC Sub LLC Delaware

ERC Sub L.P Delaware

Care YBE Subsidiary LLC Delaware

Back To Top

Section EX-23.1 EX-23.1

Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No 333-145410 on Form 5-8 of our report

dated March 31 2011 relating to the financial statements and financial statement schedules of Care Investment

Trust Inc and subsidiaries appearing in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Care Investment Trust Inc as of

December 31 2010 Successor for the period from January 2010 to August 12 2010 Predecessor and for the period

from August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 Successor which report expresses an unqualified opinion on the

consolidated financial statements and includes an explanatory paragraph concerning the change in basis of

accounting

1sf Deloitte Touche LLP

New York New York

March 31 2011
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Section EX-31.1 EX-31.1



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Care Investment Trust Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were

made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and

for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15t and 15d-l5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an

annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal

control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors or

persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 31 2011

1sf Salvatore Torey Riso Jr

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Section EX-31.2 EX-31.2

EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Steven Sherwyn certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Care Investment Trust Inc



Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were

made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and

for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and l5d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an

annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal

control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors or

persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 31 2011

Is Steven Sherwyn

Steven Sherwyn

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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Section EX-32.1 EX-32.1

EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Care Investment Trust Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report
Salvatore Torey Riso Jr the Chief Executive Officer of the Company certify in my capacity as an officer of the

Company pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d as applicable of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and

ii The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company as of and for the periods covered in the Report



Is Salvatore Torey Riso Jr

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr
President and Chief Executive Officer

Care Investment Trust Inc

Dated March 312011
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Section EX-32.2 EX-32.2

EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification Pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Care Investment Trust Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report
Paul Hughes the Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify in my capacity as an officer of the Company

pursuant to 18 U.S .C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d as applicable of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and

iiThe information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company as of and for the periods covered in the Report

is Steven Sherwyn

Steven Sherwyn

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Care Investment Trust Inc

Dated March 31 2011
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K/A

Amendment No

Mark One

Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2010

or

Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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___________
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Conunission File Number 001-33549
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Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K 229.405 is not contained herein and will not
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10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller reporting

company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act

Check one



Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company

Do not check if smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 2b-2 of the Act Yes No
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which the common equity was last sold or the average bid and asked price of such common equity as of the last day of the registrants most

recently completed second fiscal quarter $107671122
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

Care Investment Trust Inc the Company is filing this Amendment No ito Form 10-K on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended

December 31 2010 in order to amend and restate Part III Items 10 through 14 and Part IV Item 15 of the report on Form 10-K that we originally filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC on March 31 2011

This Form 10-K/A has been prepared and filed in reliance on General Instruction to Form 10-K which provides that registrants may provide

the information required by Part III in definitive proxy statement or an amendment to the Form 10-K filed with the SEC within 120 days after the

end of the fiscal year covered by the report The Company had initially planned to file the Part III information in definitive proxy statement The

Company has determined to instead file this Form 10-K/A to provide the Part III information within the required time period This Form 10-K/A also

amends Item 15 to update the exhibit list that was originally provided in the Form 10-K

In accordance with Rule 2b- 15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act each item of the original Form 10-

that is amended by this Form 10-K/A is restated in its entirety and this Form 10-K/A is accompanied by currently dated certifications on Exhibits

31.1 and 32.1 by the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Exhibits 31.2 and 32.2 by the Companys Chief Financial Officer

The original Form 10-K is therefore amended to delete the reference on the cover of the original Form 10-K to the incorporation by reference

of definitive proxy statement into Part III of such Form 10-K and iirevise Part III Items 10 through 14 and Part IV Item 15 of the Companys

original Form 10-K to include information previously omitted from the original Form 10-K

Except as described above no other changes have heen made to the original Form ID-K The original Form 10-K continues to speak as of

March 31 2011 the date the Company filed the original Form 10-K with the SEC and other than as expressly indicated in this Form 10-K/A the

Company has not updated the disclosures contained therein to reflect any events that have occurred at date subsequent to March 31 2011

Accordingly this Form 10-K/A should be read in conjunction with the original Form 10-K and the Companys other reports filed thereafter

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Care Investment Trust Inc all references to Care the Company we us and our mean Care Investment Trust Inc and its

subsidiaries makes forward-looking statements in this Form 10-K/A that are subject to risks and uncertainties Forward-looking statements

include all statements that do not relate solely to historical or current facts and can be identified by the use of words such as may will

expect believe intend plan estimate continue should and other comparable terms These forward-looking statements include

information about possible or assumed future results of our business and our financial condition liquidity results of operations plans and

objectives They also include among other things statements concerning anticipated revenue income or loss capital expenditures dividends

capital structure or other financial terms as well as statements regarding subjects that are forward-looking by their nature

The forward looking statements are based on our beliefs assumptions and expectations of our future performance taking into account the

information currently available to us These beliefs assumptions and expectations can change as result of many possible events or factors not

all of which are known to us If change occurs our business financial condition liquidity and results of operations may vary materially from

those expressed in our forward looking statements You should carefully consider these risks that could cause actual results to vary from our

forward looking statements when you make decision concerning an investment in our securities We are not obligated to publicly update or

revise any forward looking statements whether as result of new information future events or otherwise



Part III

ITEM 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

DIRECTORS

Set forth below is the name age title and tenure of each director of the Company as of April 28 2011 followed by summary of each directors

background and principal occupations There are no family relationships among any of the members of our Board of Directors The directors serve

one year terms

Directors

Name Age Director Since

Michael Barnes Chairman of the Board 44 2010

Geoffrey Kauffman Vice Chairman 52 2010

Flint 11 Besecker Lead Independent Directvr Chairman of the Compensation Nominating Governance

Committee 45 2007

William Houlihan Chairman of the Audit Committee 55 2010

Jonathan Ilany 58 2010

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr 49 2010

Rainer Twiford 58 2007

Michael Barnes has been member of our Board of Directors since August 13 2010 serving as our Chairman and also serves on our

Executive Committee He has served as the chief executive officer and chairman of Tiptree Financial Partners L.P since its inception in 2007 and is

founding partner of Tricadia Holdings L.P and its affiliated companies Tricadia which are privately held and provide investment

management services Prior to the formation of Tricadia in 2003 Mr Barnes spent two years as Head of Structured Credit Arbitrage within UBS

Principal Finance LLC wholly owned subsidiary of UBS Warburg which conducts proprietary trading on behalf of the firm Mr Barnes joined

UBS in 2000 as part of the merger between UBS and PaineWebber Inc Prior to joining UBS Mr Barnes was Managing Director and Global Head

of the Structured Credit Products Group of PaineWebber Prior to joining PaineWebber in 1999 he spent 12 years at Bear Stearns Co Inc the

last five of which he was head of their Structured Transactions Group Mr Barnes received his A.B from Columbia College

Mr Barnes was selected and qualified to serve as member of our Board of Directors because of his extensive experience in asset management

including the management of credit assets real estate and for his experience in developing emerging and transitional companies

Geoffrey Kauffman has been member of our Board of Directors since August 13 2010 serving as our Vice Chairman and also serves on

our Executive Committee He has served as the president and chief operating officer of Tiptree since its inception in 2007 and is President of Muni

Funding Company of America LLC and member of the Board of Directors of Philadelphia Financial Mr Kauffman also has been Managing

Director of Tricadia since 2005 Since joining Tricadia in 2005 Mr Kauffman has been overseeing variety of strategic acquisition opportunities

and permanent capital projects including the development of Tiptree Prior to joining Tricadia from 2002 to 2004 Mr Kauffman was partner with

the Shidler Group in similar capacity with his primary focus being the development of credit derivative products company CDPC Before

joining the Shidler Group from 1997 to 2001 Mr Kauffman was involved in the launch of the CGA Group of companies which originated financial

guarantee contracts From 1997 through 1999 he was the president Chief Underwriting Officer and Principal Representative of CGA Bermuda Ltd

the CGA Groups Bermuda based insurance subsidiary From 2000 to 2001 he was the president and chief executive officer of CGA Investment

Management Prior to joining



COA Mr Kauffman was at AMBAC and the MBIA AMBAC International Joint venture in 1995 and 1996 where he helped develop their

international structured finance department Prior to AMBAC from 1989 to 1995 Mr Kauffman was with FGICs ABS group and helped establish

that business focusing on CDOs asset backed securities and multi-seller conduit programs Prior to FGIC Mr Kauffman worked in the Investment

Banking Division of Marine Midland Bank now HSBC where he focused on middle market mergers and acquisitions and structured finance

Mr Kauffman holds B.A Psychology from Vassar College and an M.B.A Finance from Carnegie Mellon University

Mr Kauffman was selected and qualified to serve as member of our Board of Directors because of his significant and diverse experience in

financial transactions particularly credit transactions and real estate as well as his experience in developing emerging and transitional companies

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since December 2009 and was appointed to our Board of

Directors on November 2010 effective as of November 16 2010 and also serves on our Executive Committee Mr Riso formerly served as our

secretary and chief compliance officer from February 2008 until December 2009 He was employed by CIT from September 2005 through

November 2010 serving as senior vice president and chief counsel of CIT Corporate Finance since March 2007 Prior to his position at CIT

Corporate Finance Mr Riso served as chief counsel for CIT Healthcare LLC our former external manager CIT Healthcare and other business

units of CIT Between 1997 and 2005 Mr Riso was in private practice in the New York office of Orrick Herrington Sutcliffe LLP where he worked

in Orricks global finance practice group Mr Riso received B.A in economics and history cum laude from UCLA as well as J.D from the

Loyola Law School of Los Angeles

Mr Riso was selected and qualified to serve as member of our Board of Directors because of his experience in legal and finance matters and

because of his intimate knowledge of our Company

Flint Besecker is our founder and has been member of our Board of Directors since Care was formed in 2007 and previously served as our

Chairman Mr Besecker is veteran of both the commercial finance and healthcare industries and currently runs Firestone Asset Management

healthcare middle market private equity business he founded in 2008 Firestone owns variety of private equity investments focused on early

stage life science drug development as well as specialty pharmaceutical companies In October 2010 Mr Besecker was named chief executive

officer of The Center for Hospice Palliative Care in Buffalo New York In addition Mr Besecker was formerly director and Chairman of the

compensation committee of Allion Healthcare specialty pharmaceutical company serving patients throughout the U.S Mr Besecker served as

the president and founder of our former external manager CIT Healthcare LLC and also served as president of CIT Commercial Real Estate Prior to

joining CIT Group Inc CIT in 2004 Mr Besecker held variety of executive positions including managing director of GE Healthcare Financial

Services executive vice president and chief risk officer of Heller Healthcare Finance and president and co-founder of Healthcare Analysis

Corporation He also served as an officer of Healthcare Financial Partners prior to its acquisition by Heller He received B.S in Accounting from

Canisius College in 1988 and is Certified Public Accountant

Mr Besecker was selected and qualified to serve as member of our Board of Directors because of his significant achievements with and

intimate knowledge of the Company and his extensive experience in healthcare and real estate

Rainer Twiford has been member of our Board of Directors since the consummation of our initial public offering in 2007 Since 1999

Mr Twiford has been president of Brookline Partners Inc an investment advisory company Prior to joining Brookline Partners Mr Twiford was

partner of Trammell Crow Company from 1987 until 1991 Mr Twiford is currently director of IPI Inc Smith of Georgia and Tracon

Pharmaceuticals and previously served on the board of childrens behavioral health company Mr Twiford received BA and Ph.D from the

University of Mississippi an M.A from the University of Akron and J.D from the University of Virginia

Mr Twiford was selected and qualified to serve as member of our Board of Directors because of his extensive high level experience in the

financial industry

Jonathan Ilany has been memberofour Board of Directors since August 13 2010 He has been chairman of the board of directors of Reliance

First Capital privately owned mortgage company since 2008 Since 2005 Mr Ilany has been private investor and passive partner at Mariner

Investment Group Mr Ilany was partner at Mariner Investment Group from 2000-2005 responsible for hiring and setting up new trading groups

overseeing



risk management and he was senior member of the investment committee and management committee of the firm From 1996-2000 Mr Ilany was

private investor From 1982-1995 Mr Ilany was an employee of Bear Steams Co He was nominated to the Board of Directors of the Company in

1988 From 1980-1982 Mr Ilany worked at Merrill Lynch From 1971-1975 Mr Ilany served in the armored corps of the Israeli Defense Forces and

he was honorably discharged holding the rank of First Lieutenant

Mr Ilany was selected and qualified to serve as member of our Board of Directors because of his extensive experience in overseeing risk

management and serving on the investment committee and management committee of major investment firmserving on the board of directors of

various companies and his experience with investing in real estate and real estate-related assets

William Houlihan has been member of our Board of Directors since August 13 2010 He has more than 30 years of business and financial

experience Since September 2009 he has served on the Board of Directors and as the financial expert on the audit committee of First Physicians

Capital Group Inc publicly-traded company that owns ambulatory surgical centers and small hospitals Mr Houlihan served on the board of

directors of SNL Financial privately-held company that maintains database financial information on financial institutions REITs energy media

and other companies from November 2003 until June 2010 During an eight-year period from 2001 through 2008 Mr Houlihan was private

investor while he served as transitional Chief Financial Officer for several distressed companies Sixth Gear Inc from October 2007 to

November 2008 Sedgwick Claims Management Services from August 2006 until January 2007 Metris Companies from August 2004 to

January 2006 and Hudson United Bancorp from January 2001 to November 2003 Mr Houlihan also worked as an investment banker at UBS from

June 2007 to September 2007 J.P Morgan Securities from November 2003 to July 2004 KBW Inc from October 1996 to January 2001 Bear Steams

Co Inc from April 1991 to October 1996 and Goldman Sachs Co from June 1981 to April 1991 He also held several auditing and accounting

positions from June 1977 through June 1981 Mr Houlihan received B.S Magna Cum Laude in Accounting in 1977 from Manhattan College

became licensed as Certified Public Accountant in 1979 and received his M.B.A in Finance in 1983 from New York University Graduate School

of Business

Mr Houlihan was selected and qualified to serve as member of our Board of Directors because of his diverse financial experience including

his service on the boards of directors of several small capitalization high-growth companies as chief financial officer of transitional public and

privately-held companies and his extensive accounting background

Director Independence

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines require that substantial majority of the Board be composed of independent directors who meet the

independence criteria established by our Corporate Governance Guidelines For director to be considered independent the Board must

affirmatively determine that the director has no material relationship with Care either directly or as partner stockholder or officer of an

organization that has relationship with Care In assessing the materiality of directors relationship with Care the Board broadly considers all

relevant facts and circumstances not only from the standpoint of the director but also that of persons or organizations with which the director has

an affiliation The Board considers the following criteria among others in determining whether director qualifies as independent

The director cannot have been an employee or have an immediate family member who was an executive officer excluding any interim executive

officer position of Care during the preceding three years

The director cannot receive or have an immediate family member who has received at any time during the previous three years more than

$120000 during any twelve 12 month period in direct compensation from Care excluding any interim executive officer position other than

director and committee fees and pension or other forms of deferred compensation for prior service provided such compensation is not contingent

on continued service

The director cannot be partner of or employed by or have an immediate family member who was partner of or employed by present or

former internal or external auditor of Care or any of its consolidated subsidiaries and personally worked on Cares audit during the preceding three

years



The director cannot be employed or have an immediate family member who was employed as an executive officer of another company where any

of Cares present executives has served on such companys compensation committee during the preceding three years and

The director cannot be an executive officer or an employee or have an immediate family member who was an executive officer of company that

made payments to or received payments from Care in an amount per year in excess of the greater of $1 million or 2% of such companys

consolidated gross revenues during the preceding three years

Our Definition of Independent Director is included as Appendix to this Form 1O-KIA Our Board of Directors has affirmatively determined

based upon its review of all relevant facts and circumstances that each of the following directors has no direct or indirect material relationship with

us and is independent under our Definition of an Independent Director Messrs Besecker Houlihan Ilany and Twiford If Cares securities

become listed for trading on any exchange the foregoing criteria may be replaced if necessary by the requirements in such exchanges rules

applicable to companies listed for trading on such exchange

Audit Committee

Our Board of Directors has established an audit committee that meets the definition provided by Section 3a58A of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended The Audit Committee is comprised of three of our independent directors Messrs Houlihan Ilany and

Twiford In addition to satisfying our definition of independence our Audit Committee members satisfy the definition of independence imposed by

Rule 1OA-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Mr Houlihan chairs the committee and has been determined by our Board of

Directors to be an audit committee financial expert as that term is defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in overseeing

our accounting and financial reporting processes

the integrity and audits of our consolidated financial statements

our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

the qualifications and independence of our independent auditors and

the performance of our independent auditors and any internal auditors

The Audit Committee is also responsible for engaging the independent auditors reviewing with the independent auditors the plans and results

of the audit engagement approving professional services provided by the independent auditors and considering the range of audit and non-audit

fees



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee oversees our financial reporting process on behalf of our Board of Directors in accordance with our Audit Committee

Charter which was approved in 2007 and amended in 2010 Management has the primary responsibility for the preparation and presentation and

integrity of our financial statements and has represented to the Audit Committee that such financial statements were prepared in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities our Audit Committee reviewed the audited financial statements

in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010 with management including discussion of the quality not just the

acceptability of the accounting principles the reasonableness of significant judgments and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements

Our Audit Committee reviewed with our independent auditors who are responsible for auditing our financial statements and for expressing an

opinion on the conformity of those audited financial statements with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States their judgment

as to the quality not just the acceptability of our accounting principles and such other matters as are required to be discussed with the Audit

Committee under Auditing Standards No 114 Communication with Audit Committees which supersedes Statement on Auditing Standards No 61
as amended Our independent auditors also provided to the Audit Committee the written disclosures required by the applicable requirements of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board relating to the independent accountants communications with the Audit Committee concerning

independence In addition the Audit Committee has discussed with our independent auditors the auditors independence from both management

and our Company

Our Audit Committee discussed with our independent auditors the overall scope and plans for their audit Our Audit Committee met with our

independent auditors with and without management present to discuss the results of their examinations and the overall quality of our financial

reporting

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above our Audit Committee recommended to our Board of Directors that the audited

financial statements be included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010 for filing with the SEC

Submitted by our Audit Committee

William Houlihan Chairman

Jonathan Ilany

RainerTwiford



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Executive Committee

Our Board of Directors in August 2010 appointed an Executive Committee comprised of Michael Barnes the Chairman of our Board of

Directors and Geoffrey Kauffman the Vice Chairman of our Board of Directors and delegated authority to the Executive Committee to

implement the policies of the Company as determined by the Board of Directors to manage the Companys day-to-day business operations

activities and affairs including participating in the review of the Companys acquisition opportunities portfolio management financing

opportunities and forecasting and capital budgeting Mr Riso joined the Executive Committee in November 2010 following his appointment to our

Board of Directors

The biographies for Mr Barnes Mr Kauffman and Mr Riso are included above under ITEM 10 on Pages and Directors Executive

Officers and Corporate Governance

Executive Officers

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since December 2009 Our Board of Directors

appointed Steven Sherwyn as our new Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer in November 2010 Mr Risos and Mr Sherwyns initial terms will

end December 31 2013 after which time their contracts shall extend through automatic one-year renewals unless either party gives at least 90 days

prior written notice of nonrenewal

The following sets forth biographical information regarding Steven Sherwyn as of April 28 2011 The biography for Mr Riso is

included above under ITEM 10 on Page Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Steven Sherwyn age 50 was appointed to serve as our Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer on November 2010 Mr Sherwyn has over

24 years of finance legal and real estate experience Mr Sherwyn served as director senior director and managing director of Hypo Real Estate

Capital Corp from 2004 to 2006 2006 to 2007 and 2007 to 2008 respectively He also served as chief financial officer and treasurer for Quadra

Realty Trust real estate investment trust from 2007 to 2008 Finally Mr Sherwyn served as chief financial officer for Galiot Capital Corporation

from 2008 to 2009 and chief financial officer of Western Asset Mortgage Capital Corporation in 2009 both real estate investment trusts

Mr Sherwyn is graduate of The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania with B.S in economics Mr Sherwyn also received J.D

from Stanford University Law School and an LL.M in taxation from New York University Law School

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Code of Business Conduct Code of Ethical Conduct and Board Committee Charters

Our Board of Directors has adopted Code of Business Conduct and Code of Ethical Conduct that applies to our directors executive officers

and other employees The Code of Business Conduct and Code of Ethical Conduct were designed to assist our directors executive officers and

other employees in complying with the law resolving moral and ethical issues that may arise and in complying with our policies and procedures

Among the areas addressed by the Code of Business Conduct and Code of Ethical Conduct are compliance with applicable laws conflicts of

interest use and protection of our Companys assets confidentiality communications with the public accounting matters record keeping and

discrimination and harassment We will provide to any person without charge upon request copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Code of

Ethical Conduct You may request copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Code of Ethical Conduct by sending written communication by

U.S mail or overnight delivery to the following address do Steven Sherwyn Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer at Care Investment Trust

Inc 780 Third Avenue 21st Floor New York New York 10017

Corporate Governance Documents Available at Our Website

We are committed to operating our business under strong and accountable corporate governance practices You are encouraged to visit the

corporate governance section of our corporate website at http//www.carereit.com to view or to obtain copies of the respective charters of our

Audit Committee and Compensation Nominating and



Governance Committee the CNG Committee our Code of Business Conduct Code of Ethical Conduct Corporate Governance Guidelines and

our Definition of an Independent Director

Communications with our Board of Directors

We have process by which stockholders and/or other parties may communicate with our Board of Directors our independent directors as

group or our individual directors Any such communications may be sent to our Board by U.S mail or overnight delivery and should be directed to

the Board of Directors Committee the independent directors as group or an individual director c/o Steven Sherwyn Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer at Care Investment Trust Inc 780 Third Avenue 21st floor New York New York 10017 who will forward such communications on

to the intended recipient Any such communications may be made anonymously In addition stockholder communications can be directed to the

Board by calling the Care hotline listed on our website

Executive Sessions of Independent Directors

In accordance with our Corporate Governance Guidelines the independent directors serving on our Board of Directors have an opportunity to

meet in executive session at the end of each regularly scheduled Board meeting without the presence of any non-independent directors or other

persons who are part of our management The executive sessions are chaired by Mr Besecker the lead independent director Interested parties

may communicate directly with the presiding director or non-management directors as group through the process set forth above under

Communications with our Board of Directors
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ITEM 11 Executive Compensation

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

In the discussion that follows we provide an overview and analysis of our compensation programs and policies the material compensation

decisions we have made under those programs and policies with respect to our current executive officers and the material factors that we

considered in making those decisions Following this Compensation Discussion and Analysis beginning on Page 16 are series of tables

containing specific data about the compensation paid to our executive officers in 2010

Executive Overview and Compensation Program Objectives

In November 2010 we transitioned from an externally managed REIT to REIT with hybrid structure including internal management and

Services Agreement with TREIT Management LLC TREIT as more fully described under Item 13 below which is an affiliate of Tiptree

Capital Management LLC Tiptree Capital by which Tiptree Financial Partners L.P Tiptree our largest shareholder is externally managed

Prior to this transition we had no employees and were managed by CIT l-lealthcare LLC Of our current executive officers Salvatore Torey

Riso Jr our Chief Executive Officer was employed by an affiliate of our former manager while our Chief Financial Officer Steven Sherwyn

joined us in formal capacity after the transition from CIT l-lealthcare and thus we did not pay any cash compensation to our executive officers in

such capacity while we were managed by CIT Healthcare In November 2010 in conjunction with the termination of CIT Healthcare as our external

manager and our transition from an externally managed REIT to REIT with hybrid structure including internal management and Services

Agreement with TREIT we entered into employment agreements with our Chief Executive Officer Mr Riso and our Chief Financial Officer

Mr Sherwyn the Employment Agreements which were approved by our CNG Committee which consists of four of the members of our Board

of Directors the Board all of whom are independent

Due to our recent transition into an internally managed REIT part of our compensation objective is to provide compensation packages

that take into account the level of responsibility and scope of duties of each of our executive officers consistent with an internally managed

structure In addition the compensation packages are designed to achieve our goals of promoting financial and operational success by attracting

motivating and facilitating the retention of key employees with outstanding talent and ability The compensation packages are also intended to

reward the achievement of specific short and long-term strategic goals that are tied to creating stockholder value

Our 2010 executive compensation packages consisted of two components which were designed to be consistent with our compensation

objectives base salary and ii incentive payment Because our executive officers were only employed by the Company for two months in 2010

the 2010 executive compensation packages did not include performance based cash or equity bonus We did however pay our executive officers

one time incentive payment as discussed below on Page 12

In structuring the 2010 executive compensation packages the Board and the CNG Committee focused primarily on our policy of attracting

and retaining executive officers with outstanding abilities who could manage our Company effectively Thus the Board and CNG Committee

designed the 2010 base salaries to be competitive in the marketplace based on the executive officers levels of skill and expertise The incentive

payments to Mr Riso were designed to attract him to remain our President and Chief Executive Officer which required him to leave his employment

with an affiliate of our former manager CIT Healthcare The incentive payments to Mr Sherwyn were designed to attract him to join our Company

as Chief Financial Officer

Compensation Methodology

The CNG Committee is responsible for reviewing evaluating and approving the performance and compensation of the Chief Executive

Officer as well as recommending to the Board the compensation of our Chief Financial Officer The CNG Committee reviewed the executive

compensation structure developed in conjunction with our transition from an externally managed REIT to RE1T with hybrid structure including

internal management and Services Agreement with TREIT and authorized the negotiation of the Employment Agreements by the Executive

Committee of our Board which at the time was comprised of Michael Barnes the Chairman and Geoffrey Kauffman the Vice Chairman and

ultimately approved the Employment Agreements Since then
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Mr Riso has become member of the Executive Committee The Employment Agreements entered into between us and our executive officers

established the executive compensation packages for 2010

In structuring the compensation packages for 2010 the CNG Committee was presented with compensation data for executives at peer

group of other Healthcare REITs with positions and responsibilities comparable to those held by our executive officers to help them consider

competitive level of executive compensation which consisted of the following companies

HCP Inc Omega Healthcare Investors Inc

Ventas Inc Medical Properties Trust Inc

Health Care REV Inc National Health Investors Inc

Nationwide Health Properties Inc LTC Properties Inc

Healthcare Realty Trust Incorporated Cogdell Spencer Inc

Senior Housing Properties Trust Universal Health Realty Income Trust

This data consisted of base salary cash bonus and equity award information as well as total direct compensation paid by each of the peer

companies as reflected in their proxy statements Although the CNG Committee reviewed compensation data for executives at the peer companies

with positions comparable to those held by our executive officers the CNG Committee did not benchmark to particular percentile or specific

performance metric but rather used the peer group information to help guide its compensation decisions

As discussed above key priority for us is to attract retain and motivate top quality management team In order to attract high caliber

management team the compensation packages offered must be competitive within the Healthcare RET market as well as reflective of the

executives level of skill and expected contributions The 2010 compensation packages for Mr Riso and Mr Sherwyn were the result of the CNG
Committees understanding of the expected contributions in connection with the retention of Mr Riso and the recruitment of Mr Sherwyn and the

executive officers level of skill and compensation paid to similar positions within the peer group

Executive Compensation Program Elements

Base Salary Base salary is intended to reward core competence in the executive officers roles relative to their skill and experience and is

intended to be competitive to amounts paid to executive officers of other Healthcare REITs Following the termination of CIT Healthcare as our

external manager and our transition from an externally managed REIT to REIT with hybrid structure including internal management and

Services Agreement with TREIT from November 16 2010 until December 31 2010 Mr Riso received base salary of $225000 per annum pro
rated for the partial calendar year and from November 2010 until November 30 2010 and from December 2010 until December 2010

Mr Sherwyn received $150000 and $200000 per annum respectively pro-rated for the partial calendar year Mr Sherwyn also served as

consultant to the Company from September 14 2010 through October 31 2010 while the Company was still externally managed by CIT Healthcare

During this period he received total cash compensation of $20194 related to consulting fees for services rendered

Incentive Payment As part of our 2010 executive compensation packages one-time cash and equity grants were awarded to our

executive officers As discussed above these incentive payments were intended to assist in retaining Mr Riso as our Chief Executive Officer

which required him to leave his employment with CIT Group and recruit Mr Sherwyn to join our Company as Chief Financial Officer The one-time

cash and equity grants included the following for Mr Riso $100000 cash payment and ii grant of 42105 shares with then-current market

value of approximately $200000 and for Mr Sherwyn grant of 10000 shares with then-current market value of $47500

2011 Executive Compensation Program

Unlike our 2010 executive compensation packages our 20 packages will consist of three components which are designed to be

consistent with our compensation objectives base salary ii annual cash performance bonus and iiiannual equity performance bonus which

are long-term equity incentive compensation awards

In structuring the 2011 executive compensation packages the Board and the CNG Committee considered how each component promotes

retention and motivates performance Some of the compensation elements such as base salaries and annual cash performance bonuses are paid

out on short-term or current basis Other elements such as the annual equity performance bonuses are subject to multi-year vesting schedules

and are paid out over

12



longer-term basis We believe this mix of short- and long-term elements allows us to achieve our goals of attracting retaining and motivating our

top executives Additionally to emphasize performance-based compensation the compensation packages are designed so that substantial

portion of the cash-based compensation may be earned through an annual cash bonus that is dependent on each of our executive officers

performance and the performance of the Company as whole

Base Salary As discussed above base salary is intended to reward core competence in our executive officers roles relative to their skill

experience and contributions to our Company and competitive to amounts paid to executive officers of other Healthcare REITs In 2011 Mr Riso

will receive base salary of $250000 and Mr Sherwyn will receive base salary $200000

Annual Cash Performance Bonus Annual cash bonuses are primarily intended to motivate executive officers to achieve specific

operational and financial objectives Beginning in 2011 the Employment Agreements provide for an annual bonus that in 2011 could range from

$200000 to $300000 for Mr Riso and from $100000 to $200000 for Mr Sherwyn if certain performance Threshold Target and Maximum targets

that will be established by the CNG Committee are reached

Annual Equity Performance Bonus Annual equity bonuses are long-term compensation awards designed to align the interests of our

executive officers with those of our stockholders The equity awards granted to our executive officers are generally subject to time-based vesting

requirements designed to promote the retention of management and are intended to align the long-term performance and interests of management

to that of our shareholders Beginning in 2011 the Employment Agreements provide for an annual equity performance bonus that in 2011 could

range in value from $125000 to $375000 for Mr Riso and from $150000 to $250000 for Mr Sherwyn if certain performance Threshold Target and

Maximum targets that will be established by the CNG Committee are reached These long-term equity incentive compensation awards may consist

of restricted stock stock options stock appreciation rights or other types of equity bonus awards as determined by the CNG Committee and

awarded pursuant to the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan the Equity Plan or any other equity incentive plan in effect at the time

Retirement Plans

Our executive officers and other members of our Company are eligible to participate in 40 1k plan up to the maximumamount permitted under

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended or the Code

Termination and Change-in-Control Arrangements

Under the Employment Agreements the current executive officers are entitled to payments and benefits upon the occurrence of specified

events including termination of employment The specific terms of these arrangements are discussed under the heading Potential Payments Upon

Termination or Change in Control on Page 20 The terms of these arrangements were negotiated as part of the Employment Agreements and

were considered reasonable in light of our intention to retain Mr Riso and recruit Mr Sherwyn to join our Company

Equity Compensation

Our CNG Committee may from time to time grant equity awards pursuant to our Equity Plan that is designed to align the interests of our

executive officers with those of our stockholders by allowing our executive officers to share in the creation of value for our stockholders through

stock appreciation and dividends The equity awards granted to our executive officers are generally subject to time-based vesting requirements

designed to promote the retention of management and to achieve strong performance for our Company These awards further provide flexibility to

us in our ability to attract motivate and retain talented individuals The Company did not grant any equity awards to any of its executive officers in

2010 however several grants vested during 2010 more detailed discussion of the Equity Plan and the grants that vested during 2010 is included

under the heading Narrative to Summary Compensation Table for 2010 and Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table For 2010Equity Compensation

beginning on Page 17 below

Policy with Respect to Section 162m

Section 162m of the Code generally disallows public companies tax deduction for compensation in excess of $1000000 paid to their chief

executive officers and certain of their other executive
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officers unless certain performance and other requirements are met Our intent generally is to design and administer executive compensation

programs in manner that will preserve the deductibility of compensation paid to our executive officers and we believe that substantial portion

of our current executive compensation program satisfies the requirements for exemption from the $1000000 deduction limitation However we

reserve the right to design programs that recognize full range of performance criteria important to our success even where the compensation

paid under such programs may not be deductible The CNG Committee will continue to monitor the tax and other consequences of our executive

compensation program as part of its primary objective of ensuring that compensation paid to our executive officers is reasonable performance-

based and consistent with the goals of our Company and its stockholders

Interpretation of and changes in the tax laws and other factors beyond the CNG Committees control may affect the deductibility of certain

compensation payments The CNG Committee will consider various alternatives to preserve the deductibility of compensation payments and

benefits to the extent reasonably practicable and to the extent consistent with its other compensation objectives

Analysis of Risk in Compensation Program

The structure of our Companys compensation program is designed to discourage our executive officers from engaging in unnecessary

and excessive risk taking The compensation program is structured to focus our executive officers attention on financial and operating results in

the near term and also to the creation of stockholder value over the long term Our CNG Committee and Board of Directors considered the current

risk profile of our Companys 2010 compensation packages when approving them and will continue to do so as they further develop the 2011

compensation packages In regard to the 2011 compensation packages the CNG Committee will note ways in which risk is effectively managed or

mitigated including whether there is balanced mix of the near term and long term elements that will comprise our 2011 compensation packages

whether there are varied performance metrics in our executive officers annual cash and equity performance bonuses and whether the CNG

Committee has the ability to employ discretion when awarding annual and long-term incentive compensation Accordingly we believe that our

compensation program promotes behavior that is focused on the achievement of financial and operating metrics and supports sustainable value

creation for our stockholders and iiis not reasonably likely to have material adverse effect on the Company
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COMPENSATION NOMINATING AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Our CNG Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required by Item 402b of Regulation S-K with

management and based on such review and discussions our Compensation Committee recommended to our Board of Directors that the

Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this annual report on Form 10-K/A

Submitted by our CNG Committee

Flint Besecker Chairman

William Houlihan

Jonathan Ilany

Rainer Twiford
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation

The following table sets forth information regarding the compensation paid to our named executive officers by us in 2010 2009 and 2008

Sununary Compensation Table

Salary Cash Bonus Stock Awards1 Total

Name and Principal Position Year

Salvatore Jorey Riso JtS2 2008 18058 $18058
President and Chief Executive Officer

Steven Sherwyn3

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

PaulF.Hughes4

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

2009

2010

2010

2009

2010

28125

29167

100000

149933

290000

47500

110131

54000

149933

418125

76667

1101fl

54000

Amounts recognized by the Company for financial statement reporting purposes in the fiscal years ended December 31 2010 December 31
2009 and December 31 2008 For more information about equity grants see Footnote 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in our

Annual Report on Form 10-K for each of the years ended December 31 20102009 and 2008 In accordance with SEC rules estimates of

forfeitures related to service-based conditions have been disregarded

On December 10 2009 Mr Riso was awarded performance share award with Threshold Target and Maximum award of 2500 5000 and

10000 shares respectively The grant date fair value of the award assuming the achievement of the highest level of performance is $79800

On February 23 2010 our Board amended the performance share awards See Executive Compensation Performance Share Awards to

Mr Riso and Mr Hughes on Page 18 for more information on the amendment On August 12 2010 under the terms of the performance

share award and our Equity Plan the performance share award issued to Mr Riso vested in connection with shareholder approval of the

change of control to Tiptree Financial Partners UP and Mr Riso achieved the maximum award of 10000 shares The stock award in the table

above also includes 42105 shares issued to Mr Riso on January 2011 as per the terms of his employment agreement which had grant

date fair value of $200000 and was recognized by the Company as compensation expense for the fourth quarter in 2010 The salary portion of

Mr Risos compensation represents cash compensation earned from November 15 2010 to December 31 2010 subsequent to Cares

transition into an internally-managed company The 2010 bonus represents $100000 one-time cash payment made to Mr Riso on January

2011 as per the terms of his employment agreement

Mr Sherwyn was appointed Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company on November 2010 and thus was not an executive

officer in 2008 or 2009 The stock award in the table above includes 10000 shares issued to Mr Sherwyn on January 2011 as per
the terms

of his employment agreement which had grant date fair value of $47500 and was recognized by the Company as compensation expense for

the fourth quarter in 2010 The salary portion of Mr Sherwyns compensation in the table above represents cash compensation earned from

November 12010 to December 31 2010 subsequent to Cares transition to its new management structure Mr Sherwyn also served as

consultant to the Company from September 14 2010 through October 31 2010 while the Company was still externally managed by CIT

Healthcare During this period he received total cash compensation of $20194 related to consulting fees for services rendered

Mr Hughes was appointed Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company on March 16 2009 and resigned on November 2010 and

thus was not an executive officer in 2008 On December 10 2009 Mr Hughes was awarded performance share award with Threshold

Target and Maximum award of 1500 3000 and 6000 shares respectively The grant date fair value of the award assuming the highest level

of performance was $47880 On February 23 2010 our Board amended the performance share awards See Executive Compensation

Performance Share Awards to Mr Riso and Mr Hughes on Page 18 for more information on the amendment On August 12 2010 under the

terms of the performance share award and our Equity Plan the performance share award issued to Mr Hughes vested in connection with

shareholder approval of the change of control to Tiptree Financial Partners L.P and Mr Hughes achieved the maximum award of 6000

shares
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table sets forth information about awards granted to our named executive officers by us during the fiscal year ended

December 31 2010

Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table

All Other

Stock Awards Grant Date

Number of Market Fair Value of

Estimated Future Payouts Under Shares of Price on Stock and

Equity Incentive Plan Awards Stock or Grant Option

Grant Threshold Target Maximum Units Date Awards

Name Date $/Sh
Salvatore Torey Riso Jr

Steven Sherwyn

PauIF.Hughes

On January 32011 as per the terms of his employment agreement the Company issued 42105 shares to Mr Riso which had grant date fair

value of $200000 and was recognized by the Company as compensation expense for the fourth quarter in 2010

On January 2011 as per the terms of his employment agreement the Company issued 10000 shares to Mr Sherwyn which had grant date

fair value of $47500 and was recognized by the Company as compensation expense for the fourth quarter in 2010

Narrative to Summary Compensation Table for 2010 and Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table for 2010

The following discussion is intended to be read as supplement to the Summary Compensation Table and the Grants of Plan-Based

Awards Table as well as the footnotes to such tables and ii the disclosure under the caption Compensation Discussion and Analysis above

Accordingly the following discussion should be read in conjunction with such other disclosures

Employment Agreements

Beginning in November 2010 in conjunction with our transition from an externally managed REIT to REIT with hybrid structure

including internal management and Services Agreement with TREIT we entered into employment agreements with each of our executive officers

We have summarized the material terms of these executive employment agreements under the caption Compensation Discussion and Analysis

beginning on page 11 above and Executive Compensation Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control beginning on page 20

below

Equity Compensation

Our CNG Committee may from time to time grant equity awards designed to align the interests of our executive officers with those of our

stockholders by allowing our executive officers to share in the creation of value for our stockholders through stock appreciation and dividends

The equity awards granted to our executive officers are generally subject to time-based vesting requirements designed to promote the retention of

management and to achieve strong performance for our Company These awards further provide flexibility to us in our ability to attract motivate

and retain talented individuals Our Equity Plan provides for the issuance of equity-based awards including stock options stock appreciation

rights restricted stock restricted stock units unrestricted stock awards and other awards based on our common stock that may be made by us to

our directors and officers and to our other employees and advisors and consultants who are providing services to the Company as of the date of

the grant of the award Shares of common stock issued to our independent directors with respect to their annual retainer fees are also issued under

this plan

Our Board of Directors has delegated its administrative responsibilities under the Equity Plan to our CNG Committee In its capacity as

plan administrator the CNG Committee has the authority to make awards to eligible directors officers employees advisors and consultants and to

determine what form the awards will take
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and the terms and conditions of the awards Grants of equity-based or other compensation to our chief executive officer must also be approved by

the independent members of our Board

The following grants were made in January 2011 to our current executive officers but were recognized as compensation by the Company in

2010

Special Incentive Grant to Mr Riso and Mr Sherwyn

On January 2011 as per the terms of his employment agreement which was executed as part of Car transition from an externally

managed REIT to REIT with hybrid structure including internal management and Services Agreement with TREIT Mr Riso received 42105

shares which had grant date fair value of $200000 and was recognized by the Company as compensation expense for the fourth quarter in 2010

On January 2011 as per the terms of his employment agreement which was executed as part of Cares transition from an externally

managed RET to REIT with hybrid structure including internal management and Services Agreement with TREIT Mr Sherwyn received

10000 shares which had grant date fair value of $47500 and was recognized by the Company as compensation expense for the fourth quarter in

2010

The Company did not grant any equity awards to any of its executive officers in 2010 however the grants described below vested during

2010

Special Equity Grant to Mr Riso and Mr Hughes

On March 12 2009 our Board of Directors approved special grant of 10486 restricted stock units to Mr Riso The award was structured

to vest in four equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date March 12 2010 Our Board of Directors granted the award to

Mr Riso which had grant date fair value of $62497 based on our closing stock price on March 12 2009 of $5.96 per share to recognize

Mr Risos continued service to the Company On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity Plan these restricted stock units in addition to

12210 restricted stock units previously issued to Mr Riso vested in connection with shareholder approval of the Companys Plan of Liquidation

On May 2009 our Board of Directors approved special grant of 13333 restricted stock units to Mr Hughes The award was structured

to vest in four equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date May 2010 Our Board of Directors granted the award t5

Mr Hughes which had grant date fair market value of $66265 based on our closing stock price on May 2009 of $4.97 per share to recognize

Mr Hughess service to our company as the new chief financial officer and treasurer On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity Plan

these restricted stock units vested in connection with shareholder approval of the Companys Plan of Liquidation

Performance Share Awards to Mr Riso and Mr Hughes

On December 10 2009 our Board of Directors awarded Mr Riso and Mr Hughes performance share awards with target levels of 5000 and

3000 respectively These awards were amended and restated on February 23 2010 such that the awards were triggered upon the execution

during 2010 of one or more of the following transactions that results in return of liquidity to our stockholders within the parameters expressed in

the agreement merger or other business combination resulting in the disposition of all of the issued and outstanding equity securities of the

Company ii tender offer made directly to our stockholders either by us or third party for at least majority of our issued and outstanding

common stock or iii the declaration of aggregate distributions by our Board equal to or exceeding $8.00 per share If the net proceeds were less

than $7.50 per share each individual would receive 50% of their respective target awards If the net proceeds were greater than or equal to $7.50

per share and less than or equal to $7.99 per share each individual would receive his respective target award If the net proceeds were equal to or

exceeded $8.00 per share each individual would receive 200% of his respective target award Each performance share award would accrue any

distributions declared during the award period without duplication

On August 12 2010 under the terms of the performance share award and our Equity Plan the performance share award issued to Mr Riso

and Mr Hughes vested in connection with shareholder approval in connection with the Tiptree transaction and Mr Riso and Mr Hughes

achieved the maximumaward of 10000 shares and 6000 shares respectively
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Compensation Mix

As discussed in more detail in the section Compensation Discussion andAnalysis beginning on Page 11 above in 2010 our

compensation program was comprised of the following two elements base salary and ii initial payment The base salary awarded to the

executive officers in 2010 was set at level that was competitive based on the executive officers level of skill and experience The initial payments

were provided as means of incentivizing Mr Riso to remain our Companys Chief Executive Officer and as means of attracting Mr Sherwyn to

join our Company

Performance bonuses were not included in the 2010 executive compensation packages because the executive officers were only employees

of our Company for two months in 2010 which was not sufficient amount of time to determine whether performance award was justifiable

Beginning in 2011 the executive compensation packages will include an annual cash bonus and an annual equity bonus In implementing these

performance bonuses in 2011 the CNG Committee will seek to achieve an appropriate balance among these elements to incentivize our executive

officers to focus on financial and operating results in the near term and the creation of stockholder value over the long term

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

There were no Care equity awards outstanding as of December 31 2010 which is the end of our Companys fiscal year

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

We have not granted any stock options Certain stock awards and restricted stock unit and performance share awards issued to our named

executive officers as further described in Equity Compensation on Page 13 vested during the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 and are set

forth in the table below

Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table

Stock Awards

Number of Sbares

Acquired on Value Realized on

Vesting Vesting

4t ttName

Sal vatore Torey Riso it 74801 $477469

Steven Sherwyn 10000 47500

Paul Hughes 19333 164131

On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity plan 22696 restricted stock units previously issued to Mr Riso vested in connection

with shareholder approval of the Companys Plan of Liquidation On December 10 2009 Mr Riso was awarded performance share award

with Threshold Target and Maximum award of 2500 5000 and 10000 shares respectively The grant date fair value of the award assuming

the achievement of the highest level of performance is $79800 On February 23 2010 our Board amended the performance share awards See

Executive Compensation Performance Share Awards to Mr Riso and Mr Hughes on Page 18 for more information on the amendment

On August 122010 under the terms of the performance share award and our Equity Plan the performance share award issued to Mr Riso

vested in connection with shareholder approval of the change of control to Tiptree
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Financial Partners L.P and Mr Riso achieved the maximum award of 10000 shares Included as part of the stock which vested during 2010

in the table above is 42105 shares issued to Mr Riso on January 2011 as per the terms of his employment agreement which had grant

date fair value of $200000 and was recognized by the Company as compensation expense for the fourth quarter in 2010

Included as part of the stock which vested during 2010 in the table above is 10000 shares issued to Mr Sherwyn on January 2011 as per

the terms of his employment agreement which had grant date fair value of $47500 and was recognized by the Company as compensation

expense for the fourth quarter in 2010

On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity plan 13333 restricted stock units previously issued to Mr Hughes vested in connection

with shareholder approval of the Companys Plan of Liquidation On December 10 2009 Mr Hughes was awarded performance share

award with threshold target and maximumaward of 1500 3000 and 6000 shares respectively The grant date fair value of the award

assuming the highest level of performance was $47880 On February 23 2010 our Board amended the performance share awards See

Executive Compensation Performance Share Awards to Mr Riso and Mr Hughes on Page 18 for more information on the amendment

On August 12 2010 under the terms of the performance share award and our Equity Plan the performance share award issued to Mr

Hughes vested in connection with shareholder approval of the change of control to Tiptree Financial Partners L.P and Mr Hughes

achieved the maximumaward of 6000 shares

Pension Benefits

Our named executive officers received no benefits in fiscal year 2010 from us under defined pension or defined contribution plans

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

Our Company does not have nonqualified deferred compensation plan that provides for deferral of compensation on basis that is not tax-

qualified for our named executive officers

Other Plans Perquisites and Benefits

With limited exceptions the compensation committees policy is to provide benefits to executive officers that are substantially the same as

those offered to other officers and employees of our company at or above the level of vice president In 2010 we did not provide our executive

officers with any perquisites or personal benefits

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

Severance and Other Benefits Upon Termination of Employment

We have provided our executive officers with employment contracts that provide certain benefits depending on the circumstances

surrounding their termination of employment with us In addition to the benefits described below upon termination of-employment with us the

executive officer is generally entitled to amounts or benefits earned or accrued during the term of employment including earned but unpaid salary

We have calculated the amount of any potential payments as if the termination occurred on December 31 2010 and therefore used the closing price

of our common stock as reported on the OTCQX on December 31 2010 the last trading day of 2010

As described above under Description of Employment Agreements the employment agreements we have with our current executive

officers provide for payments of severance and other benefits upon termination of employment

If the executive officers employment is terminated for any reason including the Companys notice not to renew the Employment Period

except for termination due to the expiration of the term of employment by us for cause voluntary resignation without good reason or on

account of death or disability the executive officers will be entitled to the following collectively the Accrued Obligations Base Salary at

the rate in effect at the time notice of termination is given through the date of termination to the extent theretofore unpaid ii the value of any

vacation days earned but unused through the
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date of termination and iiireimbursement for all business expenses properly incurred in accordance with Company policy prior to the date of

termination and not yet reimbursed by the Company The executive officer shall also be entitled to the greater of 12 months or the number

of whole months between the termination date and February 2013 of such executive officers base salary at the rate in effect at the time of

termination iihealth benefits until the earlier of the 12 month anniversary of the date of termination and the date upon which executive

receives similar health benefits or is eligible to receive them from subsequent employer iii full vesting of the Companys equity awards as of the

termination date and continuing exercisability of all stock options and stock appreciation rights for the lesser of 12 months after the date of

termination or the remainder of their term

If our executive officers employment terminates on account of death or disability the executive officers or their estates shall be entitled to the

following the Accrued Obligations ii pro-rated Annual Cash Bonus and Annual Equity Bonus based upon the number of days in the year

of termination through the date of termination relative to 365 days assuming for such purposes the performance targets applicable to the Annual

Cash Bonus and the Annual Equity Bonus have been satisfied at the Target Bonus Level for the year in which the date of termination occurs

iii health benefits for 12 months following the date of termination iv full vesting of all Company equity awards as of the date of termination and

continuing exercisability of all stock options and stock appreciation rights for the lesser of 12 months after the date of termination or the

remainder of their term

If our executive officers are terminated due to the expiration of their term of employment by us for cause or if our executives employment shall

be terminated without Good Reason the executive officers will be entitled to the Accrued Obligations and the Company shall have no additional

obligations to the executive officers

In providing the estimated potential payments we have made the following general assumptions in all circumstances where applicable

The date of termination is December 31 2010

Executive officers are entitled to termination benefits including those provided for in the 2010 employment agreements

The annual base salaries at the time of termination is equal to the annual base salaries effective as of December 31 2010

There is no unpaid bonus for 2010

There is no unused vacation time

Our cost of continued healthcare benefits is constant over the benefit period

There are no unvested shares under the Companys equity awards and

There is no unpaid reimbursement for expenses incurred prior to the date of termination
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The severance award in the table above includes 42105 shares issued to Mr Riso on January 2011 as per the terms of his employment

agreement entered into on November 2010 which had grant date fair value of $200000 as well as $100000 one-time cash payment for

2010 made to Mr Riso on January 32011 such amounts as per the terms of his employment agreement

The severance award in the table above includes 10000 shares issued to Mr Sherwyn on January 2011 as per the terms of his employment

agreement entered into on November 2010 which had grant date fair value of $47500

Plan of Liquidation

On January 28 2010 our stockholders approved plan of liquidation which was filed as Exhibit to our definitive proxy statement filed

on December 28 2009 Pursuant to the terms of the restricted stock and restricted stock and performance share grant instruments and our Equity

Plans stockholder approval of the plan of liquidation resulted in the accelerated vesting of restricted stock and restricted stock and performance

share awards

On March 12 2009 our Board of Directors approved special grant of 10486 restricted stock units to Mr Riso The award was structured

to vest in four equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date March 12 2010 Our Board of Directors granted the award to

Mr Riso which had grant date fair value of $62497 based on our closing stock price on March 12 2009 of $5.96 per share to recognize

Mr Risos continued service to the Company On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity Plan these restricted stock units in addition to

12210 restricted stock units previously issued to Mr Riso vested in connection with shareholder approval of the Companys Plan of Liquidation

On May 2009 our Board of Directors approved special grant of 13333 restricted stock units to Mr Hughes The award was structured

to vest in four equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the

Estimated Potential Payments upon Termination

Expiration of

Term and

Termination by

the Company for

Cause or by

Executive Termination

without Good Termination by Without Cause or

Reason Death Disability for Good ReasonExecutive Officer Benefit

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr Base Salary 468750

SeveranceL 300000 300000 300000

onus Payment

Vacation

Healthcare 22798 22798

Vesting of Stock

Stock Options

Business Expenses

Total $300000 $322798 $791548

Steven Sherwyn Base Salary

Severance2 47400 47500

416667

47500

Bonus Payment

Vacation

Healthcare

Vesting of Stock

Stock Options

Business Expenses

Total 47500

22798

--

70298

22798

$486965
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grant date May 2010 Our Board of Directors granted the award to Mr Hughes which had grant date fair market value of $66265 based on

our closing stock price on May 2009 of $4.97 per share to recognize Mr Hughess service to our company as the new chief financial officer and

treasurer On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity Plan these restricted stock units vested in connection with shareholder approval of

the Companys Plan of Liquidation

Tiptree Transaction

On March 16 2010 we entered into definitive purchase and sale agreement with Tiptree Financial Partners L.P Tiptree under which

we agreed to sell newly issued common stock to Tiptree at $9.00 per share and to launch cash tender offer for up to all of our outstanding

common stock at $9.00 per share the Tiptree Transaction The Tiptree Transaction was approved by our stockholders on August 13 2010

resulting in change of control of the Company

On December 10 2009 Mr Riso was awarded perfonnance share award with threshold target and maximumaward of 2500 5000 and

10000 shares respectively The grant date fair value of the award assuming the achievement of the highest level of performance is $79800 On

February 23 2010 our Board amended the performance share awards See Executive Compensation Performance Share Awards to Mr Riso and

Mr Hughes on Page 18 for more information on the amendment On August 12 2010 under the terms of the performance share award and our

Equity Plan the performance share award issued to Mr Riso vested in connection with shareholder approval of the change of control to Tiptree

and Mr Riso achieved the maximumaward of 10000 shares

On December 10 2009 Mr Hughes was awarded performance share award with threshold target and maximumaward of 1500 3000

and 6000 shares respectively The grant date fair value of the award assuming the highest level of performance was $47880 On February 23 2010

our Board amended the performance share awards See Executive Compensation Performance Share Awards to Mr Riso and Mr Hughes on

Page 18 for more information on the amendment On August 12 2010 under the terms of the performance share award and our Equity Plan the

performance share award issued to Mr Hughes vested in connection with shareholder approval of the change of control to Tiptree and

Mr Hughes achieved the maximumaward of 6000 shares

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Director Compensation

The following table sets forth information regarding the compensation paid to and the compensation expense we recognized with respect to

our Board of Directors during the fiscal year ended December 31 2010

Director Compensation Table

Fees Earned or Paid

in Cash Stock Awards Total

$1Name

Hint Besecker2 $58191 $360276 $418467

Gerald Bisbee Jr Ph.D.3 36691 33253 69945

Alexandra Lebenthal4 7778 g260 16038

Karen Robards 36691 33253 69945

Rainer Twiforde 54424 38996 93420

Steven Warden
Michael BarnesS

Geoffrey Kauffman9

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr 10

William Houlihan 15331 5743 21073

Jonathan JIanyU2 13415 5743 1915

Amounts recognized by the Company for financial statement reporting purposes in the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 See Footnote 14

to our Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K In accordance with SEC rules estimates of forfeitures related

to service-based conditions have been disregarded As discussed below each independent director receives an annual retainer payable in

cash and
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in unrestricted shares of our common stock These unrestricted shares are granted in approximately equal amounts per quarter in arrears and

are based on the closing price of our common stock on the last business day of each quarter The grant date fair market value of our common
stock as of the end of each of the fiscal quarters in 2010 were $8.92 $8.66 $5.00 and $4.75 respectively

On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity Plan 29000 shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units previously issued to

Mr Besecker vested in connection with shareholder approval of the Companys Plan of Liquidation On December 10 2009 Mr Besecker

was awarded performance share award with threshold target and maximumaward of 2500 5000 and 10000 shares respectively The

grant date fair value ot the award assuming the achievement of the highest level of performance was $79800 On February 23 2010 our

Board amended the performance share awards See Executive Compensation Performance Share Awards to Mr Riso and Mr Hughes
for more information on the amendment On August 12 2010 under the terms of our Equity Plan the performance share award issued to

Mr Besecker vested in connection with shareholder approval of the change of control to Tiptree Financial Partners L.P and Mr Besecker

achieved the maximumaward of 10000 shares

On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity Plan 1000 shares of restricted stock previously issued to Mr Bisbee vested in

connection with shareholder approval of the Companys Plan of Liquidation Mr Bisbee resigned from the Board of Directors on August 12

2010 in conjunction with the sale of control of the Company to Tiptree Financial Partners L.P

On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity Plan 1000 shares of restricted stock previously issued to Ms Lebenthal vested in

connection with shareholder approval of the Companys Plan of Liquidation Ms Lebenthal resigned from the Board of Directors on January

28 2010

On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity Plan 1000 shares of restricted stock previously issued to Ms Robards vested in

connection with shareholder approval of the Companys Plan of Liquidation Ms Robards resigned from the Board of Directors on

August 12 2010 in conjunction with the sale of control of the Company to Tiptree Financial Partners L.P

On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity Plan 1000 shares of restricted stock previously issued to Mr Twiford vested in

connection with shareholder approval of the Companys Plan of Liquidation

Mr Warden resigned from the Board of Directors on August 12 2010 in conjunction with the sale of control of the Company to Tiptree

Financial Partners L.P He received no annual retainer in connection with his service on our Board of Directors

Mr Barnes was appointed to our Board of Directors on August 122010 in conjunction with the sale of control of the Company to Tiptree

Financial Partners L.P He receives no annual retainer in connection with his service on our Board of Directors

Mr Kauffman was appointed to our Board of Directors on August 12 2010 in conjunction with the sale of control of the Company to Tiptree

Financial Partners L.P He receives no annual retainer in connection with his service on our Board of Directors

10 Mr Riso was appointed to our Board of Directors on November 2010 effective as of November 16 2010 He receives no annual retainer in

connection with his service on our Board of Directors

11 Mr Houlihan was appointed to our Board of Directors on August 12 2010 in conjunction with the sale of controi of the Company to Tiptree

Financial Partners L.P

12 Mr Ilany was appointed to our Board of Directors on August 12 2010 in conjunction with the sale of control of the Company to Tiptree

Financial Partners L.P

Each independent director receives an annual retainer of $50000 The annual retainer payable to our independent directors is payable quarterly

in arrears 70% in cash and 30% in unrestricted stock Any portion of the annual retainer that an independent director receives in stock is granted

pursuant to our Equity Plan

The Chairs of our Audit Committee and our CNG Committee are entitled to receive an additional annual retainer of $5000 The annual retainer

payable to our committee chairs is payable quarterly in arrears in cash In addition
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we reimburse all directors for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with their services on our Board of Directors

Special Equity Grant to Mr Besecker

On January 28 2010 under the terms of our Equity Plan 29000 restricted stock units previously issued to Mr Besecker vested in

connection with shareholder approval of the Companys Plan of Liquidation On December 10 2009 Mr Besecker was awarded performance

share award with Threshold Target and Maximum award of 2500 5000 and 10000 shares respectively The grant date fair value of the award

assuming the achievement of the highest level of performance is $79800 On February 23 2010 our Board amended the performance share awards

See Executive Compensation Performance Share Awards to Mr Riso and Mr Hughes on Page 18 for inure information on the amendment On

August 122010 under the terms of the performance share award and our Equity Plan the performance share award issued to Mr Besecker vested

in connection with shareholder approval of the change of control to Tiptree Financial Partners L.P and Mr Besecker achieved the maximum
award of 10000 shares

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

There are no compensation committee interlocks and none of our executive officers participate on our CNG Committee

ITEM 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of April 28 2011 for each person known to us to be the

beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding common stock each of our directors each of our current executive officers as of

April 28 2011 and our directors and current executive officers as group Except as otherwise described in the notes below the following

beneficial owners have sole voting power and sole investment power with respect to all shares of common stock set forth opposite their respective

names

In accordance with SEC rules each listed persons beneficial ownership includes

all shares the investor actually owns beneficially or of record

all shares over which the investor has or shares voting or dispositive control such as in the capacity as general partner of an

investment fund and

all shares the investor has the right to acquire within 60 days such as upon exercise of options that are currently vested or which are

scheduled to vest within 60 days

Unless otherwise indicated all shares are owned directly and the indicated person has sole voting and investment power Unless otherwise

indicated the business address for each beneficial owner listed below shall be do Care Investment Trust Inc 780 Third Avenue 21st Floor New

York New York 10017
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Amount and Nature

of Beneficial

Ownership of Percent of

Name Common Stock Totall

Tiptree Financial Partners L.P.C2 9277573 912%

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr 42j05

Steven Sherwyn 10000

Michael Barnes2

Geoffrey Kauffman

FlintD Besecker 2018

William Houlihan 1916

Jonathan Ilany 1916

LRainerTwiford 1916

All Directors and Executive Officers as Group Persons 59871

The percentage of shares beneficially owned does not exceed one percent of the total shares of our common stock outstanding

As of April 28 2011 10145049 shares of common stock were issued and outstanding and entitled to vote The percent of total for all of the

persons listedin the table above is based on such 10145049 shares of common stock

In Schedule 13D filed on August 13 2010 Tiptree Financial Partners L.P was deemed pursuant to Rule 13d-3 of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended to hold shared voting and dispositive power over 9277575 shares of our Common Stock By virtue of serving as

the external manager of Tiptree Financial Partners L.P with respect to our Common Stock Tiptree Capital Management LLC TCM was

deemed to have shared voting and dispositive power over the shares held by Tiptree Financial Partners L.P Likewise Tricadia Holdings

L.P Tricadia Holdings by virtue of being direct owner of TCM was deemed to have shared voting and dispositive power over the

shares held by Tiptree Financial Partners L.P Similarly Tricadia Holdings GP L.P as general partner of Tricadia Holdings was deemed tO

have shared voting and dispositive power over the shares held by Tiptree Financial Partners L.P Likewise Arif Inayatullah and Michael

Barnes as direct owners of TCM were each deemed to have shared voting and dispositive power over the shares held by Tiptree Financial

Partners L.P

None of the shares beneficially owned by our directors or executive officers have been pledged as security for an obligation

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended requires our executive officers and directors and persons who own more than

10% of registered class of our equity securities to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC Officers directors and

persons who own more than 10% of registered class of our equity securities are required to furnish us with copies of all Section 16a forms that

they file To our knowledge based solely on review of the copies of such reports furnished to us all Section 16a filing requirements
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applicable to our executive officers directors and persons who own more than 10% of registered class of our equity securities were filed on

timely basis

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes information as of December 31 2010 relating to our equity compensation plans pursuant to which shares of our

common stock or other equity securities may be granted from time to time

Number of

Number of securities

securities to be Weighted- remaining

issued upon average available for

exercise of exercise price of future issuance

outstanding outstanding under equity

options warrants options warrants compensation

and riehts and riebts PlansPlan category

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders

Equity PIan N/A 238514

Manager Equity Plant2 652.500 $11.33 65.445

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders N/A N/A N/A

Total 652500 N/A 303959

Our Equity Plan was adopted by our sole stockholder prior to our initial public offering on June 22 2007

Our 2007 Manager Equity Plan was adopted by our sole stockholder prior to our initial public offering on June 22 2007 The number of

shares in Column represents shares issuable upon exercise of warrant that we granted to our former manager CIT Healthcare on

September 30 2008 See Certain Relationships and Related Transactions below On March 16 2010 CIT Healthcare entered into warrant

purchase agreement with Tiptree pursuant to which our former Manager sold its warrant to purchase 435000 shares of our common stock to

Tiptree upon the closing of the Tiptree Transaction for $100000 This warrant was adjusted to reflect the Companys three-for-two stock

split announced in September 2010 and is currently exercisable into 652500 shares of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of

$11.33 per share

ITEM 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Policies and Procedures With Respect to Related Party Transactions

Our Charter of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors requires that all related party transactions generally transactions involving

amounts exceeding $120000 in which related party directors and executive officers or their immediate family members or stockholders owning

5% of more of our outstanding stock had or will have direct or indirect material interest shall be subject to pre-approval or ratification by the

Audit Committee in accordance with the following procedures No related party transaction shall be approved or ratified if such transaction is

contrary to our best interests

Each party to potential related party transaction is responsible for notifying our Chief Compliance Officer or such other person as the Audit

Committee may require of the potential related person transaction in which such person orany immediate family member of such person may be

directly or indirectly involved as soon as he or she becomes aware of such transaction Except in circumstances where such transaction is

expected to qualify as an ordinary course transaction generally transactions that occur between Care on any of its subsidiaries and an entity

for which any related person serves as an executive officer partner principal member or any similar executive or governing capacity ii an

ordinary course transaction in which such related person has an economic interest that does not afford such related person control over such

entity on terms and conditions no less favorable to Care or iii immaterial relationships and transactions in the Instructions to Item 404a of

Regulation S-K of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended such notification should be made prior to the time that the transaction is entered into

and such notice shall provide the Chief Compliance Officer or such other person reasonable opportunity under the circumstances for the

required review of such transaction to be conducted before execution Our Chief Compliance Officer or such other person will determine whether

the transaction should be submitted to the Audit Committee for consideration Unless the Committee otherwise determines after having been

notified any proposed
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transaction directly between the Company and
any related party transaction should be reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee prior to the

time that such transaction is entered into

While our Chief Compliance Officer or other person should be notified of any related party transaction that is expected to qualify as an

ordinary course exception ordinary course exceptions shall not be related person transactions and do not require Audit Committee approval under

our related person transactions policy Our Chief Compliance Officer or such other person shall be responsible for making the initial

determination as to whether any transaction appears to be within the scope required to be disclosed pursuant to Item 404a of Regulation S-K or

whether such transaction is in fact an ordinary course transaction and must take all reasonable steps to ensure that all related party transactions

or any series of similar transactions required to be disclosed pursuant to Item 404a of Regulation S-K are presented to the Audit Committee for

pre-approval or ratification if required under the Charter of the Audit Committee at such Committees next regularly scheduled meeting or by

consent in lieu of meeting if deemed appropriate

The Audit Committee shall review and assess the adequacy of our related party transaction policy and procedures annually and adopt any

changes it deems necessary Annually each of our executive officer and director shall acknowledge their familiarity and compliance with our

related person transaction policy

Management Agreement

In connection with our initial public offering we entered into Management Agreement with CIT Healthcare LLC CIT Healthcare which

described the services to be provided by our former Manager and its compensation for those services Under the Management Agreement CIT

Healthcare subject to the oversight of our board of directors was required to conduct our business affairs in conformity with the policies

approved by our board of directors The Management Agreement had an initial term scheduled to expire on June 30 2010 which would

automatically be renewed for one-year terms thereafter unless terminated by us or CIT Healthcare

On September 30 2008 we entered into an amendment the Amendment to the Management Agreement between ourselves and CIT

Healthcare Pursuant to the terms of the Amendment the Base Management Fee as defined in the Management Agreement payable to our former

Manager under the Management Agreement was reduced from monthly amount equal to 1/12 of 1.75% of the Companys equity as defined in
the Management Agreement to monthly amount equal to 1/12 of 0.875% of the Companys equity In addition pursuant to the terms of the

Amendment the Incentive Fee as defined in the Management Agreement payable to CIT Healthcare pursuant to the Management Agreement

was eliminated and the Termination Fee as defined in the Management Agreement payable to CIT Healthcare upon the termination or non-

renewal of the Management Agreement was amended to equal the
average annual Base Management Fee as earned by our former Manager during

the two years immediately preceding the most recently completed fiscal quarter prior to the date of termination times three but in no event less

than $15.4 million No termination fee would be payable if we terminated the Management Agreement for cause

In consideration of the Amendment and for CIT Healthcares continued and future services to the Company the Company granted CIT

Healthcare warrants to purchase 435000 shares of the Companys common stock at $17.00 per share the Warrant under the Manager Equity

Plan adopted by the Company on June 21 2007 the Manager Equity Plan The Warrant which is immediately exercisable expires on

September 30 2018

On January 15 2010 we entered into an Amended and Restated Management Agreement the AR Management Agreement with CIT

Healthcare Pursuant to the terms of the AR Management Agreement which became effective upon approval of the Companys plan of

liquidation by our stockholders on January 28 2010 the Base Management Fee was reduced to monthly amount equal to $125000 from

February 12010 until the earlier ofx June 30 2010 and the date on which four of the Companys six then-existing investments have

been sold then from such date ii $100000 until the earlier of December 31 2010 and the date on which five of the Companys six

then-existing investments have been sold then from such date iii $75000 until the effective date of expiration or earlier termination of the

Agreement by either of the Company or CIT Healthcare provided however that notwithstanding the foregoing the base management fee shall

remain at $125000 per month until the later of ninety 90 days after the filing by the Company of Form 15 with the SEC and the date that

the Company is no longer subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act In addition the termination fee payable to CIT Healthcare

upon the termination or non-renewal of the Management Agreement was replaced by buyout payment of $7.5 million payable in installments of

$2.5 million upon approval of the Companys plan of liquidation by our stockholders ii$2.5 million upon the earlier of April
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2010 and the effective date of the termination of the AR Management Agreement by either of the Company or CIT Healthcare and iii

$2.5 million upon the earlier of June 30 2011 and the effective date of the termination of the AR Management Agreement by either the

Company or CIT Healthcare The AR Management Agreement also provided CIT Healthcare with an incentive fee of $1.5 million if at any time

prior to December 31 2011 the aggregate cash dividends paid to the Companys stockholders since the effective date of the AR Management

Agreement equaled or exceeded $9.25 per share or ii as of December 31 2011 the sum of the aggregate cash dividends paid to the Companys
stockholders since the effective date of the AR Management Agreement and the aggregate distributable cash equals or exceeds $9.25 per

share In the event that the aggregate distributable cash equaled or exceeded $9.25 per share but for the impact of payment of $1.5 million

incentive fee the Company shall have paid CIT Healthcare an incentive fee in an amount that allows the aggregate distributable cash to equal

$9.25 per share Under the AR Management Agreement the Mortgage Purchase Agreement between us and CIT Healthcare was terminated and

all outstanding notices of our intent to sell additional loans to CIT Healthcare were rescinded The AR Management Agreement was to continue

in effect unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms thereof until December 31 2011

On November 2010 the Company entered into Termination Cooperation and Confidentiality Agreement the CIT Termination Agreement
with CIT Healthcare Pursuant to the CIT Termination Agreement the parties terminated the AR Management Agreement on November 16 2010

the Termination Effective Date The CIT Termination Agreement also provides for an 180 day cooperation period beginning on the Termination

Effective Date relating to the transition of management of the Company from CIT Healthcare to the officers of the Company two year mutual

confidentiality period and mutual release of all claims related to CIT Healthcares management of the Company Under the CIT Termination

Agreement the parties agreed that in lieu of the payments otherwise required under the termination provisions of the AR Management

Agreement the Company would pay to CIT Healthcare on the Termination Effective Date $2.4 million plus any earned but unpaid monthly

installments of the base management fee due under the AR Management Agreement Those amounts were paid in tull in November 2010 The

Company previouslypaid $5.0 million of this buyout fee during the first two quarters of 2010

For the period ended December 31 2010 we recognized $8.8 million in management fee and buyout fee expense related to payments made to CIT

Healthcare

Services Agreement

On November 2010 the Company entered into Services Agreement the Services Agreement with TREIT pursuant to which TREIT

provides certain advisory services related to the Companys business as of the Termination Effective Date For such services the Company pays

TREIT monthly base services fee in arrears of one-twelfth of 0.5% of the Companys Equity as defined in the Services Agreement and

quarterly incentive fee of 15% of the Companys AFFO Plus Gain/Loss On Sale as defined in the Services Agreement so long as and to the

extent that the Companys AFFO Plus Gain /Loss on Sale exceeds an amount equal to Equity multiplied by the Hurdle Rate as defined in the

Services Agreement Twenty percent 20% of any such incentive fee shall be paid in shares of common stock of the Company unless greater

percentage is requested by TREIT and approved by an independent committee of directors The initial term of the Services Agreement extends

until December 31 2013 Unless terminated earlier in accordance with its terms the Services Agreement will be automatically renewed for one year

periods following such date unless either party elects not to renew If the Company elects to terminate without cause or elects not to renew the

Services Agreement Termination Fee as defined in the Services Agreement shall be payable by the Company to TREIT

For the year ended December 31 2010 we paid $0.1 million in base services fee expense to TREIT Management

Warrant

In consideration of the Amendment and for CIT Healthcares continued and future services to the Company the Company granted our former

manager warrants to purchase 435.000 shares of the Companys common stock at $17.00 per
share the Warrant tinder the Manager Equity Plan

adopted by the Company on June 21 2007 the Manager Equity Plan The Warrant which is immediately exercisable expires on September 30
2018 As part of the Tiptree Transaction Tiptree acquired the Warrant from CIT Healthcare for $100000 This warrant was adjusted to reflect the

Companys three-for-two stock split announced in September 2010 and is currently exercisable into 652500 shares of the Companys common
stock at an exercise price of $11.33 per share
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Director Independence

discussion of our director independence policies is included above beginning on Page under the section titled Director Independence

ITEM 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Audit Fees

Fees for audit services totaled approximately $821000 in 2009 which represent audit fees associated with our annual audit review of our

quarterly reports on Form l0-Q review of documents filed with the SEC and consent

Fees for audit services totaled approximately $860650 in 2010 which represent audit fees associated with our annual audit reviews of our

quarterly reports on Form l0-Q review of documents filed with the SEC and consent

Audit-Related Fees

There were no fees for audit-related services in 2009 or 2010

Tax Fees All Other Fees

There were no tax fees or other fees paid to Deloitte Touche LLP in 2009 or 2010

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures of our Audit Committee

Our Audit Committee has sole authority with the input of management to approve in advance all engagements of our independent auditors for

audit or non-audit services All audit services provided by Deloitte Touche LLP in 2010 were pre-approved by our Audit Committee
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Part IV

ITEM 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Exhibits

Below is the Exhibit Index filed with our Companys 10-K that we originally filed with the SEC on March 31 2011

Exhibit No Description

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Form l0-Q File

No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

3.2 Second Articles of Amendment and Restatement of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File

No 001-33549 filed on August 16 2010 and herein incorporated by reference

3.3 Third Articles of Amendment and Restatement of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File

No 00 1-33549 filed on September 32010 and herein incorporated by reference

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549

filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

3.5 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-

33549 filed on June 25 2010 and herein incorporated by reference

31



Exhibit No Description

3.6 Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-

33549 filed on November 2010 and herein incorporated by reference

4.1 Form of Certificate for Common Stock previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Form 5-11 as amended File No 333-

141634 filed on June 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.1 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock dated as of September 30 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K

File No 001-33549 filed on October 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.2 Multifamily Note dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed

on July 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.3 Exceptions to Non-Recourse Guaranty dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 8-K File

No 001-33549 filed on July 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.4 Master Lease Agreement dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-

33549 filed on July 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.5 Purchase and Sale Contract dated as of May 14 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-

33549 filed on May 20 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.6 Performance Share Award Agreement under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan dated as of May 12 2008 previously

filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form l0-Q File No 001-33549 filed on November 14 2008 and herein incorporated by

reference

10.7 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan dated as of April 2008 previously filed

as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 00 1-33549 filed on April 14 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.8 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to

the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on April 14 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.9 Contribution and Purchase Agreement dated as of December 31 2007 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K

File No 00 1-33549 filed on January 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.10 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on

August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.11 Care Investment Trust Inc Manager Equity Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549

filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.12 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the

Companys Form S-il as amended File No 333-141634 filed on June 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.13 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the

Companys Form S-li as amended File No 333-141634 filed on June 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.14 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Manager Equity Plan previously filed as

Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Form S-li as amended File No 333-
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Exhibit No Description

141634 filed on June 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.15 Form of Indemnification Agreement previously filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys Form S-il as amended File No 333-

141634 filed on June 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.16 Loan Purchase Agreement with CapitalSource Bank dated September 15 2009 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys
Form l0-Q File No.001-33549 filed on November 92009 and herein incorporated by reference

10.17 Loan Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of October 2009 by and between Care Investment Trust Inc and General Electric

Capital Corporation previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on November 18 2009

and herein incorporated by reference

10.18 Form of Performance Share Award Granted to the Companys Chairman of the Board and Executive Officers dated December 10

2009 and amended and restated on February 23 2010 previously filed as Exhibit 10.30 to the Companys Form 10-K File No 001-

33549 filed on March 16 2010 and herein incorporated by reference

10.19 Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between Care Investment Trust Inc and Tiptree Financial Partners L.P. dated as of

March 162010 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on March 16 2010 and herein

incorporated by reference

10.20 First Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between Care Investment Trust Inc and Tiptree Financial Partners L.P
dated as of July 62010 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on July 72010 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.21 Registration Rights Agreement by and between Care Investment Trust Inc and Tiptree Financial Partners L.P dated as of

March 16 2010 previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on March 16 2010 and herein

incorporated by reference

10.22 Termination Cooperation and Confidentiality Agreement previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File

No 001-33549 filed on November 2010 and herein incorporated by reference

10.23 Employment Agreement by and between Salvatore Torey Riso Jr and Care Investment Trust Inc previously filed as Exhibit 10.2

to the Companys Form 8-K File No 00 1-33549 filed on November 2010 and herein incorporated by reference

10.24 Employment Agreement by and between Steven Sherwyn and Care Investment Trust Inc previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to

the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on November 82010 and herein incorporated by reference

10.25 Omnibus Agreement by and between Care Investment Trust Inc and several of its subsidiaries and affiliated parties and Jean-

Claude Saada Cambridge Holdings Inc and several affiliated partnerships and other affiliated parties previously filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on April 19 2011 and herein incorporated by reference

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company previously filed as Exhibit 21.1 to the Companys Form 10-K File No 001-33549 filed on March 31

2011 and herein incorporated by reference

23.1 Consent of Deloitte Touche dated as of March 16 2011 previously filed as Exhibit 23.1 to the Companys Form 10-K File

No 00 1-33549 filed on March 31 2011 and herein incorporated by reference

31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxtey Act of 2002
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Exhibit No Description

32.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

Furnished herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Care Investment Trust Inc

By 1st Steven Sherwyn

Steven Sherwyn

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

April 28 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been duly signed below by the following persons on behalf

of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

_______________________________________
Title _____________

Date

1st Salvatore Torey Riso Jr President Chief Executive April 2X 2011

Salvatore ITorey Riso Jr Officer and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Is Steven Sherwyn Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer April 28 2011

Steven Sherwyn Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

1st Michael Barnes Chairman of the Board of Directors April 28 2011

Michael Barnes

Is Geoffrey Kauffman Vice Chairman April 28 2011

Geoffrey Kauffman

Is Flint Besecker Director April 28 2011

Flint Besecker

Is William Houlihan Director April 28 2011

William Houlihan

Is Rainer Twiford Director April 28 2011

Rainer Twiford

Is Jonathan Ilany Director April 28 2011

Jonathan II any
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Appendix

DEFINITION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

For purposes of this definition immediate family member includes persons spouse parents children siblings mothers and fathers-in-law

sons and daughters-in-law brothers and sisters-in-law and anyone other than domestic employees who shares such persons home

director shall be an independent director if such director

is affirmatively determined by the Board after consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances as having no material relationship with Care

either directly or as partner shareholder or officer of an organization that has relationship with Care

is not currently and has not at any time during the last three years been an employee of Care or any of its affiliates

does not have an immediate family member who is or has been in the last three years an executive officer excluding any interim executive

officer position of Care or any of its affiliates

has not received direct compensation during any twelve-month period within the last three years of more than $120000 from Care or any of its

affiliates other than director and committee fees fees as an interim executive officer and pension or other forms of deferred compensation for prior

service provided such compensation is not contingent in any way on continued service

has no immediatefamily members who have received direct compensation during any twelve-month period within the last three years of more

than $120000 from Care or any of its affiliates as an executive officer

is not partner of or employed by and no member of such directors immediate family is partner of the internal or external auditor of Care or

any of its consolidated subsidiaries and no such directors immediate family is an employee of the internal or external auditor of Care and

personally works on Cares audit nor was any member of such directors immediate family within the last three years partner of the internal or

external auditor of Care and personally worked on Cares audit

is not employed and has not and no immediate family member of such director is employed or has within the prior three years been employed as

an executive officer of another company where any of Cares present executives serves on that companys compensation committee and

is not an executive officer or an employee and no immediate family member of such director is an executive officer of another company that

has made payments to Care in an amount which in any of the last three fiscal years accounts for at least 2% or $1 million whichever is greater of

Cares consolidated gross revenues or that has received payments from Care in an amount which in any of the last three fiscal years accounts

for at least 2% or $1 million whichever is greater of such other companys consolidated gross revenues provided however that if Cares

securities become listed for trading on any Exchange the foregoing definition of independent director shall be replaced with the definition of

independent director contained in such Exchanges rules applicable to companies listed for trading on such Exchange

For purposes of determining independence all references to Care shall mean Care Investment Trust Inc and each of its consolidated

subsidiaries if any

A-l

Back To Top

Section EX-31.1 EX-31.1

EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A of Care Investment Trust Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact necessary to

make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period

covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material respects

the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 15d- 15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-l5

and Sd-I 50 for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our

supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us

by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared



Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under

our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such

evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants

most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent

functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the registrants

internal control over financial reporting

Date April 28 2011

1sf Salvatore Torey Riso Jr

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Section EX-31.2 EX-31.2

EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Steven Sherwyn certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A of Care Investment Trust Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact necessary to

make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period

covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material respects

the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as
defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-15e and lSd-15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15

and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our

supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us

by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under

our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such

evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants

most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial



reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent

functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the registrants

internal control over financial reporting

Date April 28 2011

1st Steven Sherwyn

Steven Sherwyn

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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Section EX-32.1 EX-32.1

EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Care Investment Trust Inc the Company on Form l0-KtA for the year ended December 31 2010 as

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report Salvatore Torey Riso Jr in my capacity as the

President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d as applicable of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

ii The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company as of and for the periods covered in the Report

/s/ Salvatore Torey Riso Jr

Salvatore Torey Riso Jr
President and Chief Executive Officer

Care Investment Trust Inc

Dated April 28 2011

Back To Top

Section EX-32.2 EX-32.2

EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification Pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Care Investment Trust Inc the Company on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31 2010 as

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report Steven Sherwyn in my capacity as the Chief Financial

Officer and Treasurer of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d as applicable of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

ii The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company as of and for the periods covered in the Report



Dated April 28 2011
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Is Steven Sherwyn

Steven Sherwyn

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Care Investment Trust Inc
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Item 4.01 Changes in Registrants Certifying Accountant

On April 12 2011 the Company dismissed Deloitte Touche LLP Deloitte as its independent registered public accounting firm The

decision to dismiss Deloitte was made by the Companys Audit Committee On April 18 2011 the Company appointed KPMG LLP KPMG as its

independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31 2011 The decision to retain KPMG also was approved by

the Companys Audit Committee

The reports issued by Deloitte on the Companys consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2010 Successor and 2009 Predecessor and

consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and cash flows for the periods August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 Successor and

January 12010 to August 122010 Predecessor and the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 Predecessor did not contain any adverse

opinion or disclaimer of an opinion nor were these opinions qualified or modified as to uncertainty audit scope or accounting principles

During the periods August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 Successor and January 12010 to August 122010 Predecessor and the year ended

December 31 2009 Predecessor and through April 15 2011 there were no disagreements between the Company and Deloitte on any matters of

accounting principles or practices financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure which disagreements if not resolved to the

satisfaction of Deloitte would have caused Deloitte to make refefence to the subject matter of the disagreements in its reports on the Companys
consolidated financial statements for such year and period There were no reportable events as defined in item 304alv of Regulation S-K that

occurred during the periods and year referenced above and through April 15 2011

As required by Item 304a3 of Regulation S-K the Company has provided Deloitte with copy of the disclosures contained in this Report on

Form 8-K and has requested that Deloitte review such disclosures and furnish the Company with letter addressed to the Securities and Exchange

Commission stating whether Deloitte agrees with the statements made by the Company in this Report on Form 8-K and if not stating the respects

in which it does not agree

During the periods August 13 2010 to December 31 2010 Successor and January 2010 to August 12 2010 Predecessor and the year ended

December 31 2009 Predecessor and through April 15 2011 the Company did not consult with KPMO regarding any of the matters or events set

forth in Item 304a2i and ii of Regulation S-K
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned thereunto duly authorized

CARE INVESTMENT TRUST INC

Date April 18 2011 By Is Salvatore Torey Riso Jr

Name Salvatore Torey Riso Jr

Title President and Chief Executive Officer
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CURRENT REPORT

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Date of Report Date of earliest event reported April 272011 April 212011

CARE INVESTMENT TRUST INC
Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Charter

001-33549

Commission

File Number

N/A

Former name or former address if changed since last report

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the

following provisions see General Instruction A.2 below

Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act 17 CFR 230.425

Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act 17 CFR 240.14a-12

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 4d-2b under the Exchange Act 17 CFR 240.1 4d-2b

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 3e-4c under the Exchange Act 17 CFR 240.1 3e 4c

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON D.C 20549

FORM 8-K/A

Maryland

State or Other Jurisdiction

of Incorporation

780 Third Avenue 21st Floor

New York New York

Address of Principal Executive Offices

38-3754322

I.R.S Employer Identification

No

Registrants telephone number including area code 212 446-1410

10017

Zip Code



Item 4.01 Changes in Registrants CertiQying Accountant

This Current Report on Form 8-K/A amends the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Care Investment Trust Inc the Company on April 18

2011 File 001-33549 Report on Form 8-K regarding the Companys dismissal of Deloitte Touche LLP Deloitte as its independent

registered public accounting firm As required by Item 304a3 of Regulation S-K the Company provided Deloitte with copy of the disclosures

contained in its Report on Form 8-K and requested that Deloitte review such disclosures and furnish the Company with letter addressed to the

Securities and Exchange Commission stating whether Deloitte agreed with the statements made by the Company in its Report on Form 8-K and if

not stating the respects in which it did not agree

The Company is amending its Report on Form 8-K to provide the letter from Deloitte dated April 21 2011 regarding its concurrence with the

statements made by the Company in its Report on Form 8-K The Company received the letter from Deloitte on April 25 2011 The letter is attached

hereto as Exhibit 16.1

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits

Exhibits

Exhibit No Description

16.1 Letter from Deloitte Touche LLP regarding its concurrence with the statements made by Care Investment Trust Inc in

Item 4.01 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 18 2011
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned hereunto duly authorized

CARE INVESTMENT TRUST INC

Date April 27 2011 By Is Salvatore Torey Riso Jr

Name Salvatore Torey Riso Jr

Title President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No Description

16.1 Letter from Deloitte Touche LLP regarding its concurrence with the statements made by Care Investment Trust Inc in

Item 4.01 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 18 2011
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Section EX-16.1 EX-16.1

Exhibit 16.1

Deloitte ToucheLLP

01 100 Kimball Drive

Parsippany NJ 0705

Tel 973 602 6075

Fax 973 451 6830

www.deloitte.com

April 21 2011

Securities and Exchange Commission

100 Street N.E

Washington D.C 20549-756

Dear Sirs/Madams

We have read Item of Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries Form 8-K dated April 18 2011 and we agree with the statements made therein

Yours truly

UatTL tP

Member of Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu

Back To Top
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16.1 Letter from Deloitte Touche LLP regarding its concurrence with the statements made by Care Investment Trust Inc in

Item 4.01 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 18 2011
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Section EX-16.1 EX-16.1

Exhibit 16.1

eto Deloitte

100 Kimball Drive

Parsippany NJ 0705

Tel 9736026075

Fax 973 451 6830

www.deloitte.com

April 21 2011

Securities and Exchange Commission

100 Street N.E

Washington D.C 20549-756

Dear Sirs/Madams

We have read Item of Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries Form 8-K dated April 18 2011 and we agree with the statements made therein

Yours truly

AStttt tJ

Member of Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu
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